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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certain "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). All
statements other than statements of historical fact may be forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements include, among others,
those statements regarding future events and future results of Bridgepoint Education, Inc. (the "Company," "Bridgepoint," "we," "us" or "our"
including, without limitation, statements regarding:

our value proposition to students; competitiveness of our tuition;

ability to continue to transfer credits from other institutions; ability to maintain and improve the quality of our education;

management of future growth and scalability;

development of military and corporate channels;

estimates of new hires; proposed new programs;

expectations that we can effectively manage the business within the regulatory environment;

expectations regarding enrollments, financial position, results of operations and liquidity;

projections, predictions, expectations, estimates or forecasts as to our business, financial and operational results and future
economic performance;

management's goals and objectives; and

other similar matters that are not historical facts.

non non non "o

Words such as "may," "should," "could," "would," "predicts," "potential," "continue," "expects," "anticipates,”" "future," "intends,
"believes," "estimates" and similar expressions, as well as statements in the future tense, identify forward-looking statements.

non "

plans,’

Forward-looking statements should not be interpreted as a guarantee of future performance or results and will not necessarily be accurate
indications of the times at, or by, which such performance or results will be achieved. Forward- looking statements are based on information
available at the time those statements are made and are management's good faith belief as of that time with respect to future events and are
subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual performance or results to differ materially from those expressed in or suggested by the
forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause such differences include, but are not limited to:

our inability to adequately resolve the findings and recommendations of the final audit report of the U.S. Department of
Education's Office of Inspector General ("OIG");

the imposition of fines or other corrective measures against our academic institutions;
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our failure to comply with the extensive regulatory framework applicable to its industry, including Title IV of the Higher
Education Act and its regulations, state laws and regulatory requirements and accrediting agency requirements;
adverse regulatory changes affecting our industry;

our inability to continue to develop awareness among, to recruit and to retain students;

competition in the postsecondary education market and its potential impact on our market share, recruiting cost and tuition
rates;
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reputational and other risks related to potential compliance audits, regulatory actions, negative publicity or service
disruptions;

our ability to attract and retain the personnel needed to sustain and grow its business;

our inability to develop new programs or expand its existing programs in a timely and cost-effective manner;

economic or other developments potentially impacting demand in our core disciplines or the availability or cost of Title IV
or other funding;

other factors discussed in Part I, Item 1A, "Risk Factors," and in other reports we may file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission from time to time; and

those factors set forth in Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations."

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date the statements are made. You should not put undue reliance on any forward-looking
statements. We assume no obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect actual results, changes in assumptions or changes in other
factors affecting forward-looking information, except to the extent required by applicable securities laws. If we do update one or more
forward-looking statements, no inference should be drawn that we will make additional updates with respect to those or other forward-looking
statements.
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PART I

Item 1. Business.

BUSINESS
Overview

We are a provider of postsecondary education services. Our regionally accredited academic institutions offer associate's, bachelor's,
master's and doctoral programs in the disciplines of business, education, psychology, social sciences and health sciences. Our institutions deliver
programs online as well as at traditional campuses located in Clinton, lowa, and Colorado Springs, Colorado. As of December 31, 2010, our
institutions offered approximately 1,345 courses, 71 degree programs and 134 specializations. We had 77,892 students enrolled in our
institutions as of December 31, 2010.

We have designed our offerings to have four key characteristics that we believe are important to students:

Affordability our tuition falls within Title IV loan limits;

Transferability our universities accept up to 99 prior credits;

Accessibility our online delivery model makes our education services accessible to a broad segment of the population; and

Heritage our institutions' respective histories as traditional universities provide a sense of familiarity, a connection to a
student community and a campus-based experience for both online and campus students.

We believe these characteristics create an attractive and differentiated value proposition for our students. In addition, we believe this value
proposition expands our overall addressable market by enabling potential students to overcome the challenges associated with cost,
transferability of credits and accessibility; factors that frequently discourage individuals from pursuing a postsecondary degree.

We are committed to providing a high-quality educational experience to our students. We have a comprehensive curriculum development
process, and we employ qualified faculty members with significant academic and practitioner credentials. We conduct ongoing faculty and
student assessment processes and provide a broad array of student services. Our ability to offer a quality experience at an affordable price is
supported by our efficient operating model, which enables us to deliver our programs, as well as market to, recruit and retain students, in a
cost-effective manner.

In January 2004, our principal investor, Warburg Pincus Private Equity VIII, L.P., ("Warburg Pincus"), and our CEO and President,
Andrew Clark, as well as several other members of our current executive management team, launched Bridgepoint Education, Inc. to establish a
differentiated postsecondary education provider.

In March 2005, we acquired the assets of The Franciscan University of the Prairies, located in Clinton, Iowa, and renamed it Ashford
University. Ashford University was founded in 1918 by the Sisters of St. Francis. Ashford University offers four associate's programs, 59
bachelor's programs and six master's programs, including numerous specializations within these programs. In September 2007, we acquired the
assets of the Colorado School of Professional Psychology, located in Colorado Springs, Colorado, and renamed it the University of the Rockies.
The University of the Rockies was founded in 1998. The University of the Rockies offers one master's and one doctoral program of psychology,
each having multiple specializations within the program.

The majority of our current executive management team was in place at the time we acquired Ashford University. As a result, we were able
to begin implementing processes and technologies to
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prepare for the launch of an online education offering to serve a large student population immediately after the acquisition.

Our institutions are accredited by the Higher Learning Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools (the "Higher
Learning Commission"). Ashford University received its most recent 10-year reaccreditation in 2006. The University of the Rockies received a
seven-year reaccreditation in 2008.

Our Competitive Strengths
Attractive, differentiated value proposition for students

We have designed our educational model to provide our students with a superior value proposition relative to other educational alternatives
in the market. We believe our model allows us to attract more students, as well as to target a broader segment of the overall population. Our
value proposition is based on the following:

Affordable tuition. We structure the tuition for our programs to be below Title IV loan limits, permitting students who do
not otherwise have the financial means to pursue an education the ability to gain access to our programs. We believe that
removing the financial burden of obtaining incremental private loans, or making significant cash tuition payments while
pursuing a postsecondary education, not only permits more students to access our programs but also enables students to
focus more on their coursework and on program completion while in school. We also recognize that private loans are
increasingly difficult to obtain, which can prevent academically qualified students from pursuing an education at institutions

with higher tuition and fees.

High transferability of credits. Based on our research, we believe we are one of six postsecondary education institutions in
the United States, and the only for-profit provider, that accepts up to 99 transfer credits for a bachelor's degree program.
Many adult students have completed some postsecondary education and have credits which they would like to transfer to a
new degree program, but are often prevented from doing so, thereby increasing the time and expense incurred to earn a
degree. This situation is common among military personnel who, as of December 31, 2010, comprised 18.6% of our total
enrollment. We believe students should receive credit for their prior work and, as such, we have worked closely with our
accrediting agencies to obtain the right to accept a high level of transfer credits. Based on a recent review of our fully
admitted undergraduate students, approximately 70% transferred in credits, and 44% of those who transferred in credits

transferred in 50 credits or more.

Accessible educational model. Our online delivery model, weekly start dates and commitment to affordability and the
transferability of credits make our programs highly accessible. Our online platform has been designed to deliver a quality
educational experience while offering the flexibility and convenience that many students require, particularly working
adults. As of December 31, 2010, 99% of our students were taking classes exclusively online. Our weekly starts provide
students with significant flexibility to structure their course schedule around their other personal and professional

commitments.

Heritage as a traditional university with a campus-based student community. We believe that a strong sense of community
and the familiarity associated with a traditional campus environment are important to recruiting and retaining students and
differentiate us from many other online providers. We encourage our online students to follow activities on our campuses,
including Ashford University's 17 National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics ("NAIA") athletic teams, our student
clubs and our student projects with our campuses' local communities. Additionally, all online student activity, including
completing coursework and seeking support
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services, is initiated through each university's homepage, which also highlights campus activities, including athletic and
social events. As a result, students have the opportunity to become more connected to their fellow students and to develop a
stronger connection with our institutions. Additionally, we hold graduation ceremonies at our Ashford University campus for
both online and campus-based students. Of the 2010 graduations held, 95% of the students participating in the ceremony
were graduating from online programs.

Commitment to academic quality

We are committed to providing our students with a rigorous and rewarding academic experience, which gives them the knowledge and
experience necessary to be contributors, educators and leaders in their chosen professions. We seek to maintain a high level of quality in our
curriculum, faculty and student support services, all of which contribute to the overall student experience. Our curriculum is reviewed annually
to ensure that content is refined and updated as necessary. Our faculty members have over 10 years of instructional experience on average, and
all hold graduate degrees in their respective fields of instruction and typically have relevant practitioner experience. We provide extensive
student support services, including academic, administrative and technology support, to help maximize the success of our students. Additionally,
we monitor the success of our educational delivery processes through periodic faculty and student assessments. We believe our commitment to
quality is evident in the satisfaction and demonstrated proficiency of our students, which we measure at the completion of every course.

Cost-efficient, scalable operating model

We have designed our operating model to be cost-efficient, allowing us to offer a quality educational experience at an affordable tuition rate
while still generating attractive operating margins. Our management team has relied upon its experience with other online education models to
develop processes and employ technology to enhance the efficiency and scalability of our business model. Our processes and related
technologies allow us to efficiently meet our students' instructional support services needs and to execute our marketing, recruiting and retention
strategy. These processes and related technologies enable our management team to operate the business effectively and to identify areas for
opportunity to refine the model further. Additionally, we have developed our operating model to be scalable in order to support a much larger
student population than is currently enrolled.

Experienced management team and strong corporate culture

Our management team possesses extensive experience in postsecondary education, in many cases with other large online postsecondary
providers. Prior to launching Bridgepoint Education, Andrew Clark, our CEO and President, served in senior management positions at such
institutions for 12 years and has significant experience with online education businesses. The other members of our executive management team
also bring a combination of academic, operational, technological and financial expertise that we believe has been critical to our success. The
continuity of our executive management team demonstrates the strong relationship between functional areas within our business and the team's
belief in the potential of our business model. Additionally, our executive management team has been critical to establishing and maintaining our
corporate culture during our rapid growth. Our culture is based on four core values: integrity, ethics, service and accountability. We believe
these values (i) have allowed us to create an environment that makes us a sought-after employer for professionals within our industry and
(i1) have contributed to the strong relationships we maintain with each of our regulatory and accrediting agencies.

10
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Our Growth Strategies
Focus on high-demand disciplines and degree programs

We seek to offer programs in disciplines in which there is strong demand for education and significant opportunity for employment. Our
current program portfolio includes offerings at the associate's, bachelor's, master's and doctoral levels in the disciplines of business, education,
psychology, social sciences and health sciences. We follow a defined process for identifying new degree program opportunities which
incorporates student, faculty and market feedback, as well as macro trends in the relevant disciplines, to evaluate the expected level of demand
for a new program prior to developing the content and marketing it to potential students. Based on a June 2009 National Center for Education
Statistics report, programs in our disciplines represent 85% of total bachelor's degrees conferred by all postsecondary institutions in 2007-2008.

Increase enrollment in our existing programs through investment in marketing, recruiting and retention

We have invested significant resources in developing processes and implementing technologies that allow us to effectively identify, recruit
and retain qualified students. We intend to continue to invest in marketing, recruiting and retention and to expand our enrollment advisor
workforce to increase enrollment in our existing programs. Our proprietary customer relations management, or CRM, system and related
processes allow us to effectively track potential new students that have expressed an interest in a postsecondary education. Additionally, our
superior value proposition allows us to differentiate our educational offering to potential students. Once a student enrolls in our programs, we
provide consistent, ongoing support to assist the student in acclimating to the online environment and to address challenges that arise in order to
increase the likelihood that the student will persist through graduation. We also intend to continue to develop our brand recognition through
marketing efforts to students and employers.

Expand our portfolio of programs and specializations

We intend to continue to expand our institutions' academic offerings to attract a broader portion of the overall market. In addition to adding
new programs in high-demand disciplines, we intend to enhance our institutions' programs through the addition of more specializations.
Specializations are used to create an offering that is tailored to the specific objectives of a student population and, therefore, is more attractive to
potential students interested in a particular program. As a result, the addition of specializations represents a cost-effective way both to expand
our target market and to further enhance the differentiation of our programs in that market. Additionally, we intend to expand the portfolio of our
institutions' master's and doctoral degree programs, consistent with our commitment to a quality academic offering, and to pursue graduate
students because we believe they represent an attractive segment of the population.

Further develop strategic relationships in the military and corporate channels

We intend to broaden our relationships with military and corporate employers, as well as seek additional relationships in these channels.
Through our dedicated channel development teams, we are able to cost-effectively target specific segments of the market, as well as better
understand the needs of students in these segments so that we can design programs that more closely meet their needs. We believe our value
proposition is attractive to potential students in these markets. In the military segment, individuals may frequently change locations or may seek
to complete a program intermittently over the course of several years. In the corporate channel, employers value our traditional campus heritage,
while our affordability allows employer tuition reimbursement to be used more efficiently.

6
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Deliver measurable academic outcomes and a positive student experience

Our institutions are committed to offering an educational solution that supports measurable academic outcomes, thereby allowing our
students to increase their probability of success in their chosen profession. We use a comprehensive course development program, as well as
tools and ongoing assessments to define the desired outcomes for a course, to design the course to deliver these outcomes and to measure each
student's progress towards achieving these outcomes as they progress through a course. Our online platform supports this objective as we are
able to monitor each student's action in an online course. Additionally, our students benefit from the strong sense of community that exists from
being associated with a traditional campus and student community, including the related student activities. We believe our combination of
measurable outcomes and a positive experience is important to helping students persist through graduation.

Approach to Academic Quality
Rigorous curricula

We are committed to offering academically rigorous curricula, which provide students the knowledge and skills necessary to be successful
in their respective professions. Our institutions' curricula are developed to ensure a consistent, high-quality learning experience for all students.
Faculty and subject matter experts design our curricula to emphasize the requisite professional knowledge and skills that our students will need

following graduation. Our institutions' programs and curricula are continuously monitored and undergo regular reviews to ensure their quality,
efficacy and relevance.

Qualified faculty

Faculty members are selected based upon academic credentials, prior teaching experience and performance in faculty orientation and in the
classroom. Our faculty members have more than 10 years of instructional experience on average, and all hold graduate degrees in their
respective fields of instruction and typically have relevant practitioner experience. As of December 31, 2010, we had approximately 2,900
adjunct faculty members and 60 full-time campus faculty members. All of our faculty members have earned a graduate degree, and of the faculty
members teaching graduate courses, 88% at Ashford University and 100% at University of the Rockies have earned doctoral degrees.

All faculty members participate in an extensive initial interview and orientation. Online faculty candidates must participate in three weeks
of online training to understand the instructional design of our courses, our online platform and teaching expectations. The online environment
that we use to train and evaluate candidates is designed to replicate the learning experience of our students, as well as provide a platform for the
candidates to demonstrate their competence as instructors.

Faculty members participate in ongoing professional development, as well as regional face-to-face meetings designed to ensure appropriate
levels of faculty engagement and student learning. Our instructional specialists are a team of faculty members who assess the performance of
and provide feedback to our online faculty to ensure quality and consistent delivery across all of our programs. Our instructional specialists
evaluate online faculty on their ability to:

motivate and engage students in active and positive dialogue;

respond promptly to students and provide needed expertise;

establish clear expectations and outcomes that maintain academic standards;

provide constructive criticism;

advance written communication skills;

establish trust among the community of students; and

12
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inspire an atmosphere of sincerity and encouragement.
We believe our instructional specialists serve a critical role in allowing us to deliver a quality education to our students.

We believe that supporting faculty in classroom duties, as well as in their professional development, is an integral component to the success
of our students. We place significant emphasis on supporting and rewarding faculty for quality teaching and have implemented programs
designed to provide necessary faculty support. We employ faculty mentors to acclimate new instructors to our online platform and instructional
model, and we employ teaching assistants to assist faculty members in certain online undergraduate courses. Faculty members are encouraged to
be active in their field by presenting at national conferences, conducting research, writing and joining professional organizations. Additionally,
faculty members may earn recognition for excellence such as earning acceptance into the Ashford University Provost's Circle or Teaching
Academy or by receiving formal faculty recognition awards.

We believe providing a supportive community for our faculty is critical to the success of our institutions. Accordingly, we foster a sense of
community among our online and our campus faculty through in-person gatherings, as well as online community building. We hold regional
faculty meetings two to four times per year where all of our online faculty from a specific region are invited to gather to discuss experiences,
best practices and effective teaching approaches.

Consistent delivery

We use standard curricula, texts and syllabi each time a given course is taught to ensure consistency in delivery. The course sequences we
offer are standardized in a given program to enable consistent delivery. Courses have clear, consistent objectives which enable us to measure
learning outcomes every time a course is given. Additionally, standard course student assessment materials are used to guarantee a consistent
approach. Our uniform content, course objectives, assessment process and course sequences allow us to consistently deliver our programs to a
large student population.

Effective student services

Each student is provided a dedicated support team to assist in pursuing academic objectives. Financial aid and student services personnel
help each new student evaluate financial service options and provide assistance in reviewing prior credits and planning scheduled classes. Each
student is also assigned a teaching assistant at the beginning of matriculation to serve as a personal writing coach and is offered access to writing
skills assistance, tutoring services and library resources.

Academic assessment and oversight

An academic leadership team and each institution's board of trustees provide oversight to ensure the academic integrity of all program
offerings. Academic quality is measured and assessed by our faculty and monitored by our instructional specialists and assessment staff. In order
to measure the efficacy of our programs, we have implemented a technologically-enabled assessment model that allows for continuous
assessment, thoughtful review and revision of courses when necessary. Faculty performance is routinely reviewed by our instructional specialists
to assess the quality of the student learning experience.

Surveys

We use internal and external surveys to monitor the quality of our academic programs and student experience. In the past 11 student
satisfaction surveys we have conducted, 96% indicated they would recommend Ashford University to others seeking a degree. Additionally, in
Ashford University's 2010

14
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alumni survey which we conducted, 99% of working alumni participating in the survey felt their education prepared them for their current
occupation, and 93% responded that they were satisfied or very satisfied with Ashford University.

In the Noel-Levitz Student Satisfaction Survey, administered by an external source in the spring of 2010, Ashford University outperformed
the national online learners average with respect to their college experience meeting their expectations, the overall satisfaction of their
experience at Ashford University, as well as if they would enroll at Ashford University if given the opportunity to do it over again.

Accreditation

Both of our institutions are accredited by the Higher Learning Commission. Our continuing accreditations are a testament to the quality of
our academic programs. Ashford University was originally accredited in 1950 and received its most recent 10-year reaccreditation in 2006. The
University of the Rockies was originally accredited in 2003 for five years and received a seven-year reaccreditation in 2008. For additional
information on the Higher Learning Commission visit http://www.ncahlc.org, or call 1-800-621-7440.

In September 2010, we announced that Ashford University has initiated the process of seeking regional accreditation from the Accrediting
Commission for Senior Colleges and Universities of the Western Association of Schools and Colleges. For more information related to the
potential change in accreditation, see "Regulation Accreditation Potential change in primary institutional accreditor for Ashford University"
below.

Curricula and Scheduling

As of December 31, 2010, our institutions offered 71 degree programs and 134 specializations. Specialization areas are comprised of a
select number of courses within an existing program which supplement that program's required courses. Specialization areas focus on one area
of study and may also be offered under the designation of concentration, endorsement or track. We offer programs and specialization areas
through Ashford University's four colleges: the College of Business and Professional Studies; the College of Education; the College of Liberal
Arts; and the College of Health, Human Services, and Science; and through the University of the Rockies' two schools: the School of
Organizational Leadership and the School of Professional Psychology.

Online courses are offered with weekly start dates throughout the year except for two weeks total in late December and early January.
Courses typically run five to six weeks, and all courses are offered in an asynchronous format, so students can complete their coursework as
their schedule permits. Online students typically enroll in one course at a time. This focused approach to learning allows the student to engage
fully in each course.

Our campus-based courses are typically nine or 16 weeks and have one start per term, with two to five terms per year. Undergraduate
campus-based students can enroll in up to six concurrent courses at a time and typically enroll in at least four courses in a given semester.

Doctoral students, both online and campus-based, are required to participate in periodic seminars located on campus as well as compose
and defend a dissertation on an approved topic.

Total credits required to obtain a degree are consistent for online and campus-based programs. An associate's degree requires 61 credits, a
bachelor's degree requires 120 credits, a master's degree typically requires a minimum of 33 credits at Ashford University and 39 credits at the
University of the Rockies. A doctoral degree at the University of the Rockies requires a minimum of 62 credits.

15
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Program Development

Potential new programs and specializations are determined based on proposals submitted by faculty and staff and on an assessment of
overall market demand. Our faculty and academic leadership work in collaboration with our marketing team to research and select new
programs that are expected to have strong market demand and that can be developed at a reasonable cost. Programs are reviewed by the
appropriate college and must also receive approval through the normal governance process at the relevant institution.

Once a program is selected for development, a subject matter expert is assigned to work with our curriculum development staff to define
measurable program objectives. Each course in a program is designed to include learning activities that address the program objectives and
assess learning outcomes. A new program is reviewed for approval through the appropriate governance structures. Following the approval,
online programs are conformed to the standards of our online learning management system, and the marketing department creates a marketing
plan for the program. In most cases, the time frame to identify, develop and approve a new program is approximately six months.

Assessment

Each institution has developed and implemented a comprehensive assessment plan focused on student learning and effective instruction.
The plans measure learning outcomes at the course, program and institutional levels. Learning outcomes are unique to each institution and
demonstrate the skills that graduates should be able to demonstrate upon completion of their respective program. With the assistance of our
dedicated assessment team, our faculty routinely evaluates and revises courses and learning resources based upon outcomes and institutional
research data. Using direct and indirect measurements, student performance is assessed on an ongoing basis to ensure student success. Both
Ashford University and the University of the Rockies have been accepted into the Higher Learning Commission's Assessment Academy which
promotes a continuous improvement cycle in the area of assessment.

In addition to course and program assessments, our faculty's performance is continuously assessed by our institutional specialists and by
results of student surveys at the completion of each course. The results of all of our assessment practices are reviewed by an assessment team,
and, based on their conclusions, recommendations may be made to add or modify our programs.

Student Support Services

To promote academic success, support new students and enhance persistence, we offer a broad array of services that assist students at our
institutions. A majority of our student support services are accessible online, permitting convenient student access. Our service infrastructure
includes academic, administrative, technology and library services.

Academic

Students enrolling in an undergraduate program are given access to teaching assistants who serve as personal writing coaches and provide
feedback and guidance on academic matters. We also offer students access to an online writing center that utilizes a virtual writing tutor and
provides sample essays, an automated reference generator and tutorials on utilizing our online library. For students with disabilities, we provide
appropriate educational accommodations through our disability support services team.
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Administrative

We offer students access to our administrative services telephonically, as well as via the Internet. We believe online accessibility provides
the convenience and self-service capabilities that our students value. Each student is assigned an enrollment advisor, a financial services advisor
and an academic advisor, who work together as a team and serve as a student's main point of contact. Financial service advisors work with
enrollment advisors to ensure that the student is financially prepared to pursue their degree. Academic advisors work with the student to evaluate
any past credits they have earned, to plan their degree path and to schedule their classes.

Technology

We provide online technology support to assist our students and faculty with technology-related issues. Our internal technology support
team is available daily from 8:00 am EST to 10:00 pm EST. In addition, we provide our students with support 24 hours per day, seven days per
week to address common issues such as password resets and questions related to our learning management system.

Library

We provide access to online and campus libraries containing materials to assist students and faculty with research and instruction. Our
libraries satisfy the criteria established by the Higher Learning Commission for us to offer undergraduate, master's and doctoral degree
programs.

Campus Operations

Ashford University is located on an aggregate of over 160 acres in Clinton, Iowa, across several locations. Since our acquisition of Ashford
University in March 2005, we have invested in enhancing and expanding the physical infrastructure of the campus, which currently includes
buildings used for academic, athletic, administrative, housing and student services. Throughout 2010, we expanded the physical campus through
(1) the acquisition of additional infrastructure to be used as student housing, (ii) the completion of a new athletic facility, including an artificial
turf soccer field and an outdoor track and (iii) the acquisition of an indoor tennis center. In addition, several buildings on campus were renovated
and updated to support the increase in campus enrollment, reflecting our commitment to the heritage that Ashford University's physical campus
represents.

The University of the Rockies is located in Colorado Springs, Colorado. We have begun to implement a plan to further enhance the
infrastructure of the University of the Rockies and to expand classroom space to accommodate increased enrollment at this institution.

Campus enrollments at our institutions were 859 in the aggregate as of December 31, 2010. We believe that the continued growth of our
campus enrollment, our commitment to academic quality, student athletics and social activities and community involvement by students at our
campuses will continue to contribute to the heritage of the institutions. As a result, we intend to continue to seek opportunities to invest in
developing our campus operations.

11

17



Edgar Filing: Bridgepoint Education Inc - Form 10-K

Table of Contents
Marketing, Recruiting and Retention
Marketing

We develop and participate in various marketing activities to generate leads for prospective students and to build the Ashford University
and University of the Rockies brands. For our online student population, we align ourselves with working adults, many of whom have already
completed some postsecondary courses and are seeking an accessible, affordable education from a quality institution. In 2010, we implemented
new admissions policies that increased the minimum age to 22 for all online students at Ashford University. The new policy was focused at
attracting more mature students with a greater commitment to completing their degrees. For our Ashford University campus-based student
population, we attract traditional college students, typically between the ages of 18 and 24.

Our leads are primarily generated from online sources. Our main source of leads is third party online lead aggregators. We also purchase
keywords from search providers to generate online leads directly, rather than acquiring them through lead aggregators. Additionally, we have an
in-house team focused on generating online leads through search engine optimization techniques. In select instances, primarily for potential
campus-based students, we utilize print, television and radio media campaigns, as well as direct mail to generate leads.

We use print media, as well as trade show appearances and sponsorships to enhance the brand equity of Ashford University and the
University of the Rockies. These campaigns are designed to increase awareness among potential students, differentiate us from other
postsecondary education providers, start dialogues between our enrollment advisors and potential students, motivate existing students to
re-register and encourage referrals from existing students.

Our military and corporate channel relationships are developed and managed by our channel development teams. Our military development
specialists and corporate liaisons work with representatives in these organizations to demonstrate the quality, impact and value that our programs
can provide to individuals in the organizations, as well as to the organizations themselves. We also attend trade shows and conferences to
communicate our value proposition to potential channel partners.

Military relationships.  Ashford University offers tuition grants and book benefits to members of the military, including active duty
members, veterans utilizing VA education benefits, National Guard members, reservists, civilian employees of the Department of Defense and
Coast Guard, spouses of active duty, National Guard and reservists and immediate family members utilizing VA education benefits. University
of the Rockies offers tuition grants and book benefits to active duty members, reservists and members of the National Guard and extends book
benefits to veterans utilizing VA education benefits, civilian employees of the Department of Defense and Coast Guard, spouses of active duty,
National Guard and reservists and immediate family members utilizing VA education benefits. In conjunction with the 2009 Supplemental
Appropriations Bill, which extends the G.I. Bill benefits to the children of fallen soldiers, both institutions began offering tuition grants and/or
book benefits to the children of military personnel who lost their lives while serving their country. Additionally, our institutions participate in the
G.I. Bill's Yellow Ribbon Education Enhancement Program which allows colleges and universities to enter into dollar-for-dollar matching
agreements with the federal government to pay veterans' educational costs above those covered by the base G.I. Bill benefit. As of December 31,
2010, 18.6% of our students were affiliated with the military.

Ashford University is a Letter-of-Instruction school in the GoArmyEd program. We believe this helps facilitate the process by which
active-duty soldiers may apply for courses through Ashford University, which has a direct link to the GoArmyEd web site. Ashford University is
also a U.S. Coast Guard SOCCOAST-4 member. Ashford University is part of more than 40 other colleges and
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universities in the SOCCOAST-4 degree network in offering bachelor degree programs to Coast Guard students, their adult family members and
Coast Guard civilian personnel. We plan to use these relationships to expand our educational offerings to military personnel.

Corporate relationships. We develop corporate relationships to offer our programs to employees of large companies. Based on these
relationships, corporations make information about Ashford University and the University of the Rockies available to their employees. In
addition to our current corporate liaisons, we have a national corporate team to focus exclusively on partnering with corporations to address their
respective company education initiatives and education reimbursement programs.

Recruiting

We employ a team structure in our recruiting operations. Each team consists of enrollment advisors, financial service advisors and
academic advisors. Our teams provide a single point of contact and facilitate all aspects of enrollment and integration of a prospective student
into a program of study. Our team structure promotes internal accountability among employees involved in identifying, recruiting, enrolling and
retaining new students.

All leads are managed through our proprietary CRM system, which directs a lead for a prospective student to a recruiting team and assigns
an enrollment advisor within that team to serve as the primary liaison for that prospective student. Once contact with the prospective student is
established, our enrollment advisors, along with the academic and financial service advisors, begin an assessment process to determine if our
program offerings match the student's needs and objectives. Additionally, our enrollment advisors communicate other criteria, including
expected duration and cost of our programs, to prospective students. Through our proprietary systems, our enrollment advisors are able to
generate a comparison of tuition levels across our competitors in order for prospective students to make more informed decisions.

Each enrollment advisor undergoes a comprehensive training program that addresses our academic offerings, financial aid options, our
value proposition and the regulatory environment in which we operate, including the restrictions that regulations impose on the recruitment
process. We place significant emphasis on regulatory requirements and encourage an environment of strict compliance. An enrollment advisor
typically does not achieve full productivity until four to six months after the advisor's date of hire.

As of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, we employed 1,619, 1,175, and 749 enrollment advisors, respectively.
Retention

Providing a superior learning experience to every student is a key component in retaining students at our institutions. We feel that our
team-based approach to recruitment and the robust student services we provide enhances retention because of each student's interaction with
their contact in the team and the accountability inherent in the team structure. We also incorporate a systematic approach to contacting students
at key milestones during their enrollment, providing encouragement and highlighting their progress. Additional contact points include quarterly
updates on the school and campus life. There are frequent personal interactions between academic advisors and students which we view as a key
component to our retention strategy. Additionally, we employ a retention committee that monitors performance metrics and other key data to
analyze student retention rates, as well as the causes and potential risks for student drops. Also, our student grievance department serves as a
neutral third party for students to raise any concerns or complaints. Such concerns and complaints are then elevated to the appropriate
department so we may proactively address any issues potentially impacting retention.
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Our admissions process is designed to offer access to prospective students who seek the benefits of a postsecondary education. Ashford
University undergraduate students may qualify in various ways, including by having a high school diploma or a General Education Development
equivalent. Graduate level students at Ashford University and the University of the Rockies are required to have an undergraduate degree from
an accredited college and may be required to have a minimum grade point average or meet other criteria to qualify for admission to certain
programs.

Enrollment

We define enrollments as the number of active students on the last day of the financial reporting period. A student is considered an active
student if he or she has attended a class within the prior 30 days unless the student has graduated or provided us with a notice of withdrawal.

The following table summarizes our enrollments as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008:

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Doctoral 618 0.8% 428 0.8% 113 0.3%
Master's 8,414 10.8 5,350 10.0 2,266 7.2
Bachelor's 57,905 74.3 41,571 77.4 26,340 83.5
Associate's 10,720 13.8 6,117 11.4 2,699 8.6
Other* 235 0.3 222 0.4 140 0.4
Total 77,892 100.0% 53,688 100.0% 31,558 100.0%
Ashford University Online 75,243 96.6% 51,936 96.7% 30,892 97.9%
Ashford University Campus 724 0.9 503 0.9 500 1.6
University of the Rockies Online 1,790 2.3 1,112 2.1 29 0.1
University of the Rockies Campus 135 0.2 137 0.3 137 0.4
Total 77,892 100.0% 53,688 100.0% 31,558 100.0%

Includes students who are taking one or more courses with us, but have not declared that they are pursuing a specific degree.

As of December 31, 2010, 71% of our online students were female, 50% have identified themselves as minorities and the average age of
our online students was 35. We have online students from all 50 states and from the District of Columbia.

Tuition and Fees

The price of our institutions' courses varies based upon the number of credits per course (with most courses representing three credits), the
degree level of the program and the discipline. For the 2010-2011 academic year (which began on July 1, 2010), our price per credit is $372 for
undergraduate online courses and ranges from $486 to $882 for graduate online courses. Based on these per credit prices, our prices for a
three-credit course are $1,116 for undergraduate online courses and range from $1,458 to $2,646 for graduate online courses. For the 2010-2011
academic year, we charge a fixed $7,860 "block tuition" for undergraduate campus-based students taking between 12 and 18 credits per
semester. For campus-based students taking more than 18 credits, the cost is an additional $458 per credit. For part time, campus-based students
taking 11 credits or less the cost is $458 per credit. Total credits required to obtain a degree are consistent for online and campus-based
programs: an associate's degree requires 61 credits; a bachelor's degree requires 120 credits; a master's degree typically requires
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a minimum of 33 credits at Ashford University and 39 credits at the University of the Rockies. A doctoral degree at the University of the
Rockies requires a minimum of 62 credits.

Revenue realized from tuition is reduced by the amount of scholarships we award to our students. For the years ended December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008, we awarded institutional scholarships of $80.2 million, $42.8 million, and $14.7 million, respectively, to our students.

Tuition prices for students in our online programs increased by an average of 5.0% for our 2010-2011 academic year which was
comparable to the increase in the 2009-2010 academic year. Tuition increases have not historically been, and may not in the future be, consistent
across our programs due to market conditions and differences in operating costs of individual programs. Tuition for our traditional campus-based
programs did not increase in the 2010-2011 academic year as compared to an increase of 2.5% in our 2009-2010 academic year.

Seasonality

Our results of operations are generally subject to seasonal trends. See Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations Factors Affecting Comparability Seasonality."

Student Financing
Our students finance their education at our institutions through a combination of the following financing options:
Title IV programs

If a student attends any institution certified as eligible by the U.S. Department of Education (the "Department") and meets applicable
student eligibility standards, that student may receive grants and loans to fund their education under programs provided for by Title IV of the
Higher Education Act. An institution participating in Title IV programs must ensure that all program funds are accounted for and disbursed
properly. To continue receiving program funds, students must demonstrate satisfactory academic progress toward the completion of their
program of study.

In the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, Ashford University derived 85.0%, 85.5% and 86.8%, respectively, and the
University of the Rockies derived 85.9%, 84.6% and 80.8%, respectively, of their respective revenues (in each case calculated on a cash basis in
accordance with applicable Department regulations) from Title IV programs administered by the Department.

FFEL and Federal Direct Loans. The Federal Family Education Loan (FFEL) and Federal Direct Loan Programs consist of two types of
loans: Stafford loans, which are either subsidized or unsubsidized, and PLUS loans, which are made available to graduate and professional
students, as well as parents of dependent undergraduate students. The FFEL program was administered and funded by private lenders and
guaranteed by federally recognized guaranty agencies, which are then reimbursed by the Department. Recent legislation prohibits new
federally-guaranteed loans from being made under the FFEL Program commencing July 1, 2010; instead, such loans would be required to be
made under the Federal Direct Loan Program, which is described below. As of July 1, 2010, both of our institutions had fully transitioned to the
Federal Direct Loan Program.

With a subsidized Stafford loan, the federal government pays the interest on the loan while the student is in school and during grace periods
and any approved periods of deferment, until the student's obligation to repay the loan begins. Unsubsidized Stafford loans are not based on
financial need, and are available to students who do not qualify for a subsidized Stafford loan, or in some cases, in addition to a subsidized
Stafford loan. Loan funds are paid to us, and we in turn credit the student's account for tuition and fees and disburse any amounts in excess of
tuition and fees to the student.
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Under the Stafford loan program, a dependent undergraduate student can borrow up to $5,500 for the first academic year, $6,500 for the
second academic year and $7,500 for each of the third and fourth academic years. Students classified as independent, and dependent students
whose parents have been denied a PLUS loan for undergraduate students, can obtain up to an additional $4,000 for each of the first and second
academic years and an additional $5,000 for each of the third and fourth academic years. Students enrolled in graduate programs can borrow up
to $20,500 per academic year.

Pell.  Under the Pell Program, the Department makes grants to undergraduate students who demonstrate financial need. Effective July 1,
2008, the maximum annual grant a student can receive under the Pell Program is $4,731. Under the August 2008 reauthorization of the Higher
Education Act, students are able for the first time to receive Pell Grant funds for attendance on a year-round basis, and can potentially receive
more in a given year than the traditionally defined maximum annual amount. For the 2010-2011 award year, the maximum Pell Grant award is
$5,550. Recent proposed legislation would also provide for automatic increases in the maximum amount of Pell Grant for which a student would
be eligible, subject to federal appropriations.

Federal Work Study Program. Under the Federal Work Study Program, federal funds are made available to pay up to 75% of the cost of
part-time employment of eligible students, based on their financial need, to perform work for the school or for off-campus public or non-profit
organizations.

Non Title 1V funding sources

Other funding sources consist of cash, private loans, state grants, corporate reimbursement, military benefits and, in the case of the
University of the Rockies, institutional loans. In the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, Ashford University derived 15.0%, 14.5%
and 13.2%, respectively, and the University of the Rockies derived 14.1%, 15.4% and 19.2%, respectively, of their respective revenues (in each
case calculated on a cash basis in accordance with applicable Department regulations) from these other funding sources.

Financial aid processing

We have engaged Affiliated Computer Services, Inc., or ACS, to provide call center and transactional processing services for the online
financial aid student populations at Ashford University and the University of the Rockies, including services related to disbursement eligibility
review and Title IV fund returns. We believe our engagement of ACS centralizes these processing services to improve student financing
outcomes, and enhances our efforts to comply with Title IV rules and regulations. If our engagement with ACS were terminated, we would
handle these processing services using our own resources or engage another third party vendor.

Technology

We have created a scalable technology system that is secure, reliable and redundant and permits our courses and support services to be
offered online.

Online course delivery and management

We use the eCollege online learning platform, provided by Pearson eCollege, a third-party software and services provider, for our online
platform. The platform provides an online learning management system and provides for the storage, management and delivery of course
content. The platform includes collaborative spaces for student communication and participation with other students and faculty, grade and
attendance management for faculty and assessment capabilities to assist us in maintaining quality. Pearson eCollege hosts the software for us in
its data center to allow us to efficiently scale the applications to meet the needs of our growing student population. Access to our systems is
provided through our student portals, an extension of our individual university websites. These portals are
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dynamic destinations for students to securely access personal information and services and also serve as vehicles for student communications,
activities and student support services.

Internal administration

We employ a proprietary CRM system for lead management, document management, workflow, analytics and reporting. Our CRM suite
enables rapid response to new leads. We believe our CRM system is able to support the needs of our business for the foreseeable future. We also
utilize an online application portal to accept, integrate and process student applications.

We utilize CampusVue, a student information system provided by Campus Management Corp., to manage student data (including grades,
attendance, status and financial aid) and to generate periodic management reports. This system interfaces with our learning management system.

Infrastructure

Our core infrastructure and servers are located in a secure data center at our corporate headquarters. All of our servers are on a scalable and
redundant meshed network. All systems and their associated data are included in a backup and recovery plan. We currently use industry standard
servers and related equipment. We also have a disaster recovery plan in place.

Student Community and Activities
Athletics

Our athletic teams at Ashford University compete as members of the Midwest Collegiate Conference and the NAIA. We field teams as the
Ashford University Saints in men's baseball, basketball, bowling, cross country, golf, soccer, tennis and track and field, and in women's
basketball, bowling, cross country, golf, soccer, softball, track and field, tennis and volleyball.

Student organizations and activities

Our students have the ability to participate in a wide range of social and recreational activities and organizations, including Ashford
University's student-run newspaper and interest groups ranging from choir and fine arts to cheerleading. Additionally, we periodically have
influential corporate, political and academic leaders on campus to speak to students on a variety of topical issues.

Graduation

Ashford University held three ceremonies on campus in 2010 for students graduating from our online and campus-based programs. In the
three combined ceremonies, we hosted approximately 4,800 family members and guests of 1,305 attending graduates. Of the students in
attendance, approximately 95% were graduating from online programs. We believe the opportunity to attend a traditional graduation ceremony
on campus is an important component of recognizing our online students for their achievements. It also provides online students with the
opportunity to further develop their connection to us and to our broader student population.

Employees
As of December 31, 2010, we had approximately 3,000 full time and adjunct faculty members. Our adjunct faculty are part-time employees
and we engage them on a course-by-course basis. Adjunct faculty are compensated a fixed amount per course, which varies among faculty

members based on each individual's experience and background. In addition to teaching assignments, adjunct faculty may also be asked to serve
on student committees, such as comprehensive examination and dissertation committees, or assist with course development.
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As of December 31, 2010, we also employed more than 3,900 non-faculty staff in university services, academic advising and academic
support, enrollment services, university administration, financial aid, information technology, human resources, corporate accounting, finance
and other administrative functions. None of our employees is a party to any collective bargaining or similar agreement with us.

Competition

The postsecondary education market is highly fragmented and competitive, with no private or public institution representing a significant
market share. We compete primarily with public and private degree-granting regionally accredited colleges and universities. Many colleges and
universities enroll working adults in addition to traditional 18 to 24 year-old students. In addition, many of those colleges and universities offer a
variety of distance education and online initiatives.

We believe that the competitive factors in the postsecondary education market include the following:

reputation of the college or university among students and employers;

qualified and experienced faculty;

program costs;

relevant, practical and accredited program offerings;

regulatory approvals;

convenient, flexible and dependable access to programs and classes;

relative marketing and selling effectiveness;

the time necessary to earn a degree; and

level of student support services.

We expect to encounter increased competition as a result of new entrants to the online education market, including traditional colleges and
universities that had not previously offered online education programs.

Intellectual Property

Intellectual property is important to our business. We rely on a combination of patents, copyrights, trademarks, service marks, trade secrets,
domain names and agreements with third parties to protect our proprietary rights. In many instances, our course content is produced for us by
faculty and other content experts under work-for-hire agreements pursuant to which we own the course content in return for a fixed development
fee. In certain limited cases, we license course content from third parties on a royalty fee basis.

We have trademark and service mark registrations and pending applications in the United States and select foreign jurisdictions. We also
own domain name rights to www.ashford.com, www.ashford.edu, www.ashforduniversity.edu, www.rockies.edu and
www.universityoftherockies.com, as well as other words and phrases important to our business. We have also applied for patent protection in the
United States for our Constellation technology.
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Environmental Matters

We believe our facilities are in compliance with federal, state and local laws and regulations that have been enacted or adopted regulating
the discharge of materials into the environment, or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment. Compliance with these laws and
regulations has not had, and is not expected to have, a material effect on our capital expenditures, results of operations or competitive position.

Financial Information about Segments and Geographic Areas

We operate our business in one reportable segment, and we have no foreign operations or assets located outside of the United States. For
information about our revenues from external customers, measures of profits and losses and total assets, see our consolidated financial
statements which are included elsewhere in this report.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The names of our executive officers and their ages, titles and biographies as of February 1, 2011, are set forth below:

Name Age Position

Andrew S. Clark 45 CEO and President and Director

Daniel J. Devine 46 Executive Vice President/Chief Financial Officer

Jane McAuliffe 44 Executive Vice President/Chief Academic Officer

Rodney T. Sheng 44 Executive Vice President/Chief Administrative Officer
Ross L. Woodard 45 Senior Vice President/Chief Marketing Officer

Charlene Dackerman 50 Senior Vice President of Human Resources

Thomas Ashbrook 46 Senior Vice President/Chief Information Officer

Diane L. Thompson 55 Senior Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel
Douglas C. Abts 37 Senior Vice President/Strategy and Corporate Development

Our executive officers are appointed by, and serve at the discretion of, our board of directors. Each executive officer is a full-time
employee. There is no family relationship between any of our executive officers or directors.

Andrew S. Clark has served as our Chief Executive Officer and a director since November 2003 and as our President since February 2009.
Mr. Clark also served from March 2005 to December 2008 on the Board of Trustees for Ashford University and currently serves on the
University of the Rockies Board of Trustees, which he joined in September 2007. Prior to joining us in November 2003, Mr. Clark consulted
with several private equity firms examining the postsecondary education sector. Prior to 2003, Mr. Clark worked for Career Education
Corporation as Divisional Vice President of Operations and Chief Operating Officer for American InterContinental University in 2002. From
1992 to 2001, Mr. Clark worked for Apollo Group, Inc. (University of Phoenix), where he served in various management roles, culminating in
his position as Regional Vice President for the Mid-West region from 1999 to 2001. Mr. Clark earned an M.B.A. from the University of Phoenix
and a B.A. from Pacific Lutheran University.

Daniel J. Devine joined us in January 2004 and currently serves as our Executive Vice President/Chief Financial Officer. Prior to
Mr. Devine's appointment as Executive Vice President/Chief Financial Officer in January 2011, Mr. Devine served as our Senior Vice
President/Chief Financial Officer, from November 2008 until December 2010, and as our Chief Financial Officer, from January 2004 until
November 2008. Mr. Devine has over 20 years of senior finance experience. From March 2002 to December 2003, Mr. Devine served as the
Chief Financial Officer of A-Life Medical. From 1994 to 2000, Mr. Devine served in various management roles for Mitchell International Inc.
culminating in his
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position as Chief Financial Officer from 1998 to 2000. From 1987 to 1993, Mr. Devine served in various management roles for Foster Wheeler
Corporation, culminating in his position of divisional Chief Financial Officer from 1990 to 1993. Mr. Devine earned a B.A. from Drexel
University and is a certified public accountant.

Jane McAuliffe joined us in July 2005 and currently serves as our Executive Vice President/Chief Academic Officer. Prior to
Dr. McAuliffe's appointment as Executive Vice President/Chief Academic Officer in January 2011, Dr. McAuliffe served as our Senior Vice
President/Chief Administrative Officer, from November 2008 until December 2010, and as our Vice President of Academic Affairs, from
September 2007 until November 2008. Dr. McAuliffe also served as Chancellor/President of Ashford University from July 2005 to December
2010. From 2003 to 2005, Dr. McAuliffe served as President of Argosy University/Sarasota Campus in Sarasota, Florida. Prior to 2003,
Dr. McAuliffe served in various management roles including Vice President for Academic Affairs at American InterContinental University in
2002, and prior to that Dean, Associate Dean and Program Director in the College of Education at the University of Phoenix from 1996 to 2002.
Dr. McAuliffe earned a Ph.D., M.A. and B.A. from Arizona State University.

Rodney T. Sheng joined us in January 2004 and currently serves as our Executive Vice President/Chief Administrative Officer. Prior to
Mr. Sheng's appointment as Executive Vice President/Chief Administrative Officer in January 2011, Mr. Sheng served as our Senior Vice
President/Chief Administrative Officer, from November 2008 to December 2010, and as our Vice President of Operations, from January 2004
until November 2008. Mr. Sheng has over 20 years of experience in the postsecondary sector, during which time he has worked for four
different colleges and universities and served in a variety of management roles. From 1995 to 2003, Mr. Sheng worked for Apollo Group, Inc.
(University of Phoenix). From 2000 to 2002, Mr. Sheng served as Vice President/Campus Director and opened two campuses for the University
of Phoenix in the state of Ohio. In 2002, Mr. Sheng was responsible for the marketing and recruitment for 12 learning centers throughout the
Southern California metropolitan area. Mr. Sheng earned an M. A. from the University of Phoenix and a B.A. from San Diego State University.

Ross L. Woodard joined us in June 2004 and has served as our Senior Vice President/Chief Marketing Officer since November 2008. From
June 2004 to February 2005, Mr. Woodard served as our Director of E-Commerce and from March 2005 to October 2008 he served as our Vice
President of Marketing. From June 1992 to May 2004, Mr. Woodard held multiple senior management positions with Road Runner Sports. From
1998 to 2004, Mr. Woodard served as Director of E-Commerce for Road Runner Sports and was responsible for the internet sales and marketing
channel. From 1992 through 1997, Mr. Woodard served in various management roles with Road Runner Sports, including Director of Sales.
From 1989 to 1992, he served as a Regional Manager for Nike, Inc. in San Diego. Mr. Woodard earned a B.A. from San Diego State University.

Charlene Dackerman joined us in September 2004 and has served as our Senior Vice President of Human Resources since November 2008.
From September 2004 to December 2005, Ms. Dackerman served as our Director of Human Resources, and from January 2006 to October 2008,
she served as our Vice President of Human Resources. Ms. Dackerman has worked in the postsecondary sector for over 18 years. From 1986 to
2002, Ms. Dackerman served in various management roles for Kelsey Jenney College, including College Director, Campus Director, Dean and
Director of Admissions. Ms. Dackerman earned an M.S. from National University and a B.S. from Humboldt State University.

Thomas Ashbrook joined us in November 2008 and has served as our Senior Vice President/Chief Information Officer since that time. From
March 2005 to March 2008, Mr. Ashbrook served as the Divisional Information Officer for Fremont Investment & Loan, a California industrial
bank and lending institution, where he led information technology strategy for the residential business. From 2001 to 2005, Mr. Ashbrook served
as the Senior Vice President of Technology Solutions for Fidelity
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National Information Solutions, a subsidiary of Fidelity National Financial. Mr. Ashbrook earned a B.S. from California State University, Long
Beach.

Diane L. Thompson joined us in December 2008 and has served as our Senior Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel since that
time. From September 1997 to November 2008, Ms. Thompson served in various management roles for Apollo Group, Inc. (University of
Phoenix). From November 2000 to February 2006, Ms. Thompson served as Vice President/Counsel for Apollo Group, Inc. (University of
Phoenix) and from March 2006 to November 2008, Ms. Thompson served as Chief Human Resources Officer. From October 1992 to July 1996,
Ms. Thompson served as an attorney in the Pima County Attorney's Office in Tucson Arizona. Ms. Thompson earned a B.A. from St. Cloud
University, an M.A. from Antioch University and a J.D. from the University of Arizona College of Law.

Douglas C. Abts joined us in August 2010 and has served as our Senior Vice President, Strategy and Corporate Development since that
time. Mr. Abts spent seven years at Science Applications International Corporation in San Diego, most recently serving as Corporate Vice
President for Mergers and Acquisitions. He previously held the titles of Vice President for Strategic Development and Business Development
Manager. For six years, Mr. Abts served his country as a member of the United States Navy. He was a SEAL Team Operations Officer and was
ranked as the top Lieutenant on a 250-person SEAL Team. Mr. Abts holds an M.B.A. from Harvard Business School and a B.A. in
Communication from Stanford University.

In June 2003, Mr. Clark acquired and subsequently hired the management to operate Foundation College, an education provider which
conducted campus-based training programs through the California Employment Training Panel. From November 2003 to August 2004,
Ms. Dackerman served as President and Chief Financial Officer of Foundation College. Due to a significant decrease in state funding, the
business filed for bankruptcy in December 2005.

Additional Information

We were incorporated in Delaware in May 1999 under the name TeleUniversity, Inc. and we changed our name to Bridgepoint
Education, Inc. in February 2004. Our web site is located at www.bridgepointeducation.com. We make available free of charge on our web site
our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or
furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). The reference to our website is intended to be an inactive textual reference and
the contents of our website are not intended to be incorporated into this report.
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REGULATION

Ashford University and the University of the Rockies are accredited institutions of higher education which are subject to extensive
regulation by a variety of agencies. These agencies include the Higher Learning Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and
Schools (the "Higher Learning Commission"), the agency that accredits our institutions, thereby providing an independent assessment of
educational quality. Our institutions are also subject to regulation by educational licensing authorities in states where our institutions are
physically located or conduct certain operations. State authorization, or exemption from it, in the states where a school is physically located is
also a prerequisite for eligibility to participate in Title IV programs. We are also subject to regulation by the U.S. Department of Education (the
"Department") due to our participation in federal student financial aid programs authorized by Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as
amended (the "Higher Education Act"), which we refer to in this report as Title IV programs. To participate in Title IV programs, a school must
obtain and maintain authorization by the state education agency or agencies where it is physically located, be accredited by an accrediting
agency recognized by the Department and be certified by the Department as an eligible institution. Certification by the Department carries with
it an extensive set of regulations. The laws, regulations and standards of the Department, the Higher Learning Commission and state agencies
address the vast majority of our operations.

Accreditation

Ashford University and the University of the Rockies have been institutionally accredited since 1950 and 2003, respectively, by the Higher
Learning Commission. The Higher Learning Commission is one of six regional accrediting agencies that accredits colleges and universities in
the United States. Most traditional, public and private non-profit, degree-granting colleges and universities are accredited by one of these six
agencies. Accreditation by the Higher Learning Commission is recognized by the Department as a reliable indicator of educational quality.
Accreditation is a private, non-governmental process for evaluating the quality of an educational institution and its programs and an institution's
effectiveness in carrying out its mission in areas including integrity, student performance, curriculum, educational effectiveness, faculty,
physical resources, administrative capability and resources, financial stability and governance. To be recognized by the Department, an
accrediting agency, among other things, must adopt specific standards to be maintained by educational institutions, conduct peer-review
evaluations of institutions' compliance with those standards, monitor compliance through periodic institutional reporting and the periodic
renewal process and publicly designate those institutions that meet the agency's criteria. An accredited institution is subject to periodic review by
its accrediting agency to determine whether it continues to meet the performance, integrity, quality and other standards required for
accreditation. An institution that is determined not to meet the standards of accreditation may have its accreditation revoked or not renewed.

Evaluations and renewals of accreditation

The Higher Learning Commission renewed Ashford University's accreditation in 2006 for the maximum period of ten years. The renewal
followed a review process, including a change in ownership review resulting from our acquisition of the university in 2005, as well as a
comprehensive evaluation in connection with the regularly scheduled renewal process following the university's previous ten-year grant of
accreditation in 1995. In connection with this renewal, the Higher Learning Commission also approved (i) the university's online delivery of all
programs already approved for campus-based offering, without seeking any further approval, (ii) an additional graduate degree (the Master of
Arts in Organizational Management) in both campus-based and online delivery modalities and (iii) the university's awarding of up to 99 credits
to students from transfer sources, including both credits earned at other educational institutions and through assessments of college-level
learning experiences acquired outside the traditional university classroom. The Higher Learning Commission also directed the
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university to submit progress reports in June 2007 and June 2008 regarding success in meeting its enrollment, revenue and expense projections
and in making capital improvements at the Iowa campus. Those reports were timely filed and the university was notified in October 2008 that no
further financial reporting is required. One outcome of the comprehensive evaluation included the scheduling of a visit to Ashford University's
campus for April 2010 to focus on a review of (a) institutional finances, (b) effectiveness and outcomes of current experiential learning formats
and transfer credit policies and (c) the impact on the Clinton campus of campus-based programs offered online.

In April 2010, Ashford University hosted a visiting team from the Higher Learning Commission which conducted a focused visit to
evaluate (1) effectiveness and outcomes of current experiential learning formats and transfer credit and (2) student academic load. In June 2010,
the Board of Trustees of the Higher Learning Commission confirmed the successful completion of the focused visit and recommended a review
of Ashford University's transfer policy and practice and online credit load, including a full and representative sample of the student body, during
the commission's next visit.

The University of the Rockies was granted its initial accreditation from the Higher Learning Commission in 2003 for a period of five years.
Its accreditation was renewed by the Higher Learning Commission in 2008 for a period of seven years, with a comprehensive evaluation
scheduled during the 2015-2016 academic year. The renewal followed a review process, including a change of ownership review resulting from
our acquisition of the university in 2007, as well as a comprehensive evaluation in connection with the regularly scheduled renewal process
following the university's previous five year grant of accreditation in 2003. The university has been scheduled to report to the Higher Learning
Commission by May 31, 2011, concerning institutional planning.

In November 2009, as a result of our initial public offering, both Ashford University and the University of the Rockies participated in a
change of control accreditation visit from the Higher Learning Commission. The visiting team recommended to the Higher Learning
Commission that both institutions (i) continue to meet the commission's eligibility requirements and accreditation criteria and (ii) should receive
their next comprehensive evaluations in 2014-2015, per the commission policy that states an institution must have a comprehensive review no
later than five years following a change in control visit. In May 2010, the recommendation of the new comprehensive visit dates was placed in
front of a review committee from the Higher Learning Commission based upon the commission policy that if a visiting team is recommending
five or fewer years for the next comprehensive visit, the decision must be reviewed by a review committee. The review committee agreed with
the recommendations of the visiting team and determined that each institution would receive its next comprehensive review in five years.

Following the on-site focused visit to the University of the Rockies following our initial public offering to verify that the institution
continues to meet Higher Learning Commission requirements, the Higher Learning Commission advised the University of the Rockies that it
could submit a request to offer three new graduate programs. The university submitted the request and received confirmation from the Higher
Learning Commission in December 2010, that the offering of the new graduate programs was approved.

Accreditation by the Higher Learning Commission is important to our institutions for the following reasons:

it establishes comprehensive criteria designed to promote educational quality and effectiveness;

it represents a public acknowledgement by a recognized independent agency of the quality and effectiveness of our
institutions and their programs;

it facilitates the transferability of educational credits when our students transfer to or apply for graduate school at other
regionally accredited colleges and universities; and
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the Department relies on accreditation as an indicator of educational quality and effectiveness in determining a school's
eligibility to participate in Title IV programs, as do certain corporate and government sponsors in connection with tuition
reimbursement and other student aid programs.

We believe that regional accreditation is viewed favorably by certain students when choosing a school, by other schools when evaluating
transfer and graduate school applications and by certain employers when evaluating the credentials of candidates for employment.

In addition, by approving Ashford University's offerings of approved campus-based programs through online delivery modalities and by
approving increased transfer credit allowance and prior learning assessments, accreditation supports our mission of serving students by
providing innovative online programs and allowing student accessibility through increased transfer of credit for prior traditional and
non-traditional learning.

Changes to Higher Learning Commission jurisdiction

In June 2010, the Board of Trustees of the Higher Learning Commission adopted revised bylaws which outline the basis on which an
institution may claim that it is within the Higher Learning Commission's jurisdiction. The revised bylaws provide, subject to specified grace
periods and grandfathering provisions, that an institution must be incorporated within a state in the 19-state north central region and also have a
"substantial presence"” in the north central region, as defined by commission policy, to be considered within the commission's jurisdiction. In
November 2010, the Higher Learning Commission adopted a policy which specifies that an institution would be considered to have a
"substantial presence" in the north central region only if the institution can demonstrate to the commission that its operations are substantially in
the north central region. The institution must provide evidence that the majority of its educational administration and activity, business
operations and executive and administrative leadership are located or operating within the north central region and that it has at least one campus
or additional location, as applicable, located in the north central region.

The Higher Learning Commission will evaluate an institution that was accredited by the commission as of July 1, 2010 (such as Ashford
University and the University of the Rockies), against the "substantial presence" definition at the time of the commission's next comprehensive
evaluation of such institution, except where the commission has information to indicate that an institution does not meet this requirement and
initiates, subsequent to July 1, 2012, an inquiry to review jurisdiction. Ashford University and the University of the Rockies are each scheduled
for their next comprehensive evaluations in 2014-2015.

Ashford University and the University of the Rockies have campuses in, are incorporated in, and have business operations, administration
and leadership in Iowa and Colorado, respectively, both of which states are located in the north central region. However, because both
institutions also have business operations, administration and leadership located outside of the north central region, it is uncertain whether the
Higher Learning Commission would determine that these institutions have a substantial presence in the north central region under the definition
in the adopted new policy. The Higher Learning Commission has indicated that it intends to develop a more detailed plan for reviewing
compliance with the substantial presence requirement. If the Higher Learning Commission were to determine that Ashford University and the
University of the Rockies do not have a substantial presence in the north central region and are outside the commission's jurisdiction, the
institutions would be subject to reconsideration of their affiliated status with the Higher Learning Commission. If the institutions were no longer
accredited by an accrediting body recognized by the Department, they would be ineligible to participate in Title IV programs until they obtained
accreditation by another accrediting body recognized by the Department, at which time they would need to file an application with the
Department for reinstatement.

24

31



Edgar Filing: Bridgepoint Education Inc - Form 10-K

Table of Contents
Potential change in primary institutional accreditor for Ashford University

In September 2010, we announced that Ashford University had initiated the process of seeking regional accreditation from the Accrediting
Commission for Senior Colleges and Universities of the Western Association of Schools and Colleges ("WASC"). Ashford University is
working collaboratively with both WASC and the Higher Learning Commission to facilitate the change in the University's institutional
accrediting body. During the process, Ashford University will continue to maintain its current regional accreditation with the Higher Learning
Commission. Prior to initiating the accreditation process with WASC, Ashford University notified the Department of its intention to change its
primary accreditor.

The decision to seek WASC accreditation reflects careful analysis performed by the institution's faculty and administration, taking into
account the dynamics of its student enrollment, its faculty and staff profile, and the development of its programmatic offerings. Based on this
analysis, and taking into account how the institution's academic and administrative activity is becoming concentrated in California, Ashford
University's governing board concluded that it is appropriate for the institution to operate under the auspices of WASC, which is the regional
accrediting body having jurisdiction over California institutions.

WASC has established procedures through which institutions may move through the stages leading to accreditation. To begin the
accreditation process, Ashford University must first submit an application to enable WASC to verify that the institution meets all of WASC's
eligibility criteria. Ashford University submitted this application in January 2011. An Eligibility Review Committee ("ERC") panel, comprised
of peer reviewers appointed by WASC, will then review the eligibility application. If the ERC panel determines that Ashford University meets
WASC's eligibility criteria, the institution must next submit an application for accreditation, together with supporting narrative and
documentation.

Upon receipt of the application for accreditation and related materials, WASC will appoint a site visit team and schedule one or more visits,
the purpose of which is to validate the information provided in the institution's application, particularly its compliance with WASC standards.
Prior to the submission of the final team report to WASC, Ashford University will be given an opportunity to review the report for correction of
errors of fact and to prepare a written response to the final team report, which will be provided to WASC for consideration along with the report.
If upon review of the application and supporting documentation, including the team report and the institution's response, Ashford University is
found to be in substantial compliance with all of WASC's standards, WASC may grant initial accreditation, typically with a comprehensive
review cycle of five years. Depending on the circumstances, WASC may also grant initial accreditation with requirements for interim reports,
special visits or both. If initial accreditation from WASC is secured, then Ashford University will commence the process of redesignating its
primary institutional accreditor from the Higher Learning Commission to WASC.

Authorization by U.S. Congress of Title IV Programs

The U.S. Congress must reauthorize the Higher Education Act on a periodic basis, usually every five to six years. It was reauthorized most
recently in August 2008, extending Title IV programs through September 2014. The U.S. Congress may propose and pass revisions to the
Higher Education Act between reauthorizations, subject to approval by the President. Also, the U.S. Congress determines the funding levels for
Title IV programs annually through the budget and appropriations process.

On March 30, 2010, the U.S. Congress passed, and President Obama signed into law, the Health Care and Education Affordability Act of
2010, or HCEAA. Among other things, the HCEAA amended the Higher Education Act to prohibit new federally guaranteed loans from being
made under the FFEL Program, beginning on July 1, 2010, at which time institutions were required to certify loans through
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the Federal Direct Loan Program rather than through the FFEL Program. As of July 1, 2010, both of our institutions had fully transitioned to the
Federal Direct Loan Program.

Department Regulation of Title IV Programs

To be eligible to participate in Title IV programs, an institution must comply with the Higher Education Act and regulations thereunder that
are administered by the Department. Among other things, the law and regulations require that an institution (i) be licensed or authorized to offer
its educational programs by the states in which it is physically located, (ii) maintain institutional accreditation by an accrediting agency
recognized for such purposes by the Department and (iii) be certified to participate in Title IV programs by the Department. Our institutions'
participation in Title IV programs subjects us to extensive oversight and review pursuant to regulations promulgated by the Department. Those
regulations are subject from time to time to revision and amendment by the Department. The Department's interpretation of its regulations
likewise is subject to change. As a result, it is difficult to predict how Title IV program requirements will be applied in all circumstances.

Recent Department rulemaking

In June 2010, the Department published in the Federal Register a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking ("June NPRM") related to Title IV
program integrity issues and foreign school issues. The June NPRM addressed each of the 14 topics discussed at the negotiated rulemaking
sessions held in November 2009, December 2009 and January 2010, including, among others, the following: the definition of a high school
diploma for the purposes of establishing institutional eligibility to participate in Title IV programs and student eligibility to receive Title IV aid;
standards regarding the payment of incentive compensation; establishing requirements for institutions to submit information on program
completers for programs that prepare students for gainful employment in recognized occupations; revising the definition of what constitutes a
"substantial misrepresentation" made by an institution; standards regarding the sufficiency of a state's authorization of an institution for the
purpose of establishing an institution's eligibility to participate in Title IV programs; and the definition of a credit hour for purposes of
determining program eligibility for Title IV student financial aid.

In July 2010, the Department published in the Federal Register another Notice of Proposed Rulemaking ("July NPRM") related to a
definition of "gainful employment" for purposes of determining whether certain educational programs comply with the Title IV requirement of
preparing students for gainful employment in a recognized occupation.

In September 2010, the Department announced that final regulations regarding the 14 topics addressed in the June NPRM and July NPRM
would be published in the Federal Register in two phases:

Final regulations for all topics other than gainful employment would be published on or around November 1, 2010, and
would go into effect on July 1, 2011;

Final regulations for sections of the proposed gainful employment rules unrelated to a program's eligibility to receive federal
student aid (e.g., rules regarding graduation rate and job placement disclosures and approval of new programs) would also be

published on or around November 1, 2010, and would go into effect on July 1, 2011; and

Final regulations for sections of the proposed gainful employment rules related to a program's eligibility to receive federal
student aid will be published in early 2011 and would go into effect on July 1, 2012, as contemplated in the July NPRM.

In October 2010, the Department published in the Federal Register, consistent with the Department's announcement in September 2010,
final regulations addressing all 14 topics addressed in the June NPRM and July NPRM, other than sections of the proposed gainful employment

rules related
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to a program's eligibility to receive federal student aid. The final regulations published in the Federal Register are effective July 1, 2011, except
for rules pertaining to verification and updating of student aid application information, which are effective July 1, 2012.

Incentive compensation

The Higher Education Act prohibits an institution from making any commission, bonus or other incentive payments based directly or
indirectly on success in securing enrollments or financial aid to any persons or entities engaged in student recruiting or admissions activities, or
in making decisions about the award of student financial assistance. Under current Department regulations, there are 12 "safe harbor" provisions
which specify certain activities and arrangements that an institution may carry out without violating the prohibition against incentive
compensation reflected in the Higher Education Act, including, among others, the following:

an institution may make up to two adjustments (upward or downward) to a covered employee's salary or fixed hourly wage
rate within any 12-month period without the adjustment being considered an incentive payment, provided that no adjustment

is based solely on the number of students recruited, admitted, enrolled or awarded financial aid;

a covered employee may be compensated based upon students successfully completing their educational programs; and

the incentive payment prohibition in the Higher Education Act does not apply to managerial and supervisory employees who
do not directly manage or supervise employees who are directly involved in recruiting or admissions activities, or the
awarding of Title IV funds.

In the final regulations published in October 2010, the Department eliminated all 12 safe harbors, effective July 1, 2011, taking the position
that any commission, bonus or other incentive payment based in any part, directly or indirectly, on securing enrollments or awarding financial
aid is inconsistent with the incentive payment prohibition in the Higher Education Act. The Department contends that institutions do not need to
rely on safe harbors to protect compensation that complies with the Higher Education Act, and that institutions can readily determine if a
payment or compensation is permissible under the Higher Education Act by analyzing (1) whether it is a commission, bonus or other incentive
payment, defined as an award of a sum of money or something of value (other than a fixed salary or wages), paid to or given to a person or
entity for services rendered, and (2) whether the commission, bonus or other incentive payment is provided to any covered person based in any
part, directly or indirectly, upon success in securing enrollments or the award of financial aid, which are defined as activities engaged in for the
purpose of the admission or matriculation of students for any period of time or the award of financial aid. A covered person is any person
engaged in student recruitment or admission activity or in making decisions about the award of financial aid, which is defined as any employee
who undertakes recruiting or admitting of students or the award of Title IV funds, and any higher level employee with responsibility for
recruitment or admission of students, or making decisions about awarding Title IV funds.

The regulation states that the prohibition does not apply to fixed salary and wages, and the Department maintains in the preamble
accompanying the publication of the regulation that an institution can still make merit-based adjustments to employee compensation, provided
that such adjustments are not based in any part, directly or indirectly, upon success in securing enrollments or the award of financial aid. Among
other examples cited in the preamble accompanying the regulation, the Department states that (1) an institution may maintain a hierarchy of
recruitment personnel with different levels of responsibility, with salary scales that reflect an added amount of responsibility, (2) an institution
may promote or demote recruitment personnel based on merit and (3) an institution may make a compensation decision based on seniority or
length of employment, provided that in each case
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compensation decisions are consistent with the Higher Education Act's prohibition on incentive compensation.

We will have to modify some of our compensation practices as a result of the elimination of the safe harbors. Such a change could affect
our ability to compensate our enrollment advisors and other employees and executives in a manner that appropriately reflects their relative merit,
which in turn could (1) reduce the effectiveness of our employees and make it more difficult for us to attract and retain staff with the desired
talent and motivation to succeed and (2) impair our ability to sustain and grow our business and enrollments at our institutions.

Gainful employment

Under the Higher Education Act, schools operated on a for-profit basis are eligible to participate in Title IV programs only to the extent that
their educational programs lead to gainful employment in a recognized occupation, with the limited exception of qualified programs leading to a
bachelor's degree in liberal arts.

Under current law, an institution generally is required to obtain approval of new degree-granting educational programs. Under the final
regulations published in October 2010 and effective July 1, 2011, if a for-profit institution seeks to provide a new program (as defined by
applicable Department regulations), whether or not degree-granting, that prepares students for gainful employment in a recognized occupation, it
must submit a notice to the Department at least 90 days before the first day of class of such program. The notice must describe how the
institution determined the need for the new program and how the program was designed to meet local market needs, or for an online program,
regional or national market needs. The institution must also describe how the program was reviewed or approved by, or developed in
conjunction with, business advisory committees, program integrity boards, public or private oversight or regulatory agencies and businesses that
would likely employ graduates of the program. An institution is not required to submit employer affirmations or enrollment projections for a
program. The institution must include in its notice that the program has been approved by its accrediting agency or is otherwise included in the
institution's accreditation by its accrediting agency, as well as a description of any wage analysis it may have performed that is related to the new
program. Unless otherwise required by the Department to obtain approval for the new program, an institution that provides a notice may proceed
with its plans to offer the new program based on its determination that the program is an eligible program that prepares students for gainful
employment in a recognized occupation. However, if a concern or need for additional information about the new program is identified by
Department staff after receiving notice of the new program, the Department may alert the institution, at least 30 days before the first day of class,
that the Department must approve the program for Title IV purposes. If any new program submitted by our institutions is identified as being
subject to Department review for Title IV purposes, it could result in difficulties or delays in introducing the program, which could have a
negative impact on our growth and enrollments.

For each program leading to gainful employment in a recognized occupation, the final regulations also require institutions to provide
prospective students with information concerning the occupation that the program prepares students to enter; the program's on-time graduation
rate; the tuition and fees it charges a student for completing the program within normal time, along with the costs of books, supplies, room, and
board; the placement rate for students completing the program, and the median loan debt incurred by students who completed the program.
Institutions must also provide the Department with information that will allow determination of student debt levels and incomes after program
completion. It is unclear at this time the level of administrative burden, or effect on growth and enrollments at our institutions, that may result
from the new reporting and disclosure requirements.
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The Department has yet to adopt final gainful employment regulations regarding program eligibility. In the July NPRM, the Department
proposed to assess whether a program leads to gainful employment by applying two tests, including a debt-to-income test and a repayment rate
test:

Under the debt-to-income test, the Department would annually calculate (1) the ratio of the annual loan payment for the
program to the average annual earnings of the students who completed the program and (2) the ratio of the annual loan
payment for the program to the discretionary income of students who completed the program. The annual loan payment
would be calculated using the median loan debt upon graduation of all students who completed the program in the three most
recently completed award years prior to the earnings year and using standard repayment terms (i.e., a 10-year repayment
schedule and the current annual interest rate on Federal unsubsidized loans). Loan debt would include Title IV loans (except
Parent PLUS loans) and any private educational loans or debt obligations arising from institutional financing plans, but
would not include any student loan that a student incurred at prior institutions or subsequent institutions unless the
institutions are under common ownership or control, or are otherwise related entities. Average annual earnings would be
calculated by the Department using actual, average annual earnings obtained from the Social Security Administration or
another federal agency for the students who completed the program in the most recent three-fiscal year period. Discretionary
income would be calculated based on the difference between average annual earnings and 150 percent of the most current

Poverty Guideline for a single person in the continental United States. The 2010 Poverty Guideline was $10,830.

Under the repayment rate test, the Department would annually calculate a loan repayment rate by dividing (1) the original
outstanding principal balance of all loans repaid by (2) the original outstanding principal balance of all FFEL and Direct
loans which entered repayment in the prior four federal fiscal years and are owed by students who attended the program
(i.e., not just borrowers who completed the program). A loan would be counted as repaid if the borrower: (1) made loan
payments during the most recent fiscal year that reduced the outstanding principal balance; (2) made qualifying payments on
the loan under the Public Service Loan Forgiveness Program; or (3) paid the loan in full, excluding loans paid in full through
consolidation, unless and until the consolidated loan is paid in full. A loan would not be counted as repaid if the borrower is
meeting its legal obligations, but is not actively repaying the loan, such as a loan in deferment or forbearance or on an
income-contingent repayment plan, and paying only interest. The ratio excludes loan amounts for borrowers in military or
in-school deferment, and borrowers entering repayment in the final six months of the most recent federal fiscal year. The
original outstanding principal balance would be the balance on FFEL and Direct loans, including capitalized interest, on the
date those loans entered repayment.

Based on the program's performance under these two tests, the program may be fully eligible, have restricted eligibility or be ineligible to
participate in Title IV programs, as follows:

Fully eligible programs would have either (1) at least a 45% loan repayment rate, or (2) graduates with a debt-to-income
ratio of less than 20% of discretionary income or 8% of average annual earnings. Unless a fully eligible program passes both
benchmarks, institutions would have to disclose the program's repayment rates and debt-to-income ratios and alert current

and prospective students that they may have difficulty repaying loans obtained for attending that program.

Ineligible programs would have a less than 35% loan repayment rate, and graduates with a debt-to-income ratio above 30%
of discretionary income and 12% of average annual earnings. An ineligible program may not offer Title IV aid to new
students, but can provide aid to current students for the remainder of the award year in which the program became ineligible
and the
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following award year. The institution would have to disclose the program's repayment rates and debt-to-income ratios and
alert students that they may have difficulty repaying loans obtained for attending that program.

All other programs would be restricted programs. The proposed regulations would limit the enrollment of Title IV recipients
in restricted programs to the average number enrolled during the prior three award years, require the institution to
demonstrate employer support for the program, warn consumers and current students that they may have difficulty repaying
loans obtained for attending the program and provide the most recent debt measures for the program. Institutions would
demonstrate employer support for a program by providing documentation from employers not affiliated with the institution
affirming that the curriculum of the program aligns with the recognized occupations at those employers' businesses, and that
there are projected job vacancies or there is expected demand for those occupations at those businesses. The number and
locations of the businesses for which affirmation is required must be commensurate with the anticipated size of the program.

Institutions with one or more ineligible or restricted programs would be subject to provisional certification. Under the proposed regulations,
programs may not be found ineligible to participate in Title IV programs on account of the proposed new gainful employment regulations until
the 2012-2013 award year. The proposed regulations would also establish a transition year during the award year beginning July 1, 2012 which
would cap the number of programs which may be deemed ineligible.

If such program eligibility rules are adopted by the Department as proposed, we may need to modify or eliminate some of the educational
programs at our institutions, or delay the introduction of new programs, which could have a negative impact on our growth and enrollments. The
Department is expected to publish final gainful employment regulations regarding program eligibility in early 2011, which regulations are
expected to become effective July 1, 2012.

State authorization

To be eligible to participate in Title IV programs, an institution must be licensed or authorized to offer its educational programs by the
states in which it is physically located, in accordance with the Department's regulations. Ashford University's campus is located in Iowa and is
authorized to offer postsecondary programs in Iowa. The institution is exempt from having to register as a postsecondary school in the state of
Iowa based primarily on its accreditation from the Higher Learning Commission. The University of Rockies is located in Colorado and is
authorized in the state of Colorado based in part on its accreditation from the Higher Learning Commission. The final regulations published in
October 2010, which take effect on July 1, 2011, impose new requirements for an institution to be considered "legally authorized" in a state,
which is a requirement for the institution to remain eligible to participate in Title IV programs. The final regulation provides that the Secretary of
Education would consider an institution to be legally authorized by a state if, among other things, it meets one of the following requirements:

the state establishes the institution by name as an educational institution through a charter, statute, constitutional provision or
other action issued by an appropriate state agency or state entity and is authorized to operate educational programs beyond

secondary education, including programs leading to a degree or certificate;

the institution complies with any applicable state approval or licensure requirements, except that the state may exempt the
institution from any such requirement based on (1) the institution's accreditation by one or more accrediting agencies
recognized by the Secretary of Education or (2) the institution being in operation for at least 20 years; and
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the state has a process, applicable to all institutions except tribal and federal institutions, to review and appropriately act on
complaints concerning the institution and to enforce applicable state laws.

The Department stated when it published the final regulations that it will not publish a list of states that meet, or fail to meet, the above
requirements, and it is uncertain how the department will interpret these requirements in each state. The Department also stated that institutions
unable to obtain state authorization in a state under one of the above-mentioned sets of requirements may request a one-year extension of the
effective date of the regulation to July 1, 2012, and if necessary, an additional one-year extension of the effective date to July 1, 2013. To receive
an extension of the effective date, an institution must obtain from the state an explanation of how a one-year extension will permit the state to
modify its procedures to comply with the regulations.

The final regulations also provide that if an institution is offering postsecondary education through distance or correspondence education to
students in a state in which it is not physically located or in which it is otherwise subject to state jurisdiction as determined by the state, the
institution must meet any state requirements for it to be legally offering postsecondary distance or correspondence education to students in that
state. Additionally, upon request by the Department, an institution must be able to document that it has the applicable state approval. Although
our institutions have a process for evaluating the compliance of their online educational programs with state requirements regarding distance and
correspondence learning, and have experienced no significant restrictions on their educational activities to date as a result of such requirements,
state regulatory requirements for online education vary among the states, are not well developed in many states, are imprecise or unclear in some
states and are subject to change. For more information, see "State Education Licensure and Regulation" below. Moreover, it is also unclear
whether and to what extent state agencies may augment or change their regulations in this area as a result of new Department regulations and
increased scrutiny. Any failure to comply with state requirements, or any new or modified regulations, could result in our inability to enroll
students or receive Title IV funds for students in those states and could result in restrictions on our growth and enrollments.

Administrative capability

Department regulations specify extensive criteria by which an institution must establish that it has the requisite administrative capability to
participate in Title IV programs. To meet the administrative capability standards, an institution must, among other things:

comply with all applicable Title IV program requirements;

have an adequate number of qualified personnel to administer Title IV programs;

have acceptable standards for measuring the satisfactory academic progress of its students;

have procedures in place for awarding, disbursing and safeguarding Title IV funds and for maintaining required records;

administer Title IV programs with adequate checks and balances in its system of internal control over financial reporting;

not be, and not have any principal or affiliate who is, debarred or suspended from federal contracting or engaging in activity
that is cause for debarment or suspension;

provide financial aid counseling to its students;

refer to the OIG any credible information indicating that any student, parent, employee, third-party servicer or other agent of
the institution has engaged in any fraud or other illegal conduct involving Title IV programs;
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timely submit all required reports and financial statements; and

not otherwise appear to lack administrative capability.
Financial responsibility

The Higher Education Act and Department regulations establish standards of financial responsibility which an institution must satisfy to
participate in Title IV programs. The Department evaluates compliance with these standards annually upon receipt of an institution's annual
audited financial statements and also when an institution applies to the Department to reestablish its eligibility to participate in Title IV programs
following a change in ownership. One financial responsibility standard is based on the institution's composite score, which is derived from a
formula established by the Department that is a weighted average of three financial ratios:

equity ratio, which measures the institution's capital resources, financial viability and ability to borrow;

primary reserve ratio, which measures the institution's ability to support current operations from expendable resources; and

net income ratio, which measures the institution's ability to operate at a profit or within its means.

The formula defines each of the three ratios and assigns a strength factor and weighting percentage to each ratio. The weighted scores for
the three ratios are then added to produce a composite score for the institution. The composite score is a number between negative 1.0 and
positive 3.0. It must be at least 1.5 for the institution to be deemed financially responsible without the need for further Department financial
oversight. In addition to having an acceptable composite score, an institution must, among other things, provide the administrative resources
necessary to comply with Title IV program requirements, meet all of its financial obligations (including required refunds to students and any
Title IV liabilities and debts), be current in its debt payments and not receive an adverse, qualified or disclaimed opinion by its accountants in its
audited financial statements.

In the third quarter of 2010, consistent with our internal calculations, the Department notified us that Ashford University received a
composite score of 2.9 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, and that the University of the Rockies received a composite score of 1.8 for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, in each case satisfying the composite score requirement of the Department's financial responsibility
test, which institutions must satisfy in order to participate in Title IV programs.

We expect the composite scores for Ashford University and the University of the Rockies both to be 3.0 for the year ended December 31,
2010. However, this is subject to determination by the Department once it receives and reviews our audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2010.

Return of Title IV funds for students who withdraw

If a student who has received Title IV funds withdraws, the institution must determine the amount of Title IV program funds the student has
earned, pursuant to applicable regulations. If the student withdraws during the first 60% of any payment period (which, for our undergraduate
online students, typically is a 20-week term consisting of four five-week courses and, for our campus-based students, is a 16-week semester), the
amount of Title IV funds that the student has earned is equal to a pro rata portion of the funds the student received or for which the student
would otherwise be eligible for the payment period. If the student withdraws after the 60% threshold, then the student is deemed to have earned
100% of the Title IV funds received. If the student has not earned all of the Title IV funds disbursed, the institution must return the unearned
funds to the appropriate lender or the Department
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in a timely manner, which is generally no later than 45 days after the date the institution determined that the student withdrew. If an institution's
annual financial aid compliance audit in either of its two most recently completed fiscal years determines that 5% or more of such returns were
not timely made, the institution must submit a letter of credit in favor of the Department equal to 25% of the Title IV funds that the institution
should have returned for withdrawn students in its most recently completed fiscal year. For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, our
institutions did not exceed the 5% threshold for late refunds sampled.

The 90/10 rule

Pursuant to a provision of the Higher Education Act, as reauthorized in August 2008, a for-profit institution loses its eligibility to
participate in Title IV programs if the institution derives more than 90% of its revenues (calculated on a cash basis in accordance with applicable
Department regulations) from Title IV program funds for two consecutive fiscal years, commencing with the institution's first fiscal year that
ends after the new law's effective date of August 14, 2008. This rule is commonly referred to as the "90/10 rule." Any institution that violates the
90/10 rule becomes ineligible to participate in Title IV programs for at least two fiscal years. In addition, an institution whose rate exceeds 90%
for any single year will be placed on provisional certification and may be subject to other enforcement measures.

In the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, Ashford University derived 85.0%, 85.5% and 86.8%, respectively, and the
University of the Rockies derived 85.9%, 84.6% and 80.8%, respectively, of their respective revenues (calculated on a cash basis in accordance
with applicable Department regulations) from Title IV funds.

Recent changes in federal law that increased Title IV grant and loan limits, and any additional increases in the future, may result in an
increase in the revenues we receive from Title IV programs, which could make it more difficult for our institutions to satisfy the 90/10 rule.
However, such effects may be mitigated, at least on a temporary basis, by another provision in the rule that allows institutions to exclude (for
three years) from their Title IV revenues when calculating their compliance the additional $2,000 per undergraduate student in certain annual
federal student loan amounts that became available starting in July 2008. Additionally, recent changes permit institutions to include in their
calculation as non-Title IV revenues certain non-cash revenues, such as institutional loan proceeds, under certain circumstances. For Ashford
University, we have not excluded amounts attributable to the increased annual federal loan limits from our 90/10 calculations.

Student loan defaults

For each federal fiscal year, the Department calculates a rate of student defaults for each educational institution which is known as a "cohort
default rate." An institution may lose its eligibility to participate in the Direct Loan, FFEL and Pell programs if, for each of the three most recent
federal fiscal years for which information is available, 25% or more of its students who became subject to a repayment obligation in that federal
fiscal year defaulted on such obligation by the end of the following federal fiscal year. In addition, an institution may lose its eligibility to
participate in the Direct Loan or FFEL programs if its cohort default rate exceeds 40% in the most recent federal fiscal year for which default
rates have been calculated by the Department. Ashford University's two-year cohort default rates for the 2008, 2007 and 2006 federal fiscal
years were 13.3%, 13.3% and 4.1%, respectively. The two-year cohort default rates for the University of the Rockies for the 2008, 2007 and
2006 federal fiscal years were 2.5%, 0.0% and 0.0%, respectively. The draft cohort default rates for the 2009 federal fiscal year for Ashford
University and the University of the Rockies were 15.3% and 3.3%, respectively. An institution whose cohort default rate equals or exceeds 25%
in any one of the three most recent fiscal years for which rates have been issued by the Department may be placed on provisional certification by
the Department.
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The August 2008 reauthorization of the Higher Education Act included significant revisions to the requirements concerning cohort default
rates. Under the revised law, the period for which students' defaults on their loans are included in the calculation of an institution's cohort default
rate was extended by one additional year, which is expected to increase the cohort default rates for most institutions. That change was effective
with the calculation of institutions' cohort default rates for the federal fiscal year ending September 30, 2009, which rates are expected to be
calculated and issued by the Department in 2012. The Department will not impose sanctions based on rates calculated under this new
methodology until three consecutive years of rates have been calculated, which is expected to occur in 2014. Until that time, the Department will
continue to calculate rates under the old calculation method and impose sanctions based on those rates. The revised law also increases the
threshold for ending an institution's participation in the relevant Title IV programs from 25% to 30%, effective for final three-year cohort default
rates published on or after the 2012 federal fiscal year. The revised law changes the threshold for placement on provisional certification to 30%
for two of the three most recent fiscal years for which the Department has published official three-year cohort default rates. Ashford University's
unofficial or trial three-year cohort default rates for the 2008, 2007 and 2006 federal fiscal years were 21.7%, 17.4% and 6.1%, respectively. The
trial three-year cohort default rates for the University of the Rockies for the 2008, 2007 and 2006 federal fiscal years were 2.5%, 1.4% and 0.0%,
respectively. The three-year cohort default rates are considered "trial" because, as mentioned above, institutions are not required to calculate
prior three-year repayment rates until 2012, and the rates will not be the basis for measurement of compliance until 2014.

Potential effect of noncompliance with Title IV regulations

The Department can impose sanctions for violating the statutory and regulatory requirements of Title IV programs, including:

transferring an institution from the advance method or the heightened cash monitoring level one method of Title IV
payment, which permit the institution to receive Title IV funds before or concurrently with disbursing them to students, to
the heightened cash monitoring level two method of payment or to the reimbursement method of payment, which delay an

institution's receipt of Title IV funds until student eligibility has been verified;

requiring an institution to post a letter of credit in favor of the Department as a condition for continued Title IV certification;

imposing a monetary liability against an institution in an amount equal to any funds determined to have been improperly
disbursed;

initiating proceedings to impose a fine or to limit, suspend or terminate an institution's participation in Title IV programs;

taking emergency action to suspend an institution's participation in Title IV programs without prior notice or a prior
opportunity for a hearing;

failing to grant an institution's application for renewal of its certification to participate in Title IV programs; or

referring a matter for possible civil or criminal prosecution.

In addition, the agencies that guarantee Title IV private lender loans for our students could initiate proceedings to limit, suspend or
terminate our ability to obtain guarantees of our students' loans through that agency.

If sanctions were imposed resulting in a substantial curtailment or termination of our participation in Title IV programs, our enrollments,
revenues and results of operations would be materially and adversely affected. If we lost our eligibility to participate in Title IV programs, or if
the amount of
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available Title IV program funds were reduced, we would seek to arrange or provide alternative sources of financial aid for students. We believe
that one or more private organizations would be willing to provide financial assistance to our students, but there is no assurance of that.
Additionally, the interest rate and other terms of such financial aid would likely not be as favorable as those for Title IV program funds, and we
might be required to guarantee all or part of such alternative assistance or might incur other additional costs in connection with securing such
alternative assistance. It is unlikely that we would be able to arrange alternative funding to replace all the Title IV funding our students receive.
Accordingly, our loss of eligibility to participate in Title IV programs, or a reduction in the amount of available Title IV program funding for our
students, would be expected to have a material adverse effect on our enrollments, revenues and results of operations, even if we could arrange or
provide alternative sources of student financial aid.

In addition to the actions that may be brought against us as a result of our participation in Title IV programs, we are also subject to
complaints and lawsuits relating to regulatory compliance brought not only by our regulatory agencies but also by other government agencies
and third parties, such as current or former students or employees and other members of the public, including lawsuits filed pursuant to the
federal False Claims Act.

Compliance reviews, audits and reports

Our institutions are subject to reviews in connection with periodic renewals of certification to participate in Title IV programs, as well as
announced and unannounced compliance reviews and audits by various external agencies, including the Department and its Office of Inspector
General ("OIG"). State licensing agencies, the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs and accrediting bodies may also conduct audits and reviews
of a similar fashion. See "Accreditation Evaluations and renewals of accreditation" above. In addition, as part of the Department's ongoing
monitoring of institutions' administration of Title IV programs, the Higher Education Act requires institutions to submit to the Department an
annual Title IV compliance audit conducted by an independent certified public accounting firm. In addition, to enable the Department to make a
determination of an institution's financial responsibility, each institution must annually submit audited financial statements prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, or GAAP, and Department regulations.

The OIG is responsible for, among other things, promoting the effectiveness and integrity of the Department's programs and operations.
With respect to educational institutions that participate in Title IV programs, the OIG conducts its work primarily through an audit services
division and an investigations division. The audit services division typically conducts general audits of institutions to assess their administration
of federal funds in accordance with applicable rules and regulations. The investigation services division typically conducts focused
investigations of particular allegations of fraud, abuse or other wrongdoing against institutions by third parties, such as a lawsuit filed under seal
pursuant to the federal False Claims Act.

On January 21, 2011, Ashford University received a final audit report from the OIG regarding the compliance audit commenced in May
2008 and covering the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007. The audit covered Ashford University's administration of Title IV program
funds, including compliance with regulations governing institutional and student eligibility, awards and disbursements of Title IV program
funds, verification of awards and returns of unearned funds during that period, and its compensation of financial aid and recruiting personnel
during the period May 10, 2005 through June 30, 2009.
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The final audit report contained audit findings, in each case for the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007 (award year 2006-2007),
which we summarize as follows:

Finding 1 The university designed a compensation plan for enrollment advisors that provided incentive payments based on
success in securing enrollments and did not establish that its plan and practices qualified for the regulatory safe harbors.

Finding 2 The university did not always perform return of Title IV aid calculations properly, resulting in the improper
retention of a total of $29,036 of Title IV program funds for 38 students in the OIG's sample sets of 85 students.

Finding 3 The university did not in all instances return Title IV program funds timely for Title IV students who withdrew or
went on a leave of absence from school.

Finding 4 The form formerly used by the university to obtain authorizations to retain student credit balances did not comply
with applicable regulations.

Finding 5 The university did not in all instances disburse Title IV program funds in accordance with applicable regulations or
university policy because they were made prior to the students being eligible to receive them.

Finding 6 The university did not in all instances maintain documentation to support online students' leaves of absence due to
the lack of support for the start dates for 19 leaves of absence.

Each finding was accompanied by one or more recommendations to the Department's Office of Federal Student Aid, or FSA, as
summarized below:

For Finding 1, the OIG recommended that the FSA require the university to provide records of all salary adjustments made
to enrollment advisors during award year 2006-2007 and any documentation, not disclosed to the OIG, that demonstrates

that any specific adjustments made during that period qualified for the regulatory safe harbors.

For Findings 2 and 5, the OIG recommended that the FSA require the university (i) to remit to the Department and
appropriate lenders certain amounts identified by the OIG ($29,036 for Finding 2) and (ii) undertake a file review for award
year 2006-2007 to identify the amount of Title IV funds that were improperly retained or disbursed and to remit such

amounts to the Department or appropriate lenders.

For Finding 4, the OIG recommended that the FSA require the university to cease drawing, disbursing and holding credit
balances of Title IV program funds for which there are no currently assessed institutional charges.

For Findings 2, 3, 5 and 6, the OIG recommended that the FSA require the university to develop and implement certain
remedial policies and procedures.

For Findings 2, 3 and 5 generally, and for Finding 1 in the event the university cannot establish that its salary adjustments for
enrollment advisors qualified for the safe harbor, the OIG recommended that the FSA consider whether to take appropriate
action under Subpart G of 34 C.F.R. Part 668. Under Subpart G, the FSA may seek to impose a fine against the university or
to limit, suspend or terminate the university's participation in Title IV programs.

The findings and recommendations of the final audit report represent the opinions of the OIG, and the issuance of final audit determinations
and corrective action to be taken, if any, will be made by the FSA.
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Ashford University expects that the FSA will consider the findings and recommendations in the final audit report and engage in a dialog
with the university prior to determining what if any action to take and issuing a Final Audit Determination Letter concluding the audit. The OIG
requested that Ashford University provide a response to the FSA regarding the final audit report, and the university responded in a timely
manner. If the FSA were to determine to assess a monetary liability or commence an action under Subpart G, Ashford University would have an
opportunity to contest the assessment or proposed action through administrative proceedings, with the right to seek review of any final
administrative action in the federal courts. Although we believe Ashford University operates in substantial compliance with Department
regulations that are applicable to the areas under review, we cannot predict the ultimate findings, potential liabilities or remedial actions, if any,
that the FSA may include in the Final Audit Determination Letter, or the result of any administrative proceedings, including Subpart G
proceedings, that may arise out of the Final Audit Determination Letter.

Adding teaching locations and implementing new educational programs

The requirements and standards of accrediting agencies, state education agencies and the Department limit our ability in certain instances to
establish additional teaching locations or implement new educational programs. The Higher Learning Commission, the Colorado Commission
on Higher Education and other state education agencies that may authorize or accredit us or our programs generally require institutions to notify
them in advance of adding certain new locations or implementing certain new programs, and upon notification may undertake a review of the
quality of the facility or the program and the financial, academic and other qualifications of the institution.

If an institution participating in Title IV programs plans to add a new location or educational program, the institution must apply under
certain circumstances to the Department to have the additional location or educational program designated as within the scope of the institution's
Title IV eligibility. Under current law, degree-granting institutions are not required to obtain the Department's approval of additional programs
that lead to a degree at the same or lower degree level as degree programs previously approved by the Department. Similarly, an institution is not
required to obtain advance approval for new programs that prepare students for gainful employment in the same or a related recognized
occupation as an educational program that has previously been designated by the Department as an eligible program at that institution if the
program meets certain minimum length requirements. However, under new law effective July 1, 2011, an institution will be required to notify
the Department in advance of all new programs (as defined in the regulation) and, if required, wait for the Department's approval. If an
institution that is required to obtain the Department's advance approval for the addition of a new program or new location fails to do so, the
institution may be liable for repayment of Title IV program funds received by the institution or by students in connection with that program or
enrolled at that location.

Acquiring other schools

If we were to seek to acquire an existing accredited institution participating in Title IV programs, we would need to obtain the approval of
the state education agency that authorizes the school being acquired, any accrediting agency that accredits the school being acquired and the
Department. The level of review varies by individual state and by individual accrediting commission, with some requiring approval of such an
acquisition before it occurs and with others only considering approval after the acquisition has occurred. The receipt of required approvals from
applicable state education agencies and accrediting agencies is a necessary prerequisite to the Department's certifying the acquired school to
participate in Title IV programs. In addition, the Department's certification of a school following a change in ownership and control is always a
provisional certification. The restrictions imposed by any of the applicable regulatory agencies could delay or prevent our acquisition of other
schools in some circumstances or our ability to operate or grow the acquired schools.
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Change in ownership resulting in a change of control

The Department and most state and accrediting agencies require institutions of higher education to report or obtain approval of certain
changes of control and changes in other aspects of institutional organization or operations. Transactions or events that constitute a change of
control may include significant acquisitions or dispositions of an institution's common stock and significant changes in the composition of an
institution's board. The types of thresholds for such reporting and approval vary among the states and among accrediting agencies. The Higher
Learning Commission issued amended policies in June 2009 which, among other provisions, provide that a disposition of stock by a holder that
reduces the holder's ownership below 25% of the outstanding stock of a publicly traded company is a change of control requiring the prior
approval of the Higher Learning Commission. The amended policies also provide that a sale of more than 10% and less than 25% of the
outstanding common stock of a publicly traded company must be reported to the staff of the Higher Learning Commission, which may
determine in some cases that such sale requires prior approval, or additional monitoring, by the Higher Learning Commission. The Department
regulations provide that a change of control occurs for a publicly traded corporation if either (i) a person acquires such ownership and control of
the corporation so that the corporation is required to file a current report on Form 8-K with the SEC disclosing a change of control, or (ii) the
corporation's largest stockholder who owns at least 25% of the total outstanding voting stock of the corporation, ceases to own at least 25% of
such stock or ceases to be the largest stockholder. A significant purchase or disposition of our voting stock, including a disposition of voting
stock by Warburg Pincus, could be determined by the Department to be a change of control under this standard. In such event, the regulatory
procedures applicable to a change in ownership and control would have to be followed in connection with the transaction. Similarly if such a
disposition were deemed a change of control by the Higher Learning Commission or applicable state educational licensing agency, any required
regulatory notifications and approvals would have to be made or obtained.

Privacy of student records

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, or FERPA, and the Department's FERPA regulations require educational
institutions to protect the privacy of students' educational records by limiting an institution's disclosure of a student's personally identifiable
information without the student's prior written consent. FERPA also requires institutions to allow students to review and request changes to their
educational records maintained by the institution, to notify students at least annually of this inspection right and to maintain records in each
student's file listing requests for access to and disclosures of personally identifiable information and the interest of such party in that information.
If an institution fails to comply with FERPA, the Department may require corrective actions by the institution or may terminate an institution's
receipt of further federal funds. In addition, educational institutions are obligated to safeguard student information pursuant to the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, or GLBA, a federal law designed to protect consumers' personal financial information held by financial institutions
and other entities that provide financial services to consumers. GLBA and the applicable GLBA regulations require an institution to, among
other things, develop and maintain a comprehensive, written information security program designed to protect against the unauthorized
disclosure of personally identifiable financial information of students, parents or other individuals with whom such institution has a customer
relationship. If an institution fails to comply with the applicable GLBA requirements, it may be required to take corrective actions, be subject to
monitoring and oversight by the Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, and be subject to fines or penalties imposed by the FTC. For-profit
educational institutions are also subject to the general deceptive practices jurisdiction of the FTC with respect to their collection, use and
disclosure of student information.
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State Education Licensure and Regulation
ITowa and Colorado

Ashford University's campus is located in Iowa, and the institution is exempt from having to register as a postsecondary school in the state
of Iowa. The University of the Rockies' campus is located in Colorado and is authorized to operate by the Colorado Commission on Higher
Education. We do not have campuses in any states other than Iowa and Colorado. The Higher Education Act requires Ashford University to
maintain its exemption from registration in Iowa (or become registered in its absence) and requires the University of Rockies to maintain its
authorization from the Colorado Commission on Higher Education in order to participate in Title IV programs. To maintain our Colorado
authorization, we must comply with requirements under Colorado statutes and rules for continued authorization. Failure to maintain our lowa
exemption or our Colorado authorization would cause Ashford University or the University of the Rockies, respectively, to lose their
authorization to deliver educational programs and to grant degrees and other credentials and lose their eligibility to participate in Title IV
programs. Effective July 1, 2011, the Department regulations impose new Title IV program requirements for an institution to be considered
legally authorized by a state. See "Department Regulation of Title IV Programs State authorization" above.

Additional state regulation

Most state education agencies impose regulatory requirements on educational institutions operating within their boundaries. Some states
have sought to assert jurisdiction over out-of-state educational institutions offering online programs that have no physical location or other
presence in the state but that have some activity in the state, such as enrolling or offering educational services to students who reside in the state,
employing faculty who reside in the state or advertising to or recruiting prospective students in the state. In addition to Iowa and Colorado, we
have determined that our activities in certain states constitute a presence requiring licensure or authorization under the requirements of the state
education agency in those states, and in other states we have obtained state education agency approvals as we have determined necessary in
connection with our marketing and recruiting activities. We review state licensure requirements when appropriate to determine whether our
activities in those states constitute a presence or otherwise require licensure or authorization. Because we enroll students from all 50 states and
from the District of Columbia, we may have to seek licensure or authorization in additional states in the future. State regulatory requirements for
online education vary among the states, are not well developed in many states, are imprecise or unclear in some states and are subject to change.
Consequently, a state education agency could disagree with our conclusion that we are not required to obtain a license or authorization in the
state and could restrict one or more of our business activities in the state, including the ability to recruit or enroll students in that state or to
continue providing services or advertising in that state. If we fail to comply with state licensing or authorization requirements for any state, we
may be subject to the loss of state licensure or authorization by that state, or be subject to other sanctions, including restrictions on our activities
in that state, fines and penalties. The loss of any required license or authorization in states other than Iowa and Colorado could prohibit us from
recruiting prospective students or from offering services to current students in those states. Effective July 1, 2011, the Department regulations
impose new Title IV state authorization requirements for institutions that offer postsecondary education through distance education to students in
states in which it is not physically located or in which it is otherwise subject to state jurisdiction as determined by the state. See "Department
Regulation of Title IV Programs State authorization" above.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Investing in our common stock involves risk. Before making an investment in our common stock, you should carefully consider the
following risks, as well as the other information contained in this report, including our annual consolidated financial statements and Part 11,
Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations." The risks described below are those which
we believe are the material risks we face. Any of the risks described below could significantly and adversely affect our business, prospects,
financial condition and results of operations. As a result, the trading price of our common stock could decline and you could lose part or all of
your investment. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or not believed by us to be material could also impact us.

Risks Related to the Extensive Regulation of Our Business

If our institutions fail to comply with extensive regulatory requirements, we could face monetary liabilities or penalties, restrictions on our
operations or growth or loss of access to federal loans and grants for our students on which we are substantially dependent.

In the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, Ashford University derived 85.0%, 85.5% and 86.8%, respectively, and the
University of the Rockies derived 85.9%, 84.6% and 80.8%, respectively, of their respective revenues (in each case calculated on a cash basis in
accordance with applicable Department regulations) from federal student financial aid programs, referred to in this report as Title IV programs,
administered by the Department. To participate in Title IV programs, a school must be legally authorized to operate in the state in which it is
physically located, accredited by an accrediting agency recognized by the Secretary of the Department as a reliable indicator of educational
quality and certified as an eligible institution by the Department. As a result, we are subject to extensive regulation by state education agencies,
our accrediting agency and the Department. These regulatory requirements cover many aspects of our operations, including our educational
programs, facilities, instructional and administrative staff, administrative procedures, marketing, recruiting, financial operations and financial
condition. These regulatory requirements can also affect our ability to acquire or open additional schools, to add new or expand existing
educational programs, to change our corporate structure or ownership and to make other substantive changes. The state education agencies, our
accrediting agency and the Department periodically revise their requirements and modify their interpretations of existing requirements.

If one of our institutions fails to comply with any of these regulatory requirements, the Department can impose sanctions on such institution
including:

transferring the institution to the heightened cash monitoring level two method of payment or to the reimbursement method
of payment, which would adversely affect the timing of the institution's receipt of Title IV funds;

requiring the institution to post a letter of credit in favor of the Department as a condition for continued Title IV
certification;

imposing monetary liability against the institution in an amount equal to any funds determined to have been improperly
disbursed;

initiating proceedings to impose a fine or to limit, suspend or terminate the institution's participation in Title IV programs;

taking emergency action to suspend the institution's participation in Title IV programs without prior notice or a prior
opportunity for a hearing;

failing to grant the institution's application for renewal of its certification to participate in Title IV programs; or
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referring a matter for possible civil or criminal investigation.

If sanctions were imposed resulting in a substantial curtailment or termination of our participation in Title IV programs, our enrollments,
revenues and results of operations would be materially and adversely affected. Additionally, if administrative proceedings were initiated alleging
regulatory violations, or seeking to impose any such sanctions, or if a third party were to initiate judicial proceedings alleging such violations,
the mere existence of such proceedings could damage our reputation. We cannot predict with certainty how all of these regulatory requirements
will be applied or whether we will be able to comply with all of the requirements. We have described some of the most significant regulatory
risks that apply to us in the following paragraphs.

Because we operate in a highly regulated industry, we are also subject to compliance reviews and claims of noncompliance and lawsuits by
government agencies, regulatory agencies and third parties, including claims brought by third parties on behalf of the federal government under
the federal False Claims Act. If the results of these reviews or proceedings are unfavorable to us or if we are unable to defend successfully
against such lawsuits or claims, we may be required to pay money damages or be subject to fines, limitations, loss of Title IV funding,
injunctions or other penalties. Even if we adequately address issues raised by an agency review or successfully defend a lawsuit or claim, we
may have to divert significant financial and management resources from our ongoing business operations to address issues raised by those
reviews or to defend against those lawsuits or claims. Claims and lawsuits brought against us may damage our reputation or adversely affect our
stock price, even if such claims and lawsuits are eventually determined to be without merit.

The Department's Office of Inspector General conducted a compliance audit of Ashford University and has issued a final audit report that
contains findings of noncompliance and recommendations for certain administrative remedies.

On January 21, 2011, Ashford University received a final audit report from the Department's Office of Inspector General, or OIG, regarding
the compliance audit commenced in May 2008 and covering the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007. The audit covered Ashford
University's administration of Title IV program funds, including compliance with regulations governing institutional and student eligibility,
awards and disbursements of Title IV program funds, verification of awards and returns of unearned funds during that period, and its
compensation of financial aid and recruiting personnel during the period May 10, 2005 through June 30, 2009.

The final audit report contained audit findings, in each case for the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007 (award year 2006-2007), and
related recommendations to the Department's Office of Federal Student Aid, or FSA. For more information regarding the OIG's final audit report
and the findings and recommendations contained therein, see "Regulation Department Regulation of Title IV Programs Compliance reviews,
audits and reports" in Part I, Item 1 of this report.

Ashford University expects that the FSA will consider the findings and recommendations in the final audit report and engage in a dialog
with the university prior to determining what, if any, action to take. If the FSA were to determine to assess a monetary liability or commence an
action to limit, suspend or terminate the university's participation in Title IV programs, Ashford University would have an opportunity to contest
the assessment or proposed action through a series of administrative proceedings, with the right to seek review of any final administrative action
in the federal courts. Although we believe Ashford University operates in substantial compliance with Department regulations that are applicable
to the areas under review, we cannot predict the ultimate extent of the potential liability or remedial actions, if any, that might result from the
recommendations by the OIG in the final audit report. Such findings and related remedial action could have a material adverse effect on our
reputation in the industry, our cash flows and results of operations, our ability to recruit students and our business.
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Our schools may be sanctioned or subject to lawsuits if they pay impermissible commissions, bonuses or other incentive payments to
individuals involved in certain recruiting, admissions or financial aid awarding activities.

The Higher Education Act prohibits an institution from making any commission, bonus or other incentive payment based directly or
indirectly on securing enrollments or financial aid to any persons or entities involved in student recruiting or admissions activities, or in making
decisions about the award of student financial assistance. Although the Department's regulations currently set forth 12 "safe harbors" which
describe compensation arrangements that do not violate the incentive compensation rule, including the payment and adjustment of salaries and
bonuses under certain conditions, the law and regulations do not establish clear criteria for compliance in all circumstances, and the Department
no longer reviews and approves compensation plans prior to their implementation. Additionally, effective July 1, 2011, the Department
eliminated all 12 safe harbors. For more information regarding the elimination of the 12 safe harbors by the Department, see
"Regulation Department Regulation of Title IV Programs Incentive compensation" in Part I, Item 1 of this report.

If one of our institutions were to violate the incentive compensation rule, it could be subject to monetary liabilities or to administrative
action (a Subpart G proceeding) to impose a fine or to limit, suspend or terminate its eligibility to participate in Title IV programs, which could
have a material adverse effect on our enrollment, revenues and results of operations. In Finding 1 of the OIG's final audit report related to its
compliance audit of Ashford University, the OIG asserted that Ashford University, during the 2006-2007 award year, designed a compensation
plan for enrollment advisors that provided incentive payments based on success in securing enrollments and did not establish that its plan and
practices qualified for the regulatory safe harbors. To the extent Ashford University cannot establish that its salary adjustments for enrollment
advisors in the 2006-2007 award year qualified for the regulatory safe harbors, the OIG recommended that the Department's Office of Federal
Student Aid take appropriate action to impose a fine on the university or to limit, suspend or terminate the institution's eligibility for Title [V
programs. For more information regarding the OIG's final audit report, see "Regulation Department Regulation of Title IV Programs Compliance
reviews, audits and reports" in Part I, Item 1 of this report.

Additionally, several of our competitors have been faced with lawsuits brought by current or former employees pursuant to the federal
False Claims Act, alleging violations of the incentive compensation rule. Defending a False Claims Act lawsuit could be costly and could divert
management's time and attention from our business, regardless of whether the claim has merit. The adverse resolution of such a lawsuit could
lead to monetary liability, including treble damages and attorneys' fees, and other sanctions, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

The Department's elimination of the 12 ''safe harbor'' provisions, which specify certain activities and arrangements that an institution may
carry out without violating the prohibition against incentive compensation reflected in the Higher Education Act, could impair our ability to
sustain and grow our business at historical levels.

Under current Department regulations, there are 12 "safe harbor" provisions which specify certain activities and arrangements that an
institution may carry out without violating the prohibition against incentive compensation reflected in the Higher Education Act. In final
regulations published by the Department in October 2010, the Department eliminated all 12 safe harbors effective July 1, 2011. For more
information regarding the elimination of the 12 safe harbors, see "Regulation Department Regulation of Title IV Programs Incentive
compensation" in Part I, Item 1 of this report.

We will have to modify some of our compensation practices as a result of the elimination of the safe harbors. Such a change could affect
our ability to compensate our enrollment advisors and other
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employees in a manner that appropriately reflects their relative merit, which in turn could (i) reduce the effectiveness of our employees and
make it more difficult for us to attract and retain staff with the desired talent and motivation to succeed and (ii) impair our ability to sustain and
grow our business and enrollments at our institutions, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our enrollments, revenues and
results of operations. As other institutions have disclosed, and as our pilot programs with revised compensation structures have indicated, we
expect that our enrollment advisors' new enrollment productivity will decline as a result of the changes in compensation methodology and that
the majority of the impact will be realized in the second half of 2011.

Final regulations that may be adopted by the Department relating to our students' gainful employment in a recognized occupation may
require us to modify or eliminate some of the programs at our institutions.

Under the Higher Education Act, proprietary schools are eligible to participate in Title IV programs only to the extent that their educational
programs lead to gainful employment in a recognized occupation, with the limited exception of qualified programs leading to a bachelor's degree
in liberal arts. In July 2010, the Department proposed to assess whether a program leads to "gainful employment" by applying two tests: a
debt-to-income test and a repayment rate test. Based on a program's performance under these two tests, the program may be fully eligible, have
restricted eligibility or be ineligible to participate in Title IV programs. For more information regarding the debt-to-income test and repayment
rate test, and related restrictions on eligibility, see "Regulation Department Regulation of Title IV Programs Gainful employment" in Part I,
Item 1 of this report.

If such program eligibility rules are adopted by the Department as proposed, we may need to modify or eliminate some of the educational
programs at our institutions, or delay the introduction of new programs, which could have a negative impact on our growth and enrollments. The
Department is expected to publish final gainful employment regulations regarding program eligibility in early 2011, which regulations are
expected to become effective July 1, 2012.

Final regulations adopted by the Department requiring our institutions to notify the Department in advance of introducing new programs
could delay the introduction of such programs and negatively impact our growth.

Under final regulations adopted by the Department in October 2010, if an institution seeks to provide a new program that prepares students
for gainful employment in a recognized occupation, it must submit a notice to the Department at least 90 days before the first day of class of
such program containing the information specified in the regulations. For information regarding the required contents of the notice, see
"Regulation Department Regulation of Title IV Programs Gainful employment" in Part I, Item 1 of this report.

Unless otherwise required by the Department to obtain approval for the new program, an institution that provides a notice may proceed with
its plans to offer the new program based on its determination that the program is an eligible program that prepares students for gainful
employment in a recognized occupation. However, if a concern or need for additional information about the new program is identified by
Department staff after receiving notice of the new program, the Department may alert the institution, at least 30 days before the first day of class,
that the Department must approve the program for Title IV purposes. If any new program submitted by our institutions is identified as being
subject to Department review for Title IV purposes, it could result in difficulties or delays in introducing the program, which could have a
negative impact on our growth and enrollments.
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If one of our institutions offers classes to students in a state in which it is not physically located and fails to meet applicable state
requirements to offer such classes in that state, we may be unable to enroll students in such state or receive Title IV funds for students in
such state.

Final regulations adopted by the Department in October 2010 provide that, effective July 1, 2011, if an institution is offering postsecondary
education through distance or correspondence education to students in a state in which it is not physically located or in which it is otherwise
subject to state jurisdiction as determined by the state, the institution must meet any state requirements for it to be legally offering postsecondary
distance or correspondence education to students in that state; additionally, an institution must be able to document upon request by the
Department that it has the applicable state approval.

Although our institutions have a process for evaluating the compliance of their online educational programs with state requirements
regarding distance and correspondence learning, and have experienced no significant restrictions on their educational activities to date as a result
of such requirements, state regulatory requirements for online education vary among the states, are not well developed in many states, are
imprecise or unclear in some states and are subject to change. Moreover, it is also unclear whether and to what extent state agencies may
augment or change their regulations in this area as a result of new Department regulations and increased scrutiny. Any failure to comply with
state requirements, or any new or modified regulations, could result in our inability to enroll students or receive Title IV funds for students in
those states and could result in restrictions on our growth and enrollments.

We must periodically seek recertification to participate in Title IV programs and may, in certain circumstances, be subject to review by the
Department prior to seeking recertification.

An institution that is certified to participate in Title IV programs must periodically seek recertification from the Department to continue
participating in such programs, including when it undergoes a "change of control" as defined by the Department. Our current certification for
Ashford University is scheduled to expire on June 30, 2011. Our current certification for the University of the Rockies is scheduled to expire on
June 30, 2016. The Department may also review our institutions' continued certification to participate in Title IV programs if we undergo a
change of control. In addition, the Department may take emergency action to suspend an institution's certification without advance notice if it
determines the institution is violating Title IV requirements and determines that immediate action is necessary to prevent misuse of Title IV
funds. If the Department did not renew or if it withdrew our institutions' certifications to participate in Title IV programs, our students would no
longer be able to receive Title IV funds, which would have a material adverse effect on our enrollment, revenues and results of operations.

Action by the U.S. Congress to revise the laws governing federal student financing programs or reduce funding for these programs could
negatively impact our enrollments, revenue and results of operations.

The U.S. Congress must periodically reauthorize the Higher Education Act and annually determine the funding level for each Title IV
program. In 2008, the Higher Education Act was reauthorized through September 30, 2014 by the Higher Education Opportunity Act. The U.S.
Congress may propose and pass revisions to the Higher Education Act between reauthorizations, subject to approval by the President. Also, the
U.S. Congress determines the funding levels for Title IV programs annually through the budget and appropriations process. Changes to the
Higher Education Act are likely to result from subsequent reauthorizations and other changes may occur to the Higher Education Act or to Title
IV program funding levels, and the scope and substance of any such changes cannot be predicted.
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In the past year, there has been increased focus by the U.S. Congress on the role that proprietary educational institutions play in higher
education. On June 17, 2010, the Education and Labor Committee of the U.S. House of Representatives held a hearing to examine the manner in
which accrediting agencies review higher education institutions' policies on credit hours and program length. This followed a report from the
Office of the Inspector General of the U.S. Department in December 2009 criticizing the accreditation of a proprietary school by a regional
accrediting body and requesting that the Department review the appropriateness of its recognition of the accrediting body. On June 24, 2010, the
Health, Education, Labor and Pensions Committee of the U.S. Senate ("HELP Committee") released a report, entitled, "Emerging Risk?: An
Overview of Growth, Spending, Student Debt and Unanswered Questions in For-Profit Higher Education" and held the first in a series of
hearings to examine the proprietary education sector. Earlier, the Chairmen of each of these education committees, together with other members
of Congress, requested the Government Accountability Office ("GAO") to conduct a review and prepare a report with recommendations
regarding various aspects of the proprietary sector, including recruitment practices, educational quality, student outcomes, the sufficiency of
integrity safeguards against waste, fraud and abuse in federal student aid programs and the degree to which proprietary institutions' revenue is
composed of Title IV and other federal funding sources. The results of a portion of this review by the GAO were reported at a HELP Committee
hearing on August 4, 2010, entitled, "For Profit Schools: The Student Recruitment Experience." Sen. Tom Harkin, the Chairman of the HELP
Committee, stated at the August hearing that he is concerned about the practices of proprietary schools, the increasing amount of Title IV
funding received by the proprietary sector and the effectiveness of accrediting bodies in ensuring academic and other standards. In addition, Sen.
Harkin has stated that the recently proposed regulations by the Department regarding incentive compensation of recruiting personnel, gainful
employment standards and other matters, while useful, are only a start to addressing the problems he perceives in the sector. Following the
August hearing, Sen. Harkin requested a broad range of detailed information from 30 groups of proprietary institutions, including Ashford
University and the University of the Rockies. Our institutions have been, and intend to continue being responsive to the requests of the HELP
Committee. On September 30, 2010, the HELP Committee held a third hearing and Sen. Harkin's staff released a memorandum entitled "The
Return on the Federal Investment in For-Profit Education: Debt Without a Diploma." On February 8, 2011, Sen. Harkin spoke on the floor of the
U.S. Senate and asserted that proprietary schools, including Ashford University, engage in overly aggressive and misleading tactics to recruit
students.

On March 1, 2011, we received correspondence from the HELP Committee inviting our CEO and President to testify at a hearing scheduled
for March 10, 2011, regarding Bridgepoint Education, Inc. and Ashford University.

We cannot predict what legislation, if any, will emanate from these Congressional committee hearings or what impact any such legislation
might have on the proprietary education sector and our business in particular. Any action by Congress that significantly reduces Title IV
program funding or the eligibility of our institutions or students to participate in Title IV programs would have a material adverse effect on our
enrollments, revenues and results of operations. Congressional action could also require us to modify our practices in ways that could increase
our administrative costs and reduce our profit margin, which could have a material adverse effect on our enrollments, revenues and results of
operations.

If the U.S. Congress significantly reduced the amount of available Title IV program funding, we would attempt to arrange for alternative
sources of financial aid for our students, which may include lending funds directly to our students, but it is unlikely that private sources would be
able to provide as much funding to our students on terms as favorable as are currently provided by Title IV. In addition, private organizations
could require us to guarantee all or part of this assistance and we might incur other additional costs. For these reasons, private, alternative
sources of student financial aid would only partly offset, if at all, the impact on our business of reduced Title IV program funding.
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Our failure to maintain institutional accreditation would result in a loss of eligibility to participate in Title IV programs.

An institution must be accredited by an accrediting agency recognized by the Department in order to participate in Title IV programs. Each
of our schools is accredited by the Higher Learning Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools, which is recognized
by the Department as a reliable authority regarding the quality of education and training provided by the institutions it accredits. Ashford
University was reaccredited by the Higher Learning Commission in 2006 for a term of ten years, and the University of the Rockies was
reaccredited by the Higher Learning Commission in 2008 for a term of seven years.

To remain accredited, our institutions must continuously meet accreditation standards relating to, among other things, performance,
governance, institutional integrity, educational quality, faculty, administrative capability, resources and financial stability. If either of our
institutions fails to satisfy any of the Higher Learning Commission's standards, it could lose its accreditation. Loss of accreditation would
denigrate the value of our institutions' educational programs and would cause them to lose their eligibility to participate in Title IV programs,
which would have a material adverse effect on our enrollment, revenues and results of operations.

If Ashford University and the University of the Rockies are considered to be outside of the Higher Learning Commission's jurisdiction under
a new policy, the institutions could lose accreditation and become ineligible for Title IV programs.

The Higher Learning Commission has recently adopted revised bylaws and related policies which outline the basis on which an institution
may claim that it is within the commission's jurisdiction. The revised bylaws provide, subject to specified grace periods and grandfathering
provisions, that an institution must be incorporated within a state in the 19-state north central region and also have a "substantial presence" in the
north central region, as defined by commission policy, to be considered within the commission's jurisdiction. For more information, see
"Regulation Accreditation Changes to Higher Learning Commission jurisdiction" in Part I, Item 1 of this report. The Higher Learning
Commission will evaluate an institution that was accredited by the commission as of July 1, 2010 (such as Ashford University and the
University of the Rockies), against the "substantial presence” definition at the time of the commission's next comprehensive evaluation of such
institution, except where the commission has information to indicate that an institution does not meet this requirement and initiates, subsequent
to July 1, 2012, an inquiry to review jurisdiction. Ashford University and the University of the Rockies are each scheduled for their next
comprehensive evaluations in 2014-2015.

Ashford University and the University of the Rockies have campuses in, are incorporated in, and have business operations, administration
and leadership in Iowa and Colorado, respectively, both of which states are located in the north central region. However, because both
institutions also have business operations, administration and leadership located outside of the north central region, it is uncertain whether the
Higher Learning Commission would determine that these institutions have a substantial presence in the north central region under the definition
in the adopted new policy. If the Higher Learning Commission determines that Ashford University and the University of the Rockies do not
have a substantial presence in the north central region and are outside the commission's jurisdiction, the institutions will be subject to
reconsideration of their affiliated status with the Higher Learning Commission. If the institutions were no longer accredited by an accrediting
body recognized by the Department, they would be ineligible to participate in Title IV programs until they obtained accreditation by another
accrediting body recognized by the Department, at which time they would need to file an application with the Department for reinstatement. The
ineligibility of our institutions to participate in Title IV programs would have a material adverse effect on our enrollments, revenues and results
of operations.
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Ashford University could experience difficulties or delays in changing its primary accreditor.

In September 2010, we announced that Ashford University has initiated the process of seeking regional accreditation from the Accrediting
Commission for Senior Colleges and Universities of the Western Association of Schools and Colleges ("WASC"). Ashford University is
currently accredited by, and in good standing with, the Higher Learning Commission.

Although Ashford University is working collaboratively with both WASC and the Higher Learning Commission to facilitate the migration
of accreditation, it could experience difficulties or delays in receiving initial accreditation from WASC. If Ashford University is unable to obtain
initial accreditation from WASC, the institution's academic reputation and ability to grow enrollments could be negatively affected.
Additionally, if Ashford University does not receive WASC accreditation and loses accreditation from the Higher Learning Commission
(e.g., due to the Higher Learning Commission's proposed new jurisdictional requirements requiring a "substantial presence” in the 19-state north
central region, which will become effective on July 1, 2012), the institution would no longer be accredited by an accrediting body recognized by
the Department and would be ineligible to participate in Title IV programs until it obtained accreditation by another accrediting body recognized
by the Department, at which time it would need to file an application with the Department for reinstatement. If Ashford University becomes
ineligible to participate in Title IV programs, it will have a material adverse effect on our enrollments, revenue and results of operations.

If our accrediting body loses recognition by the Department, we could lose our ability to participate in Title IV programs.

In December 2009, the OIG issued an "Alert Memorandum," calling into question the Higher Learning Commission's compliance with the
applicable Department regulations related to the Higher Learning Commission's status as recognized by the Department. Specifically, in matters
unrelated to us, the OIG asserted in the Alert Memorandum that the Higher Learning Commission did not make appropriate assessments as to
credit hours with respect to the distance education programs of one of the Higher Learning Commission's accredited institutions and, as such, the
OIG recommended that the Department determine whether the Higher Learning Commission is in compliance with applicable regulations and, if
not, take appropriate action to limit, suspend or terminate the Higher Learning Commission's recognition by the Secretary of Education.
Additionally, in May 2010, the OIG issued a final management report to the Higher Learning Commission in which the OIG found that the
Higher Learning Commission does not have an established definition of credit hour or minimum requirements for program length and the
assignment of credit hours, which the OIG asserted could result in inflated credit hours, the improper designation of full-time student status and
the over-awarding of Title IV funds.

The Department reportedly informed the Higher Learning Commission that the Higher Learning Commission could come into compliance
with the applicable regulations if it accepted a set of corrective actions and that, if the Higher Learning Commission did not accept the corrective
actions, the Department would initiate a limitation, suspension or termination action against the Higher Learning Commission. The Higher
Learning Commission reportedly informed the Department that the Higher Learning Commission accepted the Department's corrective action
plan in May 2010. We do not know whether the Department will take further action. If the Department ceased to recognize the Higher Learning
Commission for any reason, Ashford University and the University of the Rockies would not be eligible to participate in Title IV programs
beginning 18 months after the date such recognition ceased unless the Higher Learning Commission was again recognized or our institutions
were accredited by another accrediting body recognized by the Department. The ineligibility of our institutions to participate in Title IV
programs would have a material adverse effect on our enrollments, revenues and results of operations.
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If one of our institutions does not maintain necessary state authorization in the states in which it is physically located, it may not operate or
participate in Title IV programs.

To participate in Title IV programs, an institution must be authorized by the relevant education agency of the state in which it is physically
located.

Ashford University is located in the State of lowa and is authorized to offer postsecondary programs in lowa. The institution
is exempt from having to register as a postsecondary school in the State of lowa. Such exemption may be lost or withdrawn

if Ashford University fails to comply with requirements under Iowa law for continued exemption.

The University of the Rockies is located in the State of Colorado and is authorized by the Colorado Commission on Higher
Education. Such authorization may be lost or withdrawn if the University of the Rockies fails to comply with requirements
under Colorado statutes and rules for continued authorization.

The final regulations published in October 2010, which that take effect on July 1, 2011 impose new requirements for an institution to be
considered "legally authorized" in a state, which is required for the institution to remain eligible to participate in the Title IV programs. The final
regulations provide that the Secretary of Education would consider an institution to be legally authorized by a state if it meets one of several sets
of requirements. See "Regulation Department Regulation of Title IV Programs State authorization." The Department stated when it published the
final regulations that it will not publish a list of states that meet, or fail to meet, the requirements, and it is uncertain how the Department will
interpret these requirements in each state. The Department also stated that institutions unable to obtain state authorization in a state under the one
of the above-mentioned sets of requirements may request a one-year extension of the effective date of the regulation to July 1, 2012, and if
necessary, an additional one-year extension of the effective date to July 1, 2013. To receive an extension of the effective date, an institution must
obtain from the state an explanation of how a one-year extension will permit the state to modify its procedures to comply with the regulations.

Loss of state authorization by one of our institutions in the state in which it is physically located, or the failure of the state authorization to
meet the requirements under the new regulations within the time periods provided by the regulations, would terminate our ability to provide
educational services through such institution, as well as make such institution ineligible to participate in Title IV programs, which would have a
material adverse effect on our enrollments, revenues and results of operations.

The failure of our institutions to demonstrate financial responsibility may result in a loss of eligibility to participate in Title IV programs or
require the posting of a letter of credit in order to maintain eligibility to participate in Title IV programs.

To participate in Title IV programs, an eligible institution must, among other things, satisfy specific measures of financial responsibility
prescribed by the Department or post a letter of credit in favor of the Department and possibly accept other conditions to the institution's
participation in Title IV programs. For more information regarding the Department's financial responsibility requirements, see
"Regulation Department Regulation of Title IV Programs Financial responsibility" in Part I, Item 1 of this report. If we are found not to have
satisfied the Department's financial responsibility requirements, we could be limited in our access to, or lose, Title IV program funding, which
would have a material adverse effect on our enrollment, revenues and results of operations.

The failure of our institutions to demonstrate administrative capability may result in a loss of eligibility to participate in Title IV programs.

Department regulations specify extensive criteria by which an institution must establish that it has the requisite administrative capability to
participate in Title IV programs. For more information
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regarding the Department's administrative capability standards, see "Regulation Department Regulation of Title IV Programs Administrative
capability" in Part I, Item 1 of this report.

If an institution fails to satisfy any of these criteria or comply with any other Department regulations, the Department may impose sanctions
including:

transferring the institution to the heightened cash monitoring level two method of payment or to the reimbursement method
of payment, which would adversely affect the timing of the institution's receipt of Title IV funds;

requiring the institution to post a letter of credit in favor of the Department as a condition for continued Title IV
certification;

imposing a monetary liability against the institution in an amount equal to any funds determined to have been improperly
disbursed;

initiating proceedings to impose a fine or to limit, suspend or terminate the institution's participation in Title IV programs;

taking emergency action to suspend the institution's participation in Title IV programs without prior notice or a prior
opportunity for a hearing;

failing to approve the institution's application for renewal of its certification to participate in Title IV programs; or

referring a matter for possible civil or criminal investigation.

If we are found not to have satisfied the Department's administrative capability requirements, we could be limited in our access to, or lose,
Title IV program funding, which would have a material adverse effect on our enrollment, revenues and results of operations.

Our institutions are subject to sanctions if they fail to correctly calculate and return Title IV program funds in a timely manner for students
who withdraw before completing their educational program.

An institution participating in Title IV programs must correctly calculate the amount of unearned Title IV program funds that have been
disbursed to students who withdraw from their educational programs before completion and must return those unearned funds in a timely
manner, generally within 45 days of the date the school determines that the student has withdrawn. Under Department regulations, failure to
make timely returns of Title IV program funds for 5% or more of students sampled on the institution's annual compliance audit in either of its
two most recently completed fiscal years can result in an institution's having to post a letter of credit in an amount equal to 25% of its prior year
returns of Title IV program funds.

If unearned funds are not properly calculated and returned in a timely manner, an institution is also subject to monetary liabilities or an
action to impose a fine or to limit, suspend or terminate its participation in Title IV programs. In Finding 3 of the OIG's final audit report
pertaining to its compliance audit of Ashford University, the OIG asserted that Ashford University, during the 2006-2007 award year, did not in
all instances return Title IV funds timely for students who withdrew or went on a leave of absence from school. Accordingly, the OIG
recommended that the FSA (i) require Ashford University to develop and implement certain remedial policies and procedures and (ii) take
appropriate action to impose a fine on the university or to limit, suspend or terminate the institution's eligibility for Title IV programs. For more
information about the OIG's final audit report, see "Regulation Department Regulation of Title IV Programs Compliance reviews, audits and
reports” in Part I, Item 1 of this report.
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We may lose our eligibility to participate in Title IV programs if the percentage of our revenue derived from those programs is too high.

Pursuant to a provision of the Higher Education Act, a for-profit institution loses its eligibility to participate in Title IV programs if the
institution derives more than 90% of its revenues (calculated on a cash basis in accordance with applicable Department regulations) from Title
IV funds for two consecutive fiscal years. This rule is commonly referred to as the "90/10 rule." Any institution that violates the 90/10 rule
becomes ineligible to participate in Title IV programs for at least two fiscal years. In addition, an institution whose rate exceeds 90% for any
single year will be placed on provisional certification and may be subject to other enforcement measures.

In the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, Ashford University derived 85.0% and 85.5%, respectively, and the University of the
Rockies derived 85.9% and 84.6%, respectively, of their respective revenues (calculated on a cash basis in accordance with applicable
Department regulations) from Title IV funds. Ineligibility to participate in Title IV programs would have a material adverse effect on our
enrollments, revenues and results of operations. Recent changes in federal law which increased Title IV grant and loan limits, and any additional
increases in the future, may result in an increase in the revenues we receive from Title IV programs, which could make it more difficult for us to
satisfy the 90/10 rule.

We may lose our eligibility to participate in Title IV programs if our student loan default rates are too high.

For each federal fiscal year, the Department calculates a rate of student defaults for each educational institution which is known as a "cohort
default rate." An institution may lose its eligibility to participate in the Direct Loan, FFEL and Pell programs if, for each of the three most recent
federal fiscal years for which information is available, 25% or more of its students who became subject to a repayment obligation in that federal
fiscal year defaulted on such obligation by the end of the following federal fiscal year. In addition, an institution may lose its eligibility to
participate in the Direct Loan and FFEL programs if its cohort default rate exceeds 40% in the most recent federal fiscal year for which default
rates have been calculated by the Department. Ashford University's two-year cohort default rates for the 2008, 2007 and 2006 federal fiscal
years, were 13.3%, 13.3% and 4.1%, respectively. The two-year cohort default rates for the University of the Rockies for the 2008, 2007 and
2006 federal fiscal years were 2.5%, 0.0% and 0.0%, respectively. The draft cohort default rates for the 2009 federal fiscal year for Ashford
University and the University of the Rockies were 15.3% and 3.3%, respectively. An institution whose cohort default rate equals or exceeds 25%
in any one of the three most recent fiscal years for which rates have been issued by the Department may be placed on provisional certification by
the Department.

The August 2008 reauthorization of the Higher Education Act includes significant revisions to the requirements concerning cohort default
rates. Under the revised law, the period for which students' defaults on their loans are included in the calculation of an institution's cohort default
rate has been extended by one additional year, which is expected to increase the cohort default rates for most institutions. That change was
effective with the calculation of institutions' cohort default rates for the federal fiscal year ending September 30, 2009, which rates are expected
to be calculated and issued by the Department in 2012. The Department will not impose sanctions based on rates calculated under this new
methodology until three consecutive years of rates have been calculated, which is expected to occur in 2014. Until that time, the Department will
continue to calculate rates under the old calculation method and impose sanctions, if necessary, based on those rates. The revised law also
increases the threshold for ending an institution's participation in the relevant Title IV programs from 25% to 30%, effective for final three-year
cohort default rates published on or after the 2012 federal fiscal year. Ineligibility to participate in Title IV programs would have a material
adverse effect on our enrollments, revenue and results of operations. The revised law changes the threshold for placement on provisional
certification to 30% for two of the three most recent fiscal years for which the Department
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has published official three-year cohort default rates. Ashford University's unofficial or trial three-year cohort default rates for the 2008, 2007
and 2006 federal fiscal years were 21.7%, 17.4% and 6.1%, respectively. The trial three-year cohort default rates for the University of the
Rockies for the 2008, 2007 and 2006 federal fiscal years were 2.5%, 1.4% and 0.0%, respectively. The three-year cohort default rates are
considered "trial" because, as mentioned above, institutions are not required to calculate prior three-year repayment rates until 2012, and the
rates will not be the basis for measurement of compliance until 2014.

Our failure to comply with regulations of various states could preclude us from recruiting or enrolling students in those states or result in
such students being ineligible for Title 1V financial aid.

Various states impose regulatory requirements on educational institutions operating within their boundaries. Several states have sought to
assert jurisdiction over online educational institutions that have no physical location or other presence in the state but that offer educational
services to students who reside in the state or that advertise to or recruit prospective students in the state. State regulatory requirements for online
education are inconsistent between states and are not well developed in many jurisdictions. As such, these requirements are subject to change
and in some instances are unclear or are left to the discretion of state employees or agents. Our changing business and the constantly changing
regulatory environment require us to regularly evaluate our state regulatory compliance activities. If we are found not to be in compliance and a
state seeks to restrict one or more of our business activities within that state, we may not be able to recruit students from that state and may have
to cease recruiting or enrolling students in that state.

Although under current law the only state authorizations required for Ashford University and the University of the Rockies to participate in
Title IV programs are the exemption for Ashford University in the State of Iowa and the University of the Rockies' authorization from the
Colorado Commission of Higher Education, the loss of licensure or authorization in other states, or the assertion by other states that licensure is
required within their states, could prohibit us from recruiting or enrolling students in those states. However, effective July 1, 2011, the
Department regulations will impose new Title IV state authorization requirements for institutions that offer postsecondary education through
distance education to students in states in which it is not physically located or in which it is otherwise subject to state jurisdiction as determined
by the state. See "Regulation Department Regulation of Title IV Programs State authorization" in Part I, Item 1 of this report. Our failure to
comply with these requirements in one or more states could result in our inability to provide Title IV funds to students in those states.

If regulators do not approve or if they delay their approval of transactions involving a change of control of our company, our ability to
participate in Title IV programs may be impaired.

If we or either of our institutions undergoes a change of control under the standards of applicable state education agencies, the Higher
Learning Commission or the Department, we must seek the approval of each such regulatory agency. For more information, see
"Regulation Department Regulation of Title IV Programs Change in ownership resulting in a change of control" in Part I, Item 1 of this report. A
failure by us or one of our institutions to reestablish its state authorization, Higher Learning Commission accreditation or Department
certification, as applicable, following a change of control could result in a suspension or loss of operating authority or the ability to participate in
Title IV programs, which would have a material adverse effect on our enrollments, revenues and results of operations.
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We cannot offer new programs, expand our physical operations into certain states or acquire additional schools if such actions are not
approved in a timely fashion by the applicable regulatory agencies, and we may have to repay Title 1V funds disbursed to students enrolled in
any such programs, states or acquired schools if we do not obtain prior approval.

Our expansion efforts include offering new educational programs, some of which may require regulatory approval. In addition, we may
increase our physical operations in additional states and seek to acquire additional schools. If we are unable to obtain the necessary approvals for
such new programs, operations or acquisitions from the Department, the Higher Learning Commission or any applicable state education agency
or other accrediting agency, or if we are unable to obtain such approvals in a timely manner, our ability to consummate the planned actions and
provide Title IV funds to any affected students would be impaired, which could have a material adverse effect on our expansion plans. If we
were to determine erroneously that any such action did not need approval or had all required approvals, we could be liable for repayment of the
Title IV program funds provided to students in that program or at that location.

Our regulatory environment and our reputation may be negatively influenced by the actions of other postsecondary institutions.

In recent years, Congressional, federal, state and accrediting agency investigations and civil litigation have been commenced against several
postsecondary educational institutions. These investigations and lawsuits have alleged, among other things, deceptive trade practices and
noncompliance with Department regulations. These allegations have attracted adverse media coverage and have been the subject of federal and
state legislative hearings. Although the media, regulatory and legislative focus has been primarily on the allegations made against these specific
companies, broader allegations against the overall postsecondary sector may negatively impact public perceptions of postsecondary educational
institutions, including Ashford University and the University of the Rockies. Such allegations could result in increased scrutiny and regulation
by the Department, Congress, accrediting bodies, state legislatures or other governmental authorities on all postsecondary institutions, including
ours.

Risks Related to Our Business

If we become involved in protracted litigation or other legal proceedings, we could incur significant defense costs and losses in the event of
adverse outcomes.

From time to time, we are a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. If we
become involved in protracted litigation or legal proceedings, we could incur, in the event of adverse outcomes, significant defense costs,
monetary losses or restrictions on our business, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our enrollments, revenues and results of
operations.

For more information regarding current legal proceedings involving us, including a civil investigative demand from the Attorney General of
the State of Iowa, see "Legal Proceedings" in Part I, Item 3 of this report.

Our financial performance depends on our ability to continue to develop awareness among, to recruit and to retain students.

Building awareness among potential students of Ashford University and the University of the Rockies and the programs we offer is critical
to our ability to attract prospective students. It is also critical to our success that we convert these prospective students to enrolled students in a
cost-effective
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manner and that these enrolled students remain active in our programs. Some of the factors that could prevent us from successfully recruiting
and retaining students in our programs include:

the emergence of more and better competitors;

factors related to our marketing efforts, including the costs of Internet advertising and broad-based branding campaigns;

performance problems with our online systems;

failure to maintain accreditation and eligibility for Title IV programs;

student dissatisfaction with our services and programs;

a decrease in the perceived or actual economic benefits that students derive from our programs or programs provided by
private sector postsecondary education companies generally;

adverse publicity regarding us or online or private sector postsecondary education generally;

price reductions by competitors that we are unwilling or unable to match; and

a decline in the acceptance of online education or education provided by private sector postsecondary education companies.

Strong competition in the postsecondary education market, especially in the online education market, could decrease our market share,
increase our cost of recruiting students and put downward pressure on our tuition rates.

Postsecondary education is highly competitive. We compete with traditional public and private two- and four-year colleges as well as with
other postsecondary schools. Traditional colleges and universities may offer programs similar to ours at lower tuition levels as a result of
government subsidies, government and foundation grants, tax-deductible contributions and other financial sources not available to for-profit
postsecondary institutions. In addition, some of our competitors, including both traditional colleges and universities, have substantially greater
brand recognition and financial and other resources than we have, which may enable them to compete more effectively for potential students.
We also expect to face increased competition as a result of new entrants to the online education market, including traditional colleges and
universities that had not previously offered online education programs.

We may not be able to compete successfully against current or future competitors and may face competitive pressures that could adversely
affect our business. We may be required to reduce our tuition or increase spending in order to retain or to attract students or to pursue new
market opportunities. We may also face increased competition in maintaining and developing new marketing relationships with corporations,
particularly as corporations become more selective as to which online universities they will encourage their employees to attend and from which
they will hire prospective employees.

System disruptions and vulnerability from security risks to our technology infrastructure could impact our ability to generate revenue and
could damage the reputation of our institutions.

The performance and reliability of our technology infrastructure is critical to our reputation and to our ability to attract and retain students.
We license the software and related hosting and maintenance services for our online platform from Pearson eCollege ("eCollege") and the
software and related maintenance services for our student information system from Campus Management Corp., both of which are third-party
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sudden and significant increase in bandwidth usage, could result in the unavailability of systems to us or our students.

Our computer networks may also be vulnerable to unauthorized access, computer hackers, computer viruses and other security problems. A
user who circumvents security measures could misappropriate proprietary information or cause interruptions or malfunctions in operations. As a
result, we may be required to expend significant resources to protect against this threat. Although we continually monitor the security of our
technology infrastructure, we cannot assure you that these efforts will protect our computer networks against the threat of security breaches.

We may not be able to retain our key personnel or hire and retain the personnel we need to sustain and grow our business.

Our success depends largely on the skills, efforts and motivations of our executive officers, who generally have significant experience with
our company and within the education industry. Due to the nature of our business, we face significant competition in attracting and retaining
personnel who possess the skill sets we seek. In addition, key personnel may leave us and may subsequently compete against us. We do not
carry life insurance on our key personnel for our benefit. The loss of the services of any of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain
other qualified and experienced personnel on acceptable terms, could impair our ability to sustain and grow our business. In addition, because
we operate in a highly competitive industry, our hiring of qualified executives or other personnel may cause us or such persons to be subject to
lawsuits alleging misappropriation of trade secrets, improper solicitation of employees or other claims.

If we are unable to hire and to continue to develop new and existing employees responsible for student recruitment, the effectiveness of our
student recruiting efforts would be adversely affected.

To support our planned enrollment and revenue growth, we intend to (i) hire, develop and train a significant number of additional
employees responsible for student recruitment and (ii) retain and continue to develop and train our current student recruitment personnel. Our
ability to develop and maintain a strong student recruiting function may be affected by a number of factors, including our ability to integrate and
motivate our enrollment advisors, our ability to effectively train our enrollment advisors, the length of time it takes new enrollment advisors to
become productive, regulatory restrictions on the method of compensating enrollment advisors and the competition in hiring and retaining
enrollment advisors.

A decline in the overall growth of enrollment in postsecondary institutions, or in the number of students seeking degrees online or in our
core disciplines, could cause us to experience lower enrollment at our schools.

We have experienced significant growth since we acquired Ashford University in 2005. However, while we have continued to achieve
growth in revenues and enrollment year-over-year, these growth rates have declined in recent periods and may continue to decline in the future.
According to a November 2009 study by Eduventures projects a compound annual growth rate of 13% in online postsecondary enrollment over
the five-year period ending fall 2014. This rate of growth is slower than the 25.3% compound annual growth rate for the prior five-year period
ended in fall 2008, when online enrollment increased by an aggregate of 1.3 million. In order to maintain current growth rates, we will need to
attract a larger percentage of students in existing markets and expand our markets by creating new academic programs. In addition, if job growth
in the fields related to our core disciplines is weaker than expected, fewer students may seek the types of degrees that we offer.
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Our success depends in part on our ability to update and expand the content of existing programs and to develop new programs and
specializations on a timely basis and in a cost-effective manner.

The updates and expansions of our existing programs and the development of new programs and specializations may not be accepted by
existing or prospective students or employers. If we do not adequately respond to changes in market requirements, our business will be adversely
affected. Even if we are able to develop acceptable new programs, we may not be able to introduce these new programs as quickly as students
require or as quickly as our competitors introduce competing programs. To offer a new academic program, we may be required to obtain
appropriate federal, state and accrediting agency approvals, which may be conditioned or delayed in a manner that could significantly affect our
growth plans. In addition, to be eligible for federal student financial aid programs, a new academic program may need to be approved by the
Department.

Establishing new academic programs or modifying existing programs requires us to make investments in management and capital
expenditures, incur marketing expenses and reallocate other resources. We may have limited experience with the programs in new disciplines
and may need to modify our systems and strategy or enter into arrangements with other educational institutions to provide new programs
effectively and profitably. If we are unable to increase enrollment in new programs, offer new programs in a cost-effective manner or are
otherwise unable to manage effectively the operations of newly established academic programs, our revenues and results of operations could be
adversely affected.

Our failure to keep pace with changing market needs could harm our ability to attract students.

Our success depends to a large extent on the willingness of employers to hire, promote or increase the pay of our graduates. Increasingly,
employers demand that their new employees possess appropriate technical and analytical skills and also appropriate interpersonal skills, such as
communication and teamwork. These skills can evolve rapidly in a changing economic and technological environment. Accordingly, it is
important that our educational programs evolve in response to those economic and technological changes.

The expansion of existing academic programs and the development of new programs may not be accepted by current or prospective
students or by the employers of our graduates. Even if we develop acceptable new programs, we may not be able to begin offering those new
programs in a timely fashion or as quickly as our competitors offer similar programs. If we are unable to adequately respond to changes in
market requirements due to regulatory or financial constraints, unusually rapid technological changes or other factors, the rates at which our
graduates obtain jobs in their fields of study could suffer, our ability to attract and retain students could be impaired and our business could be
adversely affected.

We are subject to laws and regulations as a result of our collection and use of personal information, and any violations of such laws or
regulations, or any breach, theft or loss of such information, could adversely affect us.

Possession and use of personal information in our operations subjects us to risks and costs that could harm our business. We collect, use
and retain large amounts of personal information regarding our applicants, students, faculty, staff and their families, including social security
numbers, tax return information, personal and family financial data and credit card numbers. We also collect and maintain personal information
about our employees in the ordinary course of our business. Our services can be accessed globally through the Internet. Therefore, we may be
subject to the application of national privacy laws in countries outside the United States from which applicants and students access our services.
Such privacy laws could impose conditions that limit the way we market and provide our services. Our computer networks and the networks of
certain of our vendors that hold and manage
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confidential information on our behalf may be vulnerable to unauthorized access, employee theft or misuse, computer hackers, computer viruses
and other security threats. Confidential information may also inadvertently become available to third parties when we integrate systems or
migrate data to our servers following an acquisition of a school or in connection with periodic hardware or software upgrades. Due to the
sensitive nature of the personal information stored on our servers, our networks may be targeted by hackers seeking to access this data. A user
who circumvents security measures could misappropriate sensitive information or cause interruptions or malfunctions in our operations.
Although we use security and business controls to limit access and use of personal information, a third party may be able to circumvent those
security and business controls, which could result in a breach of student or employee privacy. In addition, errors in the storage, use or
transmission of personal information could result in a breach of privacy for current or prospective students or employees. Possession and use of
personal information in our operations also subjects us to legislative and regulatory burdens that could require notification of data breaches and
could restrict our use of personal information, and a violation of any laws or regulations relating to the collection or use of personal information
could result in the imposition of fines against us or lawsuits brought against us. As a result, we may be required to expend significant resources
to protect against the threat of these security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by these breaches. A major breach, theft or loss of personal
information regarding our students and their families or our employees that is held by us or our vendors, or a violation of laws or regulations
relating to the same, could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, result in lawsuits and could result in further regulation and oversight
by federal and state authorities and increased costs of compliance.

If we fail to maintain adequate systems and processes to detect and prevent fraudulent activity in student enrollment and financial aid, our
business could be adversely impacted.

As we continue to grow, we are susceptible to an increased risk of fraudulent activity by outside parties with respect to student enrollment
and student financial aid programs. While we believe past incidents of fraudulent activity have been relatively isolated, we cannot be certain that
our systems and processes will always be adequate in the face of increasingly sophisticated and ever-changing fraud schemes. The potential for
outside parties to perpetrate fraud in connection with the award and disbursement of Title IV program funds, including as a result of identity
theft, may be heightened due to our nature as an online education provider. We must maintain systems and processes to identify and prevent
fraudulent applications for enrollment and financial aid.

The Department requires institutions that participate in Title IV programs to refer to the OIG any credible information indicating that any
applicant, employee, third-party servicer or agent of the institution that acts in a capacity that involves administration of the Title IV programs
has been engaged in any fraud or other illegal conduct involving Title IV programs. If the systems and processes that we have established to
detect and prevent fraud are inadequate, the Department may find that we do not satisfy its "administrative capability" requirements. This could
result in our being limited in our access to, or our losing, Title IV program funding, which would adversely affect our enrollment, revenues and
results of operations. In addition, our ability to participate in Title IV programs is conditioned on our maintaining accreditation by an accrediting
agency that is recognized by the Secretary of Education. Any significant failure to adequately detect fraudulent activity related to student
enrollment and financial aid could cause us to fail to meet our accrediting agencies' standards. Furthermore, under the Higher Education Act,
accrediting agencies that evaluate institutions that offer distance learning programs, as we do, must require such institutions to have processes
through which the institution establishes that a student who registers for a distance education program is the same student who participates in
and receives credit for the program. Failure to meet our accrediting agencies' standards could result in the loss of accreditation at the discretion
of our accrediting agencies, which could result in a loss of our eligibility to participate in Title IV programs and would adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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An increase in interest rates could adversely affect our ability to attract and retain students.

Interest rates have reached relatively low levels in recent years, creating a favorable borrowing environment for students. However, if
Congress increases interest rates on Title IV loans, or if private loan interest rates rise, our students would have to pay higher interest rates on
their loans. Any future increase in interest rates will result in a corresponding increase in educational costs to our existing and prospective
students. Higher interest rates could also contribute to higher default rates with respect to our students' repayment of their education loans.
Higher default rates may in turn adversely impact our eligibility to participate in some or all Title IV programs, which would have a material
adverse effect on our enrollment, revenues and results of operations.

Our growth may place a strain on our resources.

We have experienced significant growth since we acquired Ashford University in 2005. The growth that we have experienced in the past, as
well as any further growth that we experience, may place a significant strain on our resources and increase demands on our management
information and reporting systems and financial management controls. If we are unable to manage our growth effectively while maintaining
appropriate internal controls, we may experience operating inefficiencies that could increase our costs.

We rely on exclusive proprietary rights and intellectual property that may not be adequately protected under current laws, and we may
encounter disputes from time to time relating to our use of intellectual property of third parties.

Our success depends in part on our ability to protect our proprietary rights. We rely on a combination of copyrights, patents, trademarks,
service marks, trade secrets, domain names and agreements to protect our proprietary rights. We rely on service mark and trademark protection
in the United States and select foreign jurisdictions to protect our rights to the marks "Ashford," "Ashford University," "Bridgepoint,"
"Classline" and "Smart Track" as well as distinctive logos and other marks associated with our services. We have also applied for patent
protection in the United States for our Constellation technology. We rely on agreements under which we obtain rights to use course content
developed by faculty members and other third-party content experts. We cannot assure you that these measures will be adequate, that we have
secured, or will be able to secure, appropriate protections for all of our proprietary rights in the United States or select foreign jurisdictions or
that third parties will not infringe upon or violate our proprietary rights. Despite our efforts to protect these rights, unauthorized third parties may
attempt to duplicate or copy the proprietary aspects of our curricula, online resource material and other content. Our management's attention may
be diverted by these attempts, and we may need to use funds in litigation to protect our proprietary rights against any infringement or violation.

We may encounter disputes from time to time over rights and obligations concerning intellectual property, and we may not prevail in these
disputes. In certain instances, we may not have obtained sufficient rights in the content of a course. Third parties may raise a claim against us
alleging an infringement or violation of the intellectual property of that third party. Some third party intellectual property rights may be
extremely broad, and it may not be possible for us to conduct our operations in such a way as to avoid those intellectual property rights. Any
such intellectual property claim could subject us to costly litigation and impose a significant strain on our financial resources and management
personnel regardless of whether such claim has merit. Our insurance may not cover potential claims of this type adequately or at all, and we may
be required to alter the content of our classes or pay monetary damages, which may be significant.
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We may incur liability for the unauthorized duplication or distribution of class materials posted online for class discussions.

In some instances our faculty members or our students may post various articles or other third-party content on class discussion boards. We
may incur liability for the unauthorized duplication or distribution of this material posted online for class discussions. Third parties may raise
claims against us for the unauthorized duplication of this material. Any such claims could subject us to costly litigation and could impose a
significant strain on our financial resources and management personnel regardless of whether the claims have merit. Our general liability
insurance may not cover potential claims of this type adequately or at all, and we may be required to alter the content of our courses or pay
monetary damages.

Our student enrollment and revenues could decrease if the government tuition assistance offered to military personnel is reduced or
eliminated, if scholarships which we offer to military personnel are reduced or eliminated or if our relationships with military bases
deteriorate.

As of December 31, 2010, 18.6% of our students were affiliated with the military, some of whom are eligible to receive tuition assistance
from the government, which they may use to pursue postsecondary degrees. If governmental tuition assistance programs to active duty members
of the military are reduced or eliminated or if our relationships with any military base deteriorates, our enrollment could suffer. Additionally, we
provide scholarships to students who are affiliated with the military. If we reduce or eliminate our scholarships, our enrollment by military
personnel may suffer. In addition, if we increase our scholarships, our per student revenue from military affiliated personnel will decline.

Our expenses may cause us to incur operating losses if we are unsuccessful in achieving growth.

Our spending is based, in significant part, on our estimates of future revenue and is largely fixed in the short term. As a result, we may be
unable to adjust our spending in a timely manner if our revenue falls short of our expectations. Accordingly, any significant shortfall in revenues
in relation to our expectations would have an immediate and material adverse effect on our profitability. In addition, as our business grows, we
anticipate increasing our operating expenses to expand our program offerings, marketing initiatives and administrative organization. Any such
expansion could cause material losses to the extent we do not generate additional revenues sufficient to cover those expenses.

Seasonal and other fluctuations in our results of operations could adversely affect the trading price of our common stock.

Although not apparent in our results of operations due to our rapid rate of growth, our operations are generally subject to seasonal trends.
As our growth rate declines we expect to experience seasonal fluctuations in results of operations as a result of changes in the level of student
enrollment. While we enroll students throughout the year, first and fourth quarter new enrollments and revenue generally are lower than other
quarters due to the holiday break in December and January. We generally experience a seasonal increase in new enrollments in August and
September of each year when most other colleges and universities begin their fall semesters. These fluctuations may cause volatility in or have
an adverse effect on the market price of our stock.

We have a limited operating history. Accordingly, our historical and recent financial and business results may not necessarily be
representative of what such results will be in the future.

We have a limited operating history on which you can evaluate our business strategy, our financial results and trends in our business. As a
result, our historical results and trends, including enrollments, cohort default rates and bad debt expense, may not be indicative of our future

results. We are subject
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to risks and uncertainties that are not typically encountered by companies that have longer operating histories or that are in more mature
businesses. Therefore, our recent operating history may not be representative of our business going forward, and we may not be able to sustain
our recent profitability.

Government regulations relating to the Internet could increase our cost of doing business, affect our ability to grow or otherwise have a
material adverse effect on our business.

The increasing popularity and use of the Internet and other online services has led and may lead to the adoption of new laws and regulatory
practices in the United States or in foreign countries and to new interpretations of existing laws and regulations. These new laws and
interpretations may relate to issues such as online privacy, copyrights, trademarks and service marks, sales taxes, fair business practices and the
requirement that online education institutions qualify to do business as foreign corporations or be licensed in one or more jurisdictions where
they have no physical location or other presence. New laws, regulations or interpretations related to doing business over the Internet could
increase our costs and materially and adversely affect our enrollments.

We use third-party software for our online platform, and if the provider of that software was to cease to do business or was acquired by a
competitor, we may have difficulty maintaining the software required for our online platform or updating it for future technological
changes.

In September 2009, we entered into a license agreement with eCollege pursuant to which we agreed to license from eCollege an online
learning platform for our students. The eCollege online learning platform provides an online learning management system which provides for
the storage, management and delivery of course content. This platform also includes collaborative spaces for student communication and
participation with other students and faculty as well as grade and attendance management for faculty and assessment capabilities to assist us in
maintaining quality. We rely on eCollege for administrative support and hosting of the applicable systems. If eCollege ceases to operate or is
unable or unwilling to continue to provide us with services or upgrades on a timely basis, we may have difficulty maintaining the software
required for our online platform or updating it for future technological changes.

Our failure to comply with environmental laws and regulations governing our activities could result in financial penalties and other costs.

We use hazardous materials at our ground campuses and generate small quantities of waste, such as used oil, antifreeze, paint, car batteries
and laboratory materials. Additionally, we purchased real property nearby our Ashford University campus in Clinton, lowa, for purposes of
future campus expansion and student housing at which we have identified minor environmental issues. We are subject to a variety of
environmental laws and regulations governing, among other things, the use, storage and disposal of solid and hazardous substances and waste
and the clean-up of contamination at our facilities or off-site locations to which we send or have sent waste for disposal. If we do not maintain
compliance with any of these laws and regulations, or are responsible for a spill or release of hazardous materials, we could incur significant
costs for clean-up, damages and fines or penalties.

Our failure to obtain additional capital in the future could adversely affect our ability to grow.

We believe that cash flow from operations will be adequate to fund our current operating and growth plans for the foreseeable future.
However, we may need additional financing in order to finance our continued growth, particularly if we pursue any acquisitions. The amount,
timing and terms of such additional financing will vary principally depending on the timing and size of new program offerings, the timing and
size of acquisitions we may seek to consummate and the amount of cash flows from our operations. To the extent that we require additional
financing in the future, such financing may not be
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available on terms acceptable to us or at all and, consequently, we may not be able to fully implement our growth strategy.

Failure to comply with the terms of our Credit Agreement with Comerica Bank could impair our rights to the assets we pledged as collateral
under this agreement.

In January 2010, we entered into a Credit Agreement (and related documents) with Comerica Bank, or Comerica, pursuant to which we
may borrow up to $50 million pursuant to a revolving line of credit. To secure our obligations under the Credit Agreement (and related
documents), we granted Comerica a first priority security interest in substantially all of our assets, including our real property. If an event of
default occurs or if we otherwise fail to comply with any of the negative or affirmative covenants of the Credit Agreement (and related
documents), Comerica may declare all of the obligations and indebtedness under the Credit Agreement (and related documents) due and
payable. For more information about the Credit Agreement and related documents, see Note 7, "Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt," to our
annual consolidated financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this report. In such a scenario, we may lose our right, title, and interest
in the property that secures such obligations and indebtedness.

If we are not able to integrate acquired institutions, our business could be harmed.
From time to time, we may pursue acquisitions of other institutions. Integrating acquired operations into our business involves significant

risks and uncertainties, including:

inability to maintain uniform standards, controls, policies and procedures;

distraction of management's attention from normal business operations during the integration process;

inability to obtain, or delay in obtaining, approval of the acquisition from the necessary regulatory agencies, or the
imposition of operating restrictions or a letter of credit requirement on us or on the acquired school by any of those

regulatory agencies;

expenses associated with the integration efforts; and

unidentified issues not discovered in our due diligence process, including legal contingencies.
A protracted economic slowdown and rising unemployment could harm our business.

We believe that many students pursue postsecondary education to be more competitive in the job market. However, a protracted economic
slowdown could increase unemployment and diminish job prospects generally. Diminished job prospects and heightened financial worries could
affect the willingness of students to incur loans to pay for postsecondary education and to pursue postsecondary education in general. As a result,
our enrollment could suffer.

In addition, many of our students borrow Title IV loans to pay for tuition, fees and other expenses. A protracted economic slowdown could
negatively impact our students' ability to repay those loans which would negatively impact our cohort default rate. See "Risks Related to the
Extensive Regulation of Our Business We may lose eligibility to participate in Title IV programs if our student loan default rates are too high"
above.

Our students also are frequently able to borrow Title IV loans in excess of their tuition. The excess is received by the students as a stipend.
However, if a student withdraws, we must return any unearned Title IV funds including stipends. A protracted economic slowdown could
negatively impact our students' ability to repay those stipends. As a result, the amount of Title IV funds we would have to return without
reimbursement from students (and our bad debt expense) could increase, and our results could suffer.
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Our corporate headquarters are located in a high brush fire danger area and near major earthquake fault lines.

Our corporate headquarters are located in San Diego, California in a high brush fire danger area and near major earthquake fault lines. We
could be materially and adversely affected in the event of a brush fire or major earthquake, either of which could significantly disrupt our
business.

Risk Related to Our Common Stock
The price of our common stock has fluctuated significantly and you could lose all or part of your investment.

Volatility in the market price of our common stock may prevent you from being able to sell your shares at or above the price you paid for
your shares. The market price of our common stock has fluctuated in the past, and there is no assurance it will not continue to fluctuate
significantly for various reasons, which include:

our quarterly or annual earnings or those of other companies in our industry;

the public's reaction to our press releases, our other public announcements and our filings with the SEC;

changes in earnings estimates or recommendations by research analysts who track our common stock or the stocks of other
companies in our industry;

seasonal variations in our student enrollment;

new laws or regulations or new interpretations of laws or regulations applicable to our business;

changes in our enrollment or in the growth rate of our enrollment;

changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations or principles;

litigation involving our company or investigations or audits by regulators into the operations of our company or our
competitors;

sales of common stock by our directors, executive officers and significant stockholders; and

changes in general conditions in the United States and global economies or financial markets, including those resulting from
war, incidents of terrorism or responses to such events.

In addition, in recent years, the stock market has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations. This volatility has had a significant
impact on the market price of securities issued by many companies, including companies in our industry. Changes may occur without regard to
the operating performance of these companies. The price of our common stock could fluctuate based upon factors that have little or nothing to
do with our company.

If securities or industry analysts change their recommendations regarding our stock adversely or if our operating results do not meet their
expectations, our stock price could decline.
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The trading market for our common stock is influenced by the research and reports that industry or securities analysts publish about us or
our business. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of our company or fail to publish reports on us regularly, we could lose visibility in
the financial markets, which in turn could cause our stock price or trading volume to decline. Moreover, if one or more of the analysts who cover
our company downgrade our stock or if our operating results do not meet their expectations, our stock price could decline.
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As a public company, we are subject to financial and other reporting and corporate governance requirements that can be difficult for us to
satisfy and may divert management attention from our business.

As a public company, we are required to file with the SEC annual and quarterly information and other reports pursuant to the Exchange
Act. We are required to ensure that we have the ability to prepare financial statements that comply with SEC reporting requirements on a timely
basis. We are also subject to other reporting and corporate governance requirements, including the listing standards of the NYSE and certain
provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder, which impose significant compliance obligations upon us.
Specifically, we are required to:

prepare and distribute periodic reports and other stockholder communications in compliance with our obligations under the
federal securities laws and NYSE rules;

create or expand the roles and duties of our board of directors and committees of the board;

institute compliance and internal audit functions that are more comprehensive;

evaluate and maintain our system of internal control over financial reporting, and report on management's assessment
thereof, in compliance with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the related rules and regulations

of the SEC and the PCAOB;

involve and retain outside legal counsel and accountants in connection with the activities listed above;

enhance our investor relations function; and

maintain internal policies, including those relating to disclosure controls and procedures.

As a public company we are required to commit significant resources and management oversight to the above-listed requirements which
causes us to incur significant costs and which places a strain on our systems and resources. As a result, our management's attention might be
diverted from other business concerns.

If we are unable to implement the requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner or with adequate compliance, our independent registered
public accounting firm may not be able to report on the adequacy of our internal control over financial reporting. If we are unable to maintain
adequate internal control over financial reporting, we may be unable to report our financial information on a timely basis and may suffer adverse
regulatory consequences or violations of NYSE listing standards. There could also be a negative reaction in the financial markets due to a loss of
investor confidence in us and the reliability of our financial statements.

Sales of outstanding shares of our stock into the market in the future could cause the market price of our stock to drop significantly, even if
our business is doing well.

If our stockholders sell, or indicate an intention to sell, substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, the trading price of
our common stock could decline. At December 31, 2010, 52.8 million shares of our common stock were outstanding. Pursuant to Rule 144
under the Securities Act, shares held by non-affiliates for more than six months may generally be sold without restriction, other than a current
public information requirement, and may be sold freely without any restrictions after one year. Shares held by affiliates may also be sold under
Rule 144, subject to applicable restrictions, including volume and manner of sale limitations.

In addition, as of December 31, 2010, there were 10.2 million shares underlying outstanding options and 0.3 million shares underlying
outstanding warrants. All shares subject to outstanding options and warrants are eligible for sale in the public market to the extent permitted by
the provisions of various option and warrant agreements and Rule 144. If these additional shares are sold, or if it is perceived that they will be
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Your percentage ownership in us may be diluted by future issuances of capital stock, which could reduce your influence over matters on
which stockholders vote.

Subject to NYSE rules, our board of directors has the authority, without action or vote of our stockholders, to issue all or any part of our
authorized but unissued shares of common stock, including shares issuable upon the exercise of options, shares that may be issued to satisfy our
obligations under our incentive plans or shares of our authorized but unissued preferred stock. Issuances of common stock or voting preferred
stock would reduce your influence over matters on which our stockholders vote and, in the case of issuances of preferred stock, likely would
result in your interest in us being subject to the prior rights of holders of that preferred stock.

Our principal stockholder has significant influence over matters requiring stockholder approval and access to our management.

As of December 31, 2010, Warburg Pincus beneficially owned 65.5% of our outstanding common stock. Warburg Pincus may exercise
significant influence over the election of our directors, amendments to our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and other actions requiring the
vote or consent of our stockholders, including mergers, going private transactions and other extraordinary transactions. The ownership position
of Warburg Pincus may have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a change of control or a change in the composition of our board of
directors.

Additionally, in February 2009, we entered into a nominating agreement with Warburg Pincus. Under the nominating agreement, as long as
Warburg Pincus beneficially owns at least 15% of the outstanding shares of common stock, we will, subject to our fiduciary obligations,
nominate and recommend to our stockholders that two individuals designated by Warburg Pincus be elected to the board. Additionally, if
Warburg Pincus beneficially owns less than 15% but more than 5% of the outstanding shares of common stock, we will, subject to our fiduciary
obligations, nominate and recommend to our stockholders that one individual designated by Warburg Pincus be elected to the board. Two
directors affiliated with Warburg Pincus, Patrick T. Hackett and Adarsh Sarma, currently serve on our board of directors.

We currently do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock and, consequently, your only opportunity to achieve a return on your
investment is if the price of our common stock appreciates.

We do not expect to pay dividends on shares of our common stock in the foreseeable future and we intend to use cash to grow our business.
Consequently, your only opportunity to achieve a positive return on your investment in us will be if the market price of our common stock
appreciates.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Delaware law may discourage, delay or prevent a change of control of our
company or changes in our management and, therefore, may depress the trading price of our stock.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that could depress the trading price of our stock by acting to discourage,
delay or prevent a change of control of our company or changes in our management that the stockholders of our company may deem
advantageous. These provisions:

authorize the issuance of "blank check" preferred stock that our board of directors could issue to increase the number of
outstanding shares to discourage a takeover attempt;

provide for a classified board of directors (three classes);

provide that stockholders may only remove directors for cause;

63

76



Edgar Filing: Bridgepoint Education Inc - Form 10-K

Table of Contents

provide that any vacancy on our board of directors, including a vacancy resulting from an increase in the size of the board,
may only be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of our directors then in office, even if less than a quorum;

provide that a special meeting of stockholders may only be called by our board of directors or by our chief executive officer;

provide that action by written consent of the stockholders may be taken only if the board of directors first approves such
action, except that if Warburg Pincus holds at least 50% of our outstanding capital stock on a fully diluted basis, whenever
the vote of stockholders is required at a meeting for any corporate action, the meeting and vote of stockholders may be
dispensed with, and the action taken without such meeting and vote, if a written consent is signed by the holders of
outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such
action at the meeting of stockholders; provided that, notwithstanding the foregoing, we will hold an annual meeting of
stockholders in accordance with NYSE rules, for so long as our shares are listed on the NYSE, and as otherwise required by

the bylaws;

provide that the board of directors is expressly authorized to make, alter or repeal our bylaws; and

establish advance notice requirements for nominations for elections to our board of directors or for proposing matters that
can be acted upon by stockholders at stockholder meetings.

Additionally, we are subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which generally prohibits a Delaware corporation
from engaging in any of a broad range of business combinations with any "interested" stockholder for a period of three years following the date
on which the stockholder became an "interested" stockholder.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.

Corporate headquarters. Our corporate headquarters in San Diego, California, where we house certain enrollment services, student
support services and corporate functions, occupy an aggregate of 323,000 square feet pursuant to leases that expire in 2017 and 2018. We
occupy an additional 357,000 square feet at three locations in San Diego, under leases that expire between 2012 and 2020, which house
additional enrollment services, student support services and corporate functions. We have also entered into a lease for 193,000 square feet of
space in San Diego to be constructed and occupied in 2012. In February 2011, we entered into a lease for 151,000 rentable square feet in
Denver, Colorado, which we expect to begin to occupy in August 2011; such space will be used for administrative offices, meeting rooms and
online support services. Additionally, we occupy 36,700 square feet under a lease that expires in 2014 in Clinton, Iowa, to complement our
California enrollment services and student services functions.

Campus facilities. 'We own campus facilities consisting of several academic, athletic, administrative, housing and student services
buildings on an aggregate of over 160 acres over four sites in Clinton, Iowa, for Ashford University. We lease 39,000 square feet in Colorado
Springs, Colorado, for the University of the Rockies campus under leases that expires between 2012 and 2015.

We pledged as collateral to Comerica Bank the properties we own in Iowa as security for the performance of our obligations under the loan
documents we signed in connection with our $50 million revolving line of credit with Comerica Bank. For more information regarding this line

of credit, see
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Note 7, "Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt," to our annual consolidated financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this report.

We believe our existing facilities are suitable and adequate for current requirements and that additional space can be obtained on
commercially reasonable terms to meet future requirements.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
From time to time, we are a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of our business.

In January 2011, we received a copy of a complaint in a purported class action lawsuit naming us, Ashford University and University of the
Rockies as defendants. The complaint was filed in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of California on January 11, 2011, and is
captioned, Scott Rosendahl and Veronica Clark v. Bridgepoint Education, Inc., Ashford University and University of the Rockies. The complaint
generally alleges that we and the other defendants engaged in improper, fraudulent and illegal behavior in their efforts to recruit and retain
students. We believe the lawsuit is without merit and intend to vigorously defend against it.

In February 2011, Ashford University received from the Attorney General of the State of Iowa a Civil Investigative Demand and Notice of
Intent to Proceed ("CID") relating to the Attorney General's investigation of whether certain of the university's business practices comply with
Iowa consumer laws. The CID contains no specific allegations of wrongdoing. Pursuant to the CID, the Attorney General has requested
documents and detailed information for the time period January 1, 2008 to present. Ashford University is evaluating the CID and intends to
comply with the Attorney General's request.

In February 2011, we received a copy of a complaint in a purported class action lawsuit naming us, Ashford University, LLC, and certain of
our employees as defendants. The complaint was filed in the Superior Court of the State of California in San Diego on February 17, 2011, and is
captioned Stevens v. Bridgepoint Education, Inc. The complaint generally alleges that the plaintiffs and similarly situated employees were
improperly denied certain wage and hour protections under California law. We believe the lawsuit is without merit and intend to vigorously
defend against it.

Item 4. Reserved.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
Market Information

Our common stock has been listed on the NYSE under the symbol "BPI" since it began trading on April 15, 2009. Shares sold in our initial
public offering on April 15, 2009, were priced at $10.50 per share. The following table sets forth, for the time periods indicated, the high and
low sale prices of our common stock as reported on the NYSE.

High Low

2009

Second Quarter (beginning April 15, 2009) $ 17.15 $ 956
Third Quarter $ 2190 $ 1490
Fourth Quarter $ 1795 $ 1359
2010

First Quarter $ 2576 $ 14.17
Second Quarter $ 2750 $ 1572
Third Quarter $ 1931 $ 1275
Fourth Quarter $ 1967 $ 13.65
Holders of Record

As of February 25, 2011, there were 16 holders of record of our common stock, including the Depository Trust Company, which holds
shares on behalf of an indeterminate number of beneficial owners.

Dividend Policy

We currently intend to retain any future earnings and do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future
determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon our financial condition, operating
results, capital requirements, any contractual restrictions and such other factors as our board of directors may deem appropriate.

In connection with our $50 million revolving line of credit with Comerica Bank, or Comerica, (i) Comerica must approve dividend
payments, stock redemptions and other specified cash expenditures exceeding an aggregate of $75.0 million per year, and (ii) we must at all
times maintain on deposit with Comerica or its affiliates an amount equal to 25% of "budgeted cash," as specified in the loan documents related
to the line of credit, for the month most recently ended. For more information regarding this line of credit, see Note 7, "Notes Payable and
Long-Term Debt," to our annual consolidated financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this report.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.

Purchases of Equity Securities
None within the fourth quarter of 2010.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative 20 month total return provided stockholders on Bridgepoint Education Inc.'s common stock
relative to the cumulative total returns of the Russell 3000 index, and a customized peer group of four companies that includes: American Public
Education, Inc., Capella Education Company, Grand Canyon Education, Inc. and Strayer Education, Inc. An investment of $100 (with
reinvestment of all dividends) is assumed to have been made in our common stock, in the peer group, and the index on April 15, 2009, and its
relative performance is tracked through December 31, 2010.

COMPARISON OF 20 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Bridgepoint Education Inc., the Russell 3000 Index
and a Peer Group

This performance graph shall not be deemed "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or incorporated by reference into
any filing of Bridgepoint Education, Inc. under the Securities Act, or the Exchange Act, except as shall be expressly set forth by
specific reference in such filing.

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data.

You should read the following selected consolidated financial and other data in conjunction with Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," and our audited consolidated financial statements, which are included
elsewhere in this report. The consolidated statement of income data, consolidated balance sheet data, and consolidated other data set forth below
as of December 31, 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006 and for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006 have been
derived from our audited consolidated
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financial statements. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for future periods. We declared no cash

dividends during the periods presented.

Consolidated Statement of Income

Data:

Revenue

Costs and expenses:
Instructional costs and services(1)
Marketing and promotional(2)
General and administrative(3)

Total costs and expenses

Operating income (loss)
Interest income
Interest expense

Income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income (loss)
Accretion of preferred dividends(4)

Net income available (loss attributable)
to common stockholders

Earnings (loss) per common share(5):
Basic
Diluted
Shares used in computing earnings
(loss) per common share(5):
Basic
Diluted

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

2010

187,399
211,550
97,863

496,812

216,421
(1,568)

210

217,779
90,199

127,580

$ 127,580

$ 2.37
$ 2.14

53,724
59,631

@D LB

Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands, except per share data)
$ 713233 $ 454324 $ 218,290 $ 85,709 $ 28,619
120,089 62,822 29,837 12,510
145,721 81,036 35,997 12,214
106,784 41,012 15,892 8,704
372,594 184,870 81,726 33,428
81,730 33,420 3,983 (4,809)
(789) (322) (12) (10)
279 240 544 351
82,240 33,502 3,451 (5,150)
35,135 7,071 164
47,105 26,431 3,287 (5,150)
645 2,006 1,856 1,718
46,460 $ 24425 $ 1,431 $§ (6,868)
085 $ 038 $ 0.01 $ (2.15)
0.74 $ 0.16 $ 001 $ (2.15)
39,349 3,335 3,311 3,197
45,181 7,757 4,446 3,197
As of December 31,
2010 2009 2008 2007

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities

Total assets

Total indebtedness (including short-term indebtedness)

Redeemable convertible preferred stock
Total stockholders' equity (deficit)

(In thousands)

$ 299,129 $ 170,550 $

471,225 295,231

635

238,241 134,609
68

56,483
129,246
684
27,062
6,109

$ 7351
39,057
5,673
25,056
(20,143)

$

2006

54
17,091
4,193
23,200

(21,692)
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Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands, except enrollment data)
Consolidated Other
Data:
Capital expenditures $ 26568 $ 24249 $ 15884 $ 3,571 $ 1,381
Depreciation and
amortization 8,565 5,890 2,452 1,236 735
Cash flows provided by
(used in):
Operating activities 189,949 131,727 70,748 10,367 (1,082)
Investing activities (94,472) (70,030) (16,550) (2,936) (1,373)
Financing activities (32,521) 7,382 (5,066) (134) 346
Period end enrollment
(unaudited)(6):
Online 77,033 53,048 30,921 12,104 4,111
Campus-based 859 640 637 519 360
Total 77,892 53,688 31,558 12,623 4,471
(D

@

3

)

&)

(©)

In the second quarter of 2009, we recorded a non-cash expense of $2.1 million related to the instructional costs and services portion of
the acceleration of exit options which occurred in connection with our initial public offering. See Note 11, "Stock-Based
Compensation," to our annual consolidated financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this report.

In the second quarter of 2009, we recorded a non-cash expense of $5.0 million related to the marketing and promotional portion of the
acceleration of exit options which occurred in connection with our initial public offering. See Note 11, "Stock-Based Compensation,"
to our annual consolidated financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this report.

In the first quarter of 2009, we recorded $11.1 million related to the settlement of a stockholder claim (of which $10.6 million was
non-cash). See Note 19, "Stockholder Dispute," to our annual consolidated financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this
report. In the second quarter of 2009, we recorded a non-cash expense of $23.3 million related to the general and administrative
portion of the acceleration of exit options which occurred in connection with our initial public offering. See Note 11, "Stock-Based
Compensation,” to our annual consolidated financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this report. In the fourth quarter of
2008, we recorded stock-based compensation expense of $1.6 million related to the modification of a stock award held by a director.
See Note 16, "Related Party Transactions Director Agreement," to our annual consolidated financial statements, which are included
elsewhere in this report.

The holders of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock earned preferred dividends, accreting at the rate of 8% per year, compounding
annually. See Note 10, "Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock," to our annual consolidated financial statements, which are included
elsewhere in this report.

All basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share and average shares outstanding information for all periods presented have been adjusted
to reflect the 1-for-4.5 reverse stock split. See Note 2, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Reverse Stock Split," to our
annual consolidated financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this report. For more information regarding earnings per
share calculations, see Note 9, "Earnings Per Share," to our consolidated annual financial statements, which are included elsewhere in
this report.
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active student if he or she has attended a class within the prior 30 days unless the student has graduated or has provided us with notice
of withdrawal.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this
report. In addition to historical information, this discussion includes forward-looking information that involves risks and assumptions which
could cause actual results to differ materially from management's expectations. See Part I, Item 1A, "Risk Factors," and Special Note Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements at the beginning of this report.

Overview

We are a provider of postsecondary education services. Our regionally accredited academic institutions offer associate's, bachelor's,
master's and doctoral programs in the disciplines of business, education, psychology, social sciences and health sciences. Our institutions deliver
programs online as well as at their traditional campuses located in Clinton, Iowa and Colorado Springs, Colorado. As of December 31, 2010, our
institutions offered approximately 1,345 courses, 71 degree programs and 134 specializations. For more information on our business, see
"Business Overview" in Part I, Item 1 of this report.

Key operating data

In evaluating our operating performance, our management focuses in large part on (i) revenue, (ii) operating income and (iii) period end
enrollment at our academic institutions (online and campus-based). The following table, which you should read in conjunction with our annual
consolidated financial statements, which are contained elsewhere in this report, presents our key operating data for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 (in thousands, except for enrollment data):

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008

Consolidated
Statement of Income
Data:
Revenue $ 713,233 $ 454324 $§ 218,290
Operating Income(1)  $ 216421 $ 81,730 $ 33,420
Consolidated Other
Data:
Period end
enrollment
(unaudited)(2)

Online 77,033 53,048 30,921

Campus 859 640 637

Total 77,892 53,688 31,558
)]

In 2009, we recorded $30.4 million related to the acceleration of certain exit options and $11.1 million related to the settlement of a

stockholder claim (of which $10.6 million was non-cash). See "Factors Affecting Comparability" below.

@
We define enrollments as the number of active students on the last day of the financial reporting period. A student is considered an
active student if he or she has attended a class within the prior 30 days unless the student has graduated or has provided us with notice
of withdrawal.

Key historical trends in results of operations

We have experienced significant growth in enrollments, revenue and operating income, as well as improvement in liquidity since our
acquisition of Ashford University in March 2005. We believe our enrollment and revenue growth has been driven primarily by (i) our significant
investment in enrollment advisors and online advertising which commenced immediately upon our acquisition of
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Ashford University and (ii) students' acceptance of our value proposition. Our significant growth in operating income is primarily a result of
leveraging our fixed costs with increased revenue.

The growth that we experienced from the launch of Ashford University's first online program in 2005 continued throughout 2010. In 2010,
enrollment grew from 53,688 at December 31, 2009, to 77,892 at December 31, 2010, an increase of 45%. During 2010, we had new student
starts of approximately 82,000. In the last five years including 2010, enrollment growth had a compound annual growth rate of 136%. While it
would be difficult to maintain such a large growth rate, we expect to continue to grow in the next five years. We believe that our dynamic
structure allows us to expand our student base as needed, while maintaining the same high quality education for all our students. Our revenue
has experienced similar growth rates between 2005 and 2010, with a compound annual growth rate of 146%.

We have significantly expanded our operations due to our continued growth since our launch. In 2010, we entered into leases for space in
three buildings with an aggregate of 300,000 additional square feet. Additionally, we expanded our Ashford University campus by constructing a
new stadium on a portion of the land acquired in December 2009. We also purchased a building to be used as student housing to allow for
additional students on the Ashford University campus.

Launch of Constellation

In May 2010, we launched Constellation, an innovative suite of interactive educational materials that will increase both the educational
quality and affordability of an education for online students at its Ashford University. Constellation's Web-based course materials include both
text and multimedia assets developed in cooperation with subject matter experts from across the country, as well as Ashford University faculty.
Constellation materials replace third-party textbooks, which have typically cost online students $150 per course. With Constellation, the cost is
cut in half to $75. During 2010, we introduced eight courses, and plan to include core courses in approximately 80 percent of degree programs
over the next three years. Revenue generated from Constellation was immaterial in 2010, representing less than one percent of revenue.

Liquidity and capital resources and anticipated capital expenditures

We financed our operating activities and capital expenditures during 2010 and 2009 primarily through cash provided by operating
activities. At December 31, 2010, we had cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities totaling $299.1 million and no long term debt. Based
on our current level of operations and anticipated growth in enrollments, we believe that our cash flow from operating activities, our existing
cash and cash equivalents and other sources of liquidity will provide adequate funds for ongoing operations, planned capital expenditures and
working capital requirements for at least the next 12 months. For the year ending December 31, 2011, we expect capital expenditures to be
approximately $52.0 million.

On July 30, 2010, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $60.0 million of our outstanding shares of common stock over
the following 12 months. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we repurchased 3.0 million shares at a weighted average cost of $14.05 per
share, for a total purchase price of $42.2 million. Approximately $17.8 million remains authorized and available under the repurchase program.
As a result of the shares repurchased, diluted earnings per share increased $0.04, or 1.9%, as a result of the fewer shares outstanding.

Anticipated future trends in results of operations

In recent years, we have seen student enrollments and revenue continue to increase despite difficult general economic conditions. We have
not seen any unfavorable impact from the fluctuation in general economic conditions on our liquidity, capital resources or results of operations.
While we
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cannot guarantee that these trends will continue, we believe that the performance of our company has been resilient in the current economic
environment due to (i) the continued availability of Title IV funds to finance student tuition payments, (ii) increased demand for postsecondary
education resulting from a deteriorating labor market and (iii) efficiencies in advertising costs. To meet the challenges of the current economy,
we plan to continue to invest significantly in enrollment advisors and online and other advertising, which we expect will result in our total
student enrollment and operating income continuing to grow, though perhaps not at the same rate as in the past, particularly given the larger size
of our enrollment base and the changing regulatory environment, including any future changes in regulation over areas such as incentive
compensation or gainful employment. For more information on recent regulatory changes, see "Regulation Department Regulation of Title IV
Programs" in Part I, Item 1 of this report and "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A of this report. As other institutions have disclosed, and as our pilot
programs with revised compensation structures have indicated, we expect that our enrollment advisors' new enrollment productivity will decline
as a result of the changes in compensation methodology and that the majority of the impact will be realized in the second half of 2011.

Recent Developments

On March 1, 2011, we received correspondence from the U.S. Senate Committee on Health, Education, Labor and Pensions inviting our
CEO and President to testify at a hearing scheduled for March 10, 2011, regarding Bridgepoint Education, Inc. and Ashford University.

Key Financial Metrics
Revenue

Revenue consists principally of tuition, technology fees and other miscellaneous fees and is shown net of scholarships and refunds. Factors
affecting our revenue include: (i) the number of students who enroll and who remain enrolled in our courses; (ii) our degree and program mix;
(iii) changes in our tuition rates; and (iv) the amount of the scholarships that we offer. Tuition is reduced by the amount of scholarships we
award to our students.

Enrollments

We define enrollments as the number of active students on the last day of the financial reporting period. A student is considered an active
student if he or she has attended a class within the prior 30 days unless the student has graduated or has provided us with a notice of withdrawal.
Enrollments are a function of the number of continuing students at the beginning of each period and new enrollments during the period, which
are offset by students who either graduated or withdrew during the period. Our online courses are typically five or six weeks in length and have
weekly start dates through the year, with the exception of a two week break during the holiday period in late December and early January. Our
campus-based courses have one start per term, with two to five terms per year.

Costs and expenses

Instructional costs and services. Instructional costs and services consist primarily of costs related to the administration and delivery of our
educational programs. This expense category includes compensation for campus-based faculty and administrative personnel, costs associated
with online faculty, curriculum and new program development costs, bad debt expense, financial aid processing costs, technology license costs
and costs associated with other support groups that provide service directly to the students. Instructional costs and services also include an
allocation of facility and depreciation costs.

Marketing and promotional. Marketing and promotional expenses include compensation of personnel engaged in marketing and
recruitment, as well as costs associated with purchasing leads and
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producing marketing materials. Our marketing and promotional expenses are generally affected by the cost of advertising media and leads, the
efficiency of our marketing and recruiting efforts, salaries and benefits for our enrollment personnel and expenditures on advertising initiatives
for new and existing academic programs. Advertising costs, consisting primarily of marketing leads, are expensed as incurred or the first time
the advertising takes place. We also incur immediate expenses in connection with new enrollment advisors while these individuals undergo
training. Enrollment advisors typically do not achieve anticipated full productivity until four to six months after their dates of hire. Marketing
and promotional costs also include an allocation of facility and depreciation costs.

General and administrative. General and administrative expenses include compensation of employees engaged in corporate management,
finance, human resources, information technology, compliance and other corporate functions. General and administrative expenses also include
professional services fees, travel and entertainment expenses and an allocation of facility and depreciation costs.

Interest income. Interest income consists primarily of interest earned on investments.
Interest expense. Interest expense consists primarily of interest charges on our line of credit and related fees.
Factors Affecting Comparability

We believe the following factors have had, or can be expected to have, a significant effect on the comparability of recent or future results of
operations:

Stock-based compensation

The amount of stock-based compensation recognized in our consolidated statements of income has fluctuated year over year, primarily due
to (i) the increase in fair market value of our common stock since 2007, which has resulted in higher grant date fair values for our option awards
under the Black-Scholes option pricing model, (ii) the modification of certain stock options in March 2009, as discussed below, and (iii) an
increase in the number of stock options granted since becoming a public company.

On March 28, 2009, our board of directors amended the exit options for 10 members of our management team to add an additional vesting
condition so that the number of shares underlying the options that would not have vested upon the closing of our initial public offering, under the
original terms of the options, would vest in full upon the closing of such offering. This additional vesting condition constituted a modification.
Accordingly, to the extent the exit option vested under the original vesting conditions, the original grant date fair value was recorded on the
vesting date; and to the extent each exit option vested under the additional vesting condition, the modification date fair value would be recorded
on the vesting date.

The compensation expense that was recorded for the exit options during the second quarter of 2009 was $30.4 million. Such compensation
expense was allocated to the expense category in which the optionee's regular compensation is recorded.

Settlement of stockholder dispute

In February 2009, certain holders of common stock and warrants to purchase common stock asserted various claims against us, our
directors and officers and Warburg Pincus regarding amendments to our certificate of incorporation made in connection with financings in 2005
and certain stock options we granted to our employees. The claimants represented 90% of the holders of common stock and 59% of the shares of
common stock subject to warrants outstanding, in each case as of July 27, 2005. In March 2009, we reached a settlement with the claimants
regarding these claims and recorded a total expense of $11.1 million related to the settlement during the three months ended

73

88



Edgar Filing: Bridgepoint Education Inc - Form 10-K

Table of Contents

March 31, 2009. After settling with the claimants, we notified the other holders of common stock and other holders of warrants to purchase
shares of common stock, in each case as of July 27, 2005, regarding these claims, the settlement terms and their ability to participate in the
settlement. In April 2009, we reached settlement with all of them.

Public company expenses

As a public company, we are obligated to file with the SEC annual and quarterly information and other reports that are specified in
Section 13 of the Exchange Act. We are required to ensure that we have the ability to prepare financial statements that comply with SEC
reporting requirements on a timely basis. We are also subject to other reporting and corporate governance requirements, including the listing
standards of the NYSE and certain provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder, which impose significant
compliance obligations upon us. In addition, we have hired additional personnel and expand our administrative functions to become compliant,
and maintain compliance, with the regulatory obligations of being a public company.

Seasonality

Although not apparent in our results of operations due to our growth rate, our operations are generally subject to seasonal trends. As our
growth rate declines, we expect to experience seasonal fluctuations in results of operations as a result of changes in the level of student
enrollment. While we enroll students throughout the year, our fourth quarter revenue generally is lower than other quarters due to the holiday
break in December. We generally experience a seasonal increase in new enrollments in August and September of each year when most other
colleges and universities begin their fall semesters.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

Critical accounting policies are those policies that, in management's view, are most important in the portrayal of our financial condition and
results of operations. The footnotes to the consolidated financial statements also include disclosure of significant accounting policies. The
methods, estimates and judgments that we use in applying our accounting policies have a significant impact on the results that we report in our
financial statements. These critical accounting policies require us to make difficult and subjective judgments, often as a result of the need to
make estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain.

The discussion of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, costs and expenses. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and assumptions, including
those related to revenue, bad debts, long-lived assets, income taxes and stock-based compensation. These estimates are based on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. The results of our analysis form the basis
for making assumptions about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions, and the impact of such differences may be material to our consolidated
financial statements.

Revenue recognition

The majority of our revenue comes from tuition revenue and is shown net of scholarships and refunds. Tuition revenue is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the applicable period of instruction. Our online students generally enroll in a program that encompasses a series of five-
to six-week courses that are taken consecutively over the length of the program. Students are billed on a course-by-course
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basis when first attending a class. Our traditional campus-based students enroll in a program that encompasses a series of nine-week or 16-week
courses. These students are billed at the beginning of each term.

Deferred revenue and student deposits represents tuition, fees and other student payments and unpaid amounts due less amounts recognized
as revenue. We recognize an account receivable and corresponding deferred revenue for the full amount of course tuition when a student first
attends class. Payments that are received either directly from the student or from the student's source of funding that exceed amounts billed are
recognized as student deposits.

If a student withdraws from a program prior to certain dates, the student is entitled to a refund of certain portions of tuition, depending on
the date the student last attended a class. If an online student drops a class and the student's last date of attendance was in the first week of class,
the student receives a full refund of the tuition for that class. If an online student drops a class and the last date of attendance was in the second
week of the class, the student receives a refund of 50% of the tuition for that class. If an online student drops a class and the student's last date of
attendance was after the second week of the class, the student is not entitled to a refund. We monitor student attendance in online courses
through activity in the online program associated with that course. After two weeks have passed without attendance in a class by the student, the
student is presumed to have dropped the course as of the last date of attendance, and the student's tuition is automatically refunded to the extent
the student is entitled to a refund based on the refund policy above. We estimate expected refunds based on historical refund rates and record a
provision to reduce revenue for the amount that is expected to be refunded. Refunds issued by us for services that have been provided in a prior
period have not historically been material. Future changes in the rate of student withdrawals may result in a change to expected refunds and
would be accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

We also recognize revenue from technology fees that are one-time start up fees charged to each new online student, other than military and
scholarship students and students affiliated with certain corporate reimbursement programs. Technology fee revenue is recognized ratably over
the average expected term of a student. The average expected term of the student is estimated each quarter based upon historical student duration
of attendance and qualitative factors as deemed necessary.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from students' inability to pay us for services performed, or
for inability of students to repay excess funds received for stipends. Bad debt expense is recorded as a component of instructional costs and
services. We calculate the allowance for doubtful accounts based on our historical collection experience and changes in the economic
environment. We also consider other factors such as the age of the receivable, the type of receivable and the students' active or inactive
enrollment status. Certain variables require management judgment and include inherent uncertainties such as the likelihood of future student
attendance and students' ability to qualify for Title IV eligibility. Variations in these factors from our historical experience may impact future
estimates of the collectability of accounts receivable and may cause actual losses due to write-offs of uncollectible accounts to differ from past
estimates.

Impairments of long-lived assets

We assess potential impairment to our long-lived assets when there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Factors we consider important which could cause us to assess potential impairment include
significant changes in the manner of our use of the acquired assets or the strategy for our overall business and significant negative industry or
economic trends. An impairment loss is recorded when the carrying amount of the long-lived asset is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value.
The carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use
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and eventual disposition of the asset. Any required impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of a long-lived
asset exceeds its fair value and is recorded as a reduction in the carrying value of the related asset and an expense to operating results.

We use various assumptions in determining undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset,
including assumptions regarding revenue growth rates, operating costs, certain capital additions, assumed discount rates, disposition or terminal
value and other economic factors. These variables require management judgment and include inherent uncertainties such as continuing
acceptance of our value proposition by prospective students, our ability to manage operating costs and the impact of changes in the economy on
our business. A variation in the assumptions used could lead to a different conclusion regarding the realizability of an asset and, thus, could have
a significant effect on our conclusions regarding whether an asset is impaired and the amount of impairment loss recorded in the consolidated
financial statements.

Income taxes

We utilize the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Significant judgments are required in determining the consolidated
provision for income taxes. During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
settlement is uncertain. As a result, we recognize tax liabilities based on estimates of whether additional taxes and interest will be due. These tax
liabilities are recognized when, despite our belief that our tax return positions are supportable, we believe that it is more likely than not that those
positions may not be fully sustained upon review by tax authorities. We believe that our accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open audit
years based on our assessment of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax law. This assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series of complex judgments about future events. To the extent that the final tax outcome of these matters differs
from our expectations, such differences will impact income tax expense in the period in which such determination is made.

We evaluate and account for uncertain tax positions using a two-step approach. Recognition (step one) occurs when we conclude that a tax
position, based solely on its technical merits, is more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination. Measurement (step two) determines the
amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all
relevant information. Derecognition of a tax position that was previously recognized would occur when we subsequently determine that a tax
position no longer meets the more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained.

We are required to file income tax returns in the United States and in various state income tax jurisdictions. The preparation of these
income tax returns requires us to interpret the applicable tax laws and regulations in effect in such jurisdictions, which could affect the amount of
tax paid by us. The income tax returns, however, are subject to audits by the various federal and state taxing authorities. As part of these reviews,
the taxing authorities may disagree with our tax positions. The ultimate resolution of these tax positions is often uncertain until the audit is
complete and any disagreements are resolved. We therefore record an amount for our estimate of the additional tax liability, including interest
and penalties, for any uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in an income tax return. We review and update the accrual for
uncertain tax positions as more definitive information becomes available from taxing authorities, completion of tax audits and expiration of
statutes of limitations. We record interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

In addition to estimates inherent in the recognition of current taxes payable, we estimate the likelihood that we will be able to recover our
deferred tax assets each reporting period. Realization of our deferred tax assets is dependent upon future taxable income. To the extent we
believe it is
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more-likely-than-not that some portion or all of our net deferred tax assets will not be realized, we establish a valuation allowance recorded
against deferred tax assets. Significant judgment is required in determining any valuation allowance recorded against deferred tax assets. In
assessing the need for a valuation allowance, we consider all available evidence including past operating results, estimates of future taxable
income and the feasibility of ongoing tax planning strategies. We recognize windfall tax benefits associated with the exercise of stock options
directly to stockholders' equity only when realized. A windfall tax benefit occurs when the actual tax benefit realized by us upon an employee's
disposition of a share-based award exceeds the deferred tax asset, if any, associated with the award that we had recorded. When assessing
whether a tax benefit relating to share-based compensation has been realized, we follow the tax law ordering method, under which current year
share-based compensation deductions are assumed to be utilized before net operating loss carryforwards and other tax attributes.

Stock-based compensation

We grant options to purchase our common stock to certain employees and directors under our equity incentive plans. The benefits provided
under these plans are share-based payments and are recorded in our consolidated statement of income based upon their fair values.

Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date fair value of the award and is expensed over the vesting period. We estimate
the fair value of stock options awards on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Determining the fair value of stock-based
awards at the grant date under this model requires judgment, including estimating our volatility, employee stock option exercise behaviors and
forfeiture rates. The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of stock-based awards represent our best estimates, but these estimates
involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment.

Our computation of expected term was calculated using the simplified method. The risk-free interest rate is based on the United States
Treasury yield of those maturities that are consistent with the expected term of the stock option in effect on the grant date of the award. Dividend
rates are based upon historical dividend trends and expected future dividends. As we have never declared or paid any cash dividends and do not
presently plan to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future, a zero dividend rate is assumed in our calculation. Because our stock has not been
publicly traded for a significant period of time and we had no substantial historical data on the volatility of our stock as of December 31, 2010,
our expected volatility is estimated by analyzing the historical volatility of comparable public companies, which we refer to as guideline
companies. In evaluating the comparability of the guideline companies, we consider factors such as industry, stage of life cycle, size and
financial leverage.

The amount of stock-based compensation expense we recognize during a period is based on the portion of the awards that are ultimately
expected to vest. We estimate option forfeitures at the time of grant and revise those estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ
from those estimates. The effect of a 10% change in estimates to any of the individual inputs to the Black-Scholes option pricing model would
not have a material impact to our consolidated financial statements.

Options awarded under our equity incentive plans have an exercise price that equals or exceeds the closing price of our common stock, as
reported by the NYSE, on the date of grant.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our consolidated statements of income data as a percentage of revenue for each of the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costs and expenses:
Instructional cost and services 26.3 26.4 28.8
Marketing and promotional 29.7 32.1 37.1
General and administrative 13.7 23.5 18.8
Total costs and expenses 69.7 82.0 84.7
Operating income 30.3 18.0 15.3
Interest income 0.2) 0.2) 0.1)
Interest expense 0.0 0.1 0.1
Income before income taxes 30.5 18.1 15.3
Income tax expense 12.6 7.7 32
Net income 17.9% 10.4% 12.1%

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2009

Revenue. Our revenue for 2010 was $713.2 million, an increase of $258.9 million, or 57.0%, as compared to $454.3 million for 2009. Our
revenue growth was primarily attributed to enrollment growth. Student enrollment at our academic institutions as of December 31, 2010, was
77,892, an increase of 24,204, or 45.1%, compared to 53,688 as of December 31, 2009. Enrollment growth is driven by various factors including
prospective students' acceptance of our value proposition, the quality of lead generation efforts, the number of enrollment advisors and our
ability to retain existing students. In addition to the increase in student enrollment, the revenue increase was also positively impacted by the 5%
tuition increase effective April 1, 2010 and the decision on April 1, 2009, to move to a single credit hour price for all undergraduate students at
Ashford University. The tuition increase and the move to a single credit hour price accounted for approximately 11.0% and 4.8%, respectively,
of the revenue increase between periods. Revenue increases were partially offset by an increase in institutional scholarships of $37.4 million
between 2010 and 2009. We earned technology fees of $50.5 million for 2010, representing 7.1% of total revenue during the period, compared
to technology fees of $34.7 million for 2009, representing 7.6% of total revenue during that period. We increased the technology fee from $990
to $1,290, for degree-seeking online students at Ashford University and University of the Rockies starting on or after August 3, 2010, which fee
increase accounted for $5.3 million, or 2.0%, of the revenue increase between periods.

Instructional costs and services. Our instructional costs and services for 2010 were $187.4 million, an increase of $67.3 million, or
56.1%, as compared to $120.1 million for 2009. This increase was primarily due to additional costs necessary to support the increased student
enrollment. The primary increases were bad debt expense of $16.4 million, instructor fees of $16.1 million, direct wages of $12.8 million,
financial aid processing of $6.5 million, license fees of $6.4 million, facilities costs of $3.9 million and employee benefits of $3.3 million.
Instructional costs and services decreased, as a percentage of revenue, to 26.3% for 2010, as compared to 26.4% for 2009. The decrease of 0.1%
as a percentage of revenue included relative decreases in direct wages and stock-based compensation of 0.6% and 0.5%, respectively. The
decrease in direct wages was due to efficiencies gained in the areas of academic management, financial aid support and student services that
came with a larger student base.
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The decrease in stock-based compensation was primarily due to the $2.1 million related to the exit options charge taken in 2009. The decreases
were partially offset by relative increases in license fees and bad debt expense of 0.5% each. The increase in license fees was due to the change
in online providers between 2009 and 2010. The increase in bad debt expense from 5.1% in 2009 to 5.6% in 2010 was due to general economic
conditions.

Marketing and promotional. Our marketing and promotional expenses for 2010 were $211.6 million, an increase of $65.9 million, or
45.2%, as compared to $145.7 million for 2009. The increase was primarily due to the growth of our enrollment advisor workforce, as well as
costs incurred to purchase additional leads. We expanded our enrollment advisor force by 444, or 37.8%, during the year. The factors
contributing to the overall increase between periods were increases in selling compensation of $29.9 million, advertising of $16.2 million,
facilities costs of $8.3 million, employee benefits of $6.8 million and other advertising of $5.7 million. The increase in selling compensation and
advertising spending is expected to continue as we grow our enrollment advisor workforce and increase our lead generation efforts to support
those advisors. Our marketing and promotional expenses, as a percentage of revenue, decreased to 29.7% for 2010 from 32.1% for 2009. The
decrease of 2.4% as a percentage of revenue included relative decreases in stock-based compensation, advertising and selling compensation of
1.1%, 0.9% and 0.8%, respectively. The decrease in stock-based compensation was primarily due to the $5.0 million related to the exit options
charge taken in 2009. The decrease in advertising and selling compensation was due to efficiencies gained by improvements to our variable cost
structure. The decreases were partially offset by a relative increase in other advertising of 0.7%. The increase in other advertising was due to
increased corporate branding initiatives.

General and administrative. Our general and administrative expenses for 2010 were $97.9 million, a decrease of $8.9 million, or 8.4%, as
compared to $106.8 million for 2009. The decrease was primarily due to the $23.3 million related to the exit options charge and the
$11.1 million related to the stockholder settlement charge taken in 2009. The decreases were partially offset by increases in administrative labor
of $11.0 million, facilities costs of $2.9 million, legal and consulting fees of $2.3 million, bank fees of $1.8 million and outside services of
$1.7 million. Our general and administrative expenses, as a percentage of revenue, decreased to 13.7% for 2010 from 23.5% for 2009. The 9.8%
decrease as a percentage of revenue was primarily due to the relative decreases related to the aforementioned exit option and stockholder
settlement charges of 5.2% and 2.4%, respectively.

Interest income.  Our interest income for 2010 was $1.6 million, an increase of $0.8 million as compared to $0.8 million for 2009, as a
result of increased levels of cash and cash equivalents.

Interest expense. Our interest expense for 2010 was $0.2 million, a slight decrease of $0.1 million as compared to $0.3 million for 2009.

Income tax expense. Income tax expense for 2010 was $90.2 million, an increase of $55.1 million from $35.1 million for 2009, at
effective tax rates of 41.4% and 42.7% for 2010 and 2009, respectively. The decrease in our effective tax rate in 2010 as compared to 2009 was
primarily due to a decrease of the effect of our permanent differences and uncertain tax positions on a larger revenue base. The decrease of these
items was partially offset by an increase in our blended state tax rate due to our increased state footprint.

Net income.  Our net income for 2010 was $127.6 million, an increase of $80.5 million, as compared to net income of $47.1 million for
2009, due to the factors discussed above.

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2008

Revenue. Our revenue for 2009 was $454.3 million, an increase of $236.0 million, or 108.1%, as compared to $218.3 million for 2008.
Our revenue growth was primarily attributed to enrollment
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growth. Student enrollment at our academic institutions as of December 31, 2009, was 53,688, an increase of 22,130, or 70.1%, compared to
31,558 as of December 31, 2008. Enrollment growth is driven by various factors including prospective students' acceptance of our value
proposition, the quality of lead generation efforts, the number of enrollment advisors and our ability to retain existing students. In addition to the
increase in student enrollment, the revenue increase was also positively impacted by the 5% tuition increase effective April 1, 2009 and the
decision to move to a single credit hour price for all undergraduate students at Ashford University. The tuition increase and the move to a single
credit hour price accounted for approximately 6.3% and 11.8%, respectively, of the revenue increase between periods. These increases were
partially offset by an increase in institutional scholarships of $28.1 million.

Instructional costs and services. Our instructional costs and services for 2009 were $120.1 million, an increase of $57.3 million, or
91.2%, as compared to $62.8 million for 2008. This increase was primarily due to additional costs necessary to support the increased student
population, as well as a $2.8 million increase in stock-based compensation, of which $2.1 million related to the exit options charge taken in the
second quarter of 2009. Instructional costs and services decreased, as a percentage of revenue, to 26.4% for 2009, as compared to 28.8% for
2008. The decrease is primarily due to a decrease in direct labor of 1.5%, as a percentage of revenue, from efficiencies gained and as well as a
decrease in bad debt expense of 1.1% to 5.1% in 2009 from 6.2% in 2008 due to increased levels of collection efforts.

Marketing and promotional. Our marketing and promotional expenses for 2009 were $145.7 million, an increase of $64.7 million, or
79.8%, as compared to $81.0 million for 2008. The increase was primarily due to (i) increased marketing labor costs of $33.5 million,
(ii) increased advertising of $12.2 million, (iii) increased facilities costs of $10.3 million, (iv) increased stock-based compensation of
$6.5 million (of which $5.0 million related to the exit options charge taken in the second quarter of 2009), and (v) other selling and marketing
costs of $2.2 million. The increase in selling compensation and advertising spending is expected to continue as we grow our enrollment advisor
base and increase our lead generation efforts to support those advisors. Our marketing and promotional expenses, as a percentage of revenue,
decreased to 32.1% for 2009 from 37.1% for 2008. The decrease is primarily due to efficiencies gained by improvements to our variable cost
structure specifically related to marketing wages and advertising.

General and administrative. Our general and administrative expenses for 2009 were $106.8 million, an increase of $65.8 million, or
160.4%, as compared to $41.0 million for 2008. The increase was primarily due to (i) increased stock-based compensation of $26.6 million (of
which $23.3 million related to the exit options charge taken in the second quarter of 2009), (ii) increased administrative labor of $13.9 million,
(iii) the $11.1 million charge related to the stockholder settlement in the first quarter of 2009, (iv) increased outside and professional fees of
$4.5 million, (v) increased depreciation of $3.2 million, (vi) increased travel of $1.0 million, and (vii) other general and administrative increases
of $5.5 million. Our general and administrative expenses, as a percentage of revenue, increased to 23.5% for 2009 from 18.8% for 2008,
primarily due to the increased costs noted above.

Interest income. Our interest income for 2009 was $0.8 million, an increase of $0.5 million from $0.3 million for 2008, as a result of
increased levels of cash and cash equivalents.

Interest expense. Our interest expense for 2009 was $0.3 million, a slight increase of $0.1 million from $0.2 million for 2008.

Income tax expense. Income tax expense for 2009 was $35.1 million, an increase of $28.0 million from $7.1 million for 2008, at effective
tax rates of 42.7% and 21.1% for 2009 and 2008, respectively. The increase in our effective tax rate in 2009 as compared to 2008 was primarily
due to (i) an increase
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in our uncertain tax positions in 2009 and (ii) a nonrecurring benefit related to the release in 2008 of the valuation allowance existing at
December 31, 2007.

Net income.  Our net income for 2009 was $47.1 million, an increase of $20.7 million, as compared to net income of $26.4 million for
2008, due to the factors discussed above.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

We financed our operating activities and capital expenditures during the years ended December 31, 2010, and 2009 primarily through cash
provided by operating activities. Our cash and cash equivalents were $188.5 million at December 31, 2010 and $125.6 million at December 31,
2009. Our restricted cash was $25,000 at both December 31, 2010, and December 31, 2009. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, we had
marketable securities of $110.6 million and $45.0 million, respectively.

We manage our excess cash pursuant to the quantitative and qualitative operational guidelines of our cash investment policy. Our cash
investment policy, which is managed by our investment manager, has the following primary objectives (in order of priority): preserving
principal, meeting our liquidity needs, minimizing market and credit risk, and providing returns. Under the policy's guidelines, we invest our
excess cash exclusively in high-quality, U.S. dollar-denominated financial instruments. For a discussion of the measures we use to mitigate the
exposure of our cash investments to market risk, credit risk and interest rate risk, see Part II, Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk."

Available borrowing facilities

On January 29, 2010, we entered into a $50 million revolving line of credit with Comerica Bank, or Comerica, pursuant to a Credit
Agreement, Revolving Credit Note and Security Agreement, which agreements, as amended to date, we collectively refer to as the Loan
Documents. For more information about the Loan Documents, see Note 7, "Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt," to our annual consolidated
financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this report. The initial proceeds under the Loan Documents were used, in part, to refinance
the outstanding letters of credit under the existing Credit Agreement between us and Comerica, which we refer to as the Prior Agreement. Upon
the effectiveness of the Loan Documents, the Prior Agreement was terminated, except that letters of credit outstanding under the Prior
Agreement were deemed to be letters of credit issued under the Loan Documents.

As of December 31, 2010, we used the availability under the revolving credit facility to issue letters of credit aggregating $2.4 million. We
were in compliance with all financial covenants in the Loan Documents and had no borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit facility as
of December 31, 2010.

As part of our normal business operations, we are required to provide surety bonds in certain states where we do business. In May 2009, we
entered into a surety bond facility with an insurance company to provide such bonds when required. As of December 31, 2010, the total
available surety bond facility was $5.0 million and we had issued surety bonds totaling $1.3 million under such facility.

Share repurchase

On July 30, 2010, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $60.0 million of our outstanding shares of common stock over
the following 12 months. Under the share repurchase program, which was announced on August 3, 2010, we may purchase shares from time to
time in the open market, through block trades or otherwise.
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During the year ended December 31, 2010, we repurchased 3.0 million shares at a weighted average cost of $14.05 per share, for a total
purchase price of $42.2 million. Approximately $17.8 million remains authorized and available under the repurchase program.

Title IV funding

Our academic institutions derived the substantial majority of their respective revenues from various federal student financial assistance
programs under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965. For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, Ashford University
derived 85.0%, 85.5% and 86.8%, respectively, and the University of the Rockies derived 85.9%, 84.6% and 80.8%, respectively, of their
respective revenue (calculated on a cash basis in accordance with applicable statutory provisions and Department regulations) from Title [V
funds. Our institutions are subject to significant regulatory scrutiny on the basis of numerous standards that the institutions must satisfy in order
to participate in Title IV programs. For more information regarding Title IV programs and the regulation thereof, see "Regulation Department
Regulation of Title IV Programs" in Part I, Item 1 of this report. The balance of revenues derived by our institutions is from military and
government reimbursement, cash pay and corporate reimbursement, private loans and the internal loan program at the University of the Rockies.
For more information regarding these student financing options, see "Business Student Financing" in Part I, Item 1 of this report.

If we were ineligible to receive Title IV funding, our liquidity would be significantly impacted. The timing of disbursements under Title IV
programs is based on federal regulations and our ability to successfully and timely arrange financial aid for our students. Title IV funds are
generally provided in multiple disbursements before we earn a significant portion of tuition and fees and incur related expenses over the period
of instruction. Students must apply for new loans and grants each academic year. These factors, together with the timing of our students
beginning their programs, affect our operating cash flow.

Financial responsibility

In the third quarter of 2010, consistent with our internal calculations, the Department notified us that Ashford University received a
composite score of 2.9 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, and that the University of the Rockies received a composite score of 1.8 for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, in each case satisfying the composite score requirement of the Department's financial responsibility
test, which institutions must satisfy in order to participate in Title IV programs. For more information, see "Regulation Department Regulation of
Title IV Programs Financial responsibility" in Part I, Item 1 of this report.

We expect the composite scores for Ashford University and the University of the Rockies both to be 3.0 for the year ended December 31,
2010. However, this is subject to determination by the Department once it receives and reviews our audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2010.

Internal loan program

In October 2009, we implemented a program for the University of the Rockies pursuant to which the institution provides direct loans to
students. The total number of students receiving these loans during 2010 and 2009 was 179 and 86, respectively. The total amount of financing
provided during 2010 and 2009 was $2.6 million and $1.2 million. We have no current plans to implement a similar program for Ashford
University.
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Operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2010, was $189.9 million, compared to $131.7 million for the
prior year. The increase of $58.2 million was primarily due to an increase in net income of $80.5 million between periods, which reflects that net
income for 2009 included non-cash charges related to the acceleration of exit options of $30.4 million and the settlement of a stockholder claim
of $11.1 million (of which $10.6 million was non-cash).

Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2009, was $131.7 million. Significant non-cash items included in
the reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities include the following: (i) stock-based compensation of
$35.9 million, (ii) provision for doubtful accounts of $23.2 million, (iii) an increase in deferred income taxes of $12.4 million, and (iv) the
non-cash portion of the stockholder settlement of $10.6 million. Changes in operating assets and liabilities was $21.5 million and was caused
primarily by increases in (i) deferred revenue and student deposits of $54.3 million and (ii) accounts payable and accrued liabilities of
$5.5 million. These were offset by an increase in accounts receivable of $37.5 million.

Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2008, was $70.7 million. Significant non-cash items included in
the reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities include the following: (i) provision for doubtful accounts of
$13.4 million, (ii) an increase in deferred income taxes of $5.7 million, (iii) depreciation and amortization of $2.5 million and (iv) stock-based
compensation of $1.8 million. Changes in operating assets and liabilities was $32.3 million and was caused primarily by increases in (i) deferred
revenue and student deposits of $50.6 million and (ii) accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $11.5 million. These were offset by an increase
in accounts receivable of $27.7 million.

Investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $94.5 million, $70.0 million and $16.6 million for 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Our cash
used in investing activities is primarily related to the purchases of property and equipment and leasehold improvements and marketable
securities. A majority of our historical capital expenditures are related to the establishment of our initial infrastructure to support our online
operations and to improve our ground campus. Capital expenditures were $26.6 million, $24.2 million and $15.9 million for 2010, 2009 and
2008, respectively. For the year ending December 31, 2011, we expect capital expenditures to be approximately $52.0 million.

During 2010, we purchased $111.7 million of marketable securities and there were maturities of $45.0 million.
Financing activities

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities was $(32.5) million, $7.4 million and $(5.1) million for 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. During 2010, net cash used in financing activities was primarily related to our stock repurchase of approximately 3.0 million shares
at a weighted average cost of $14.05 per share, for a total of $42.2 million. This was partially offset by an excess tax benefit of option exercises
of $7.0 million as well as proceeds from the exercises of stock options and warrants of $2.2 million.

We may utilize commercial financing and lines of credit for the purpose of expansion of our online business infrastructure and to expand
and improve our ground campuses in Clinton, lowa, and Colorado Springs, Colorado. Based on our current level of operations and anticipated
growth in enrollments, we believe that our cash flow from operations, existing cash and cash equivalents and other sources of liquidity will
provide adequate funds for ongoing operations, planned capital expenditures and working capital requirements for at least the next 12 months.
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Significant Cash and Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth, as of December 31, 2010, certain significant cash and contractual obligations that will affect our future
liquidity:

Payments Due by Period
Total 2011 - 2012 2013 - 2014 2015 Thereafter
(In thousands)
Operating lease obligations $ 329653 $§ 50302 $ 69,122 $ 35596 $ 174,633
Other contractual obligations 23,117 12,308 10,749 60
Uncertain tax positions 8,503 8,503
Total $ 361273 $ 71,113 $ 79871 $ 35,656 $ 174,633

In February 2011, we entered into a lease for 151,000 rentable square feet of office space in Denver, Colorado. We intend to use the new
space primarily for administrative offices, meeting rooms and online support services. The initial term of the lease is 10 years and is estimated to
commence in August 2011. The monthly base rent over the initial term of the lease increases from $0.4 million during the first year to
$0.5 million during the tenth year. The total amount of base rent payments over the initial term of the lease is $43.4 million; such payments are
excluded from the table above.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2010, the company has no off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a material current or
future effect on financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenue or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or
capital resources. See the table above for the company's contractual obligations for detailed information about the company's financial
commitments.

Segment Information

We operate in one reportable segment as a single educational delivery operation using a core infrastructure that serves the curriculum and
educational delivery needs of both our campus-based and online students regardless of geography. Our chief operating decision maker, our CEO
and President, manages our operations as a whole, and no expense or operating income information is evaluated by our chief operating decision
maker on any component level.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2009-13, which amends ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition.
This update changes the requirements for establishing separate units of accounting in a multiple element arrangement and requires the allocation
of arrangement consideration to each deliverable based on the relative selling price. ASU 2009-13 is effective for revenue arrangements entered
into in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. We do not believe that the adoption of ASU 2009-13 will have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-14, which amends ASC Topic 985, Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software
Elements. This update changes the accounting model for revenue arrangements that include both tangible products and software elements. ASU
2009-14 is effective for revenue arrangements entered into in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. We do not believe that the
adoption of ASU 2009-14 will have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.
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In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-28, which amends the criteria for performing Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test for
reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts and requires performing Step 2 if qualitative factors indicate that it is more likely than not
that a goodwill impairment exists. The amendments in the update are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2010. We do
not believe that the adoption of ASU 2010-28 will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-29, which clarifies that, when presenting comparative financial statements, SEC registrants
should disclose revenue and earnings of the combined entity as though any current period business combinations had occurred as of the
beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only. The update also expands the supplemental pro forma disclosures to include a
description of the nature and amount of material, nonrecurring pro forma adjustments directly attributable to the business combination included
in the reported pro forma revenue and earnings. ASU 2010-29 is effective prospectively for material (either on an individual or aggregate basis)
business combinations entered into in fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2010 with early adoption permitted. We do not believe
that the adoption of ASU 2010-29 will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Market and credit risk

Pursuant to our cash investment policy, we attempt to mitigate the exposure of our cash and investments to market and credit risk by
(1) diversifying concentration risk to ensure that we are not overly concentrated in a limited number of financial institutions, (ii) monitoring and
managing the risks associated with the national banking and credit markets, (iii) investing in U.S. dollar-denominated assets and instruments
only, (iv) diversifying account structures so that we maintain a decentralized account portfolio with numerous stable, highly-rated and liquid
financial institutions and (v) ensuring that our investment procedures maintain a defined and specific scope such that we will not invest in
higher-risk investment accounts, including long-term corporate bonds, financial swaps or derivative and corporate equities. Accordingly, under
the guidelines of the policy, we invest our excess cash exclusively in high-quality, U.S. dollar-denominated financial instruments.

Despite the investment risk mitigation strategies we employ, we may incur investment losses as a result of unusual and unpredictable
market developments and we may experience reduced investment earnings if the yields on investments deemed to be low risk remain low or
decline further in this time of economic uncertainty. In addition, unusual and unpredictable market developments may also create liquidity
challenges for certain of the assets in our investment portfolio.

We have no derivative financial instruments or derivative commodity instruments.
Interest rate risk

To the extent we borrow funds under our lines of credit with Comerica, we would be subject to fluctuations in interest rates. See Part II,
Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources." As of
December 31, 2010, we had no borrowings under the line of credit with Comerica.

Our future investment income may fall short of expectations due to changes in interest rates. At December 31, 2010, a 10% increase or
decrease in interest rates would not have a material impact on our future earnings, fair value or cash flows related to interest earned from cash,
cash equivalents or marketable securities.

85

100



Edgar Filing: Bridgepoint Education Inc - Form 10-K

Table of Contents
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRIDGEPOINT EDUCATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Income

Consolidated Statements of Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equity (Deficit
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Annual Consolidated Financial Statements

86

101



Edgar Filing: Bridgepoint Education Inc - Form 10-K

Table of Contents
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Bridgepoint Education, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(1) present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Bridgepoint Education, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2)
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements and financial
statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing
under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits (which was an integrated audit in 2010.) We conducted our audits in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Diego, California
March 1, 2011
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Bridgepoint Education, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except par value)

As of December 31,
2010 2009
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 188518 § 125,562
Restricted cash 25 25
Marketable securities 90,611 44,988
Accounts receivable, net 58,415 43,232
Deferred income taxes 7,039 4,027
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 12,650 9,581
Total current assets 357,258 227,415
Property and equipment, net 66,542 47,362
Marketable securities 20,000
Goodwill and intangibles 4,123 3,201
Deferred income taxes 15,845 13,491
Other long term assets 7,457 3,762
Total assets $ 471,225 $ 295231
LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 5076 $ 2,870
Accrued liabilities 34,895 24,579
Deferred revenue and student deposits 173,576 121,752
Other current liabilities 172
Total current liabilities 213,547 149,373
Rent liability 10,910 6,896
Other long term liabilities 8,527 4,353
Total liabilities 232,984 160,622
Commitments and contingencies (see Note 18)
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value:
20,000 authorized; zero shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2010, and December 31, 2009
Common stock, $0.01 par value:
300,000 shares authorized, 55,801 issued and 52,799 outstanding at December 31, 2010; 54,266 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2009 558 543
Additional paid-in capital 101,463 83,233
Retained earnings 178,413 50,833
Treasury stock, 3,002 and zero shares at cost at December 31, 2010, and December 31, 2009, respectively (42,193)
Total stockholders' equity 238,241 134,609
Total liabilities, redeemable convertible preferred stock and stockholders' equity $ 471,225 $ 295231

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Revenue

Costs and expenses:
Instructional costs and services
Marketing and promotional
General and administrative

Total costs and expenses

Operating income
Interest income
Interest expense

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income
Accretion of preferred dividends

Net income available to common
stockholders

Earnings per common share:
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average common shares

Edgar Filing: Bridgepoint Education Inc - Form 10-K

$

outstanding used in computing earnings

per common share:
Basic

Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Bridgepoint Education, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008
713,233 $ 454,324 $ 218,290
187,399 120,089 62,822
211,550 145,721 81,036
97,863 106,784 41,012
496,812 372,594 184,870
216,421 81,730 33,420
(1,568) (789) (322)
210 279 240
217,779 82,240 33,502
90,199 35,135 7,071
127,580 47,105 26,431
645 2,006
127,580 $ 46,460 $ 24,425
237 $ 085 $ 0.38
2.14 % 074 $ 0.16
53,724 39,349 3,335
59,631 45,181 7,157
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Bridgepoint Education, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)

Balance at December 31, 2007
Stock-based compensation
Accretion of preferred dividends
Net income

Balance at December 31, 2008

Stock-based compensation

Accretion of preferred dividends
Stockholder settlement

Preferred stock conversion

Exercise of options

Excess tax benefit of option exercises
Stock issued under employee stock
purchase plan

Exercise of warrants

Stock issued in initial public offering,
net of issuance costs of $8.6 million
Net Income

Balance at December 31, 2009

Stock-based compensation

Exercise of options

Excess tax benefit of option exercises
Stock issued under employee stock
purchase plan

Exercise of warrants

Repurchase of common stock

Net Income

Balance at December 31, 2010

(In thousands)

Series A
Convertible Retained
Preferred Stock Common Stock  Additional Earnings/
Par Paid-in  (Accumulated Treasury

Shares Amount  Shares  Value Capital Deficit) Stock Total
19,778 $ 25,056 3335 § 33§ $ (20,176) $ $ (20,143)
1,827 1,827
2,006 (124) (1,882) (2,006)
26,431 26,431
19,778 27,062 3,335 33 1,703 4,373 6,109
35,943 35,943
645 (645) (645)
710 7 10,570 10,577

(19,778)  (27,707) 44,805 448 (448)

948 10 334 344
5,454 5,454
42 1 615 616
926 993 1,002
3,500 35 28,069 28,104
47,105 47,105
54,266 543 83,233 50,833 134,609
7,939 7,939
1,181 11 1,029 1,040
6,966 6,966
77 1 1,106 1,107
277 1,190 1,193
(42,193)  (42,193)
127,580 127,580
$ 55,801 $ 558 $ 101,463 $ 178,413 $ (42,193) $ 238,241

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Provision for bad debts
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of premium/discount
Deferred income taxes
Stock-based compensation
Excess tax benefit of option exercises
Stockholder settlement (non-cash portion)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of
effects of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Loans receivable
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue and student deposits
U.S. governmental refundable loan funds
Other liabilities
Uncertain tax positions

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures

Purchases of marketable securities
Restricted cash

Business acquisition

Capitalized curriculum development costs
Maturities of marketable securities

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of
issuance costs of $8.6 million

Proceeds from the exercise of stock options
Excess tax benefit of option exercises

Proceeds from issuance of stock under employee
stock purchase plan

Proceeds from exercise of warrants

Payments on leases payable

Payments on conversion of preferred stock
Repurchase of common stock

Payments on notes payable

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Bridgepoint Education, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)
Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008

$ 127,580 $ 47,105 $ 26,431

39,631 23,205 13,431
8,565 5,890 2,452
663 (66)
(5.366)  (12.418) (5.658)
7,939 35,943 1,827
(6,966) (5,454)
10,577
73 38

(54,814) (37,491) (27,747)

(2,665) (2,520) (6,306)
277
(3,695) (2,384) @71
18,530 10,906 11,525
51,824 54,327 50,608
(221)

4,038 2,917 2,206
4,612 1,152 2,394
189,949 131,727 70,748

(26,568) (24,249)  (15,884)
(111,690) (44,922)
641 (666)
(1,500)
(1,214)
45,000

(94,472) (70,030) (16,550)

28,104
1,040 344
6,966 5,454
1,107 616
1,193 1,002
(634) (197) (175)
(27,707)
(42,193)
(234) (4,891)
(32,521) 7,382 (5,066)
62,956 69,079 49,132
125,562 56,483 7351

107



Edgar Filing: Bridgepoint Education Inc - Form 10-K

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow

information

Cash paid during the period for:

Interest $
Income taxes $

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing

and financing activities:

Purchase of property and equipment through capital
lease obligations $

Non-cash purchases of property and equipment $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

188,518

57

88,883

1,707

$ 125562 $ 56,483

$ 201§ 240

$ 38457 § 10,704

$ 381 § 77

$ 749 % 965
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Bridgepoint Education, Inc.
Notes to Annual Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Nature of Business

Bridgepoint Education, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, the "Company"), incorporated in 1999, is a provider of postsecondary education
services. Its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Ashford University and the University of the Rockies, are regionally accredited academic institutions
that offer associate's, bachelor's, master's and doctoral programs in the disciplines of business, education, psychology, social sciences and health
sciences. These institutions deliver programs online, as well as at their traditional campuses located in Clinton, lowa and Colorado Springs,
Colorado.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Bridgepoint Education, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Reverse Stock Split

On March 31, 2009, the Company's board of directors approved a 1-for-4.5 reverse stock split of the Company's common stock, par value
$0.01 per share, which was effective as of that date. As a result of the reverse stock split, every 4.5 shares of the Company's common stock were
combined into one share of common stock and any fractional shares created by the reverse stock split were rounded down to the nearest whole
share. The Company did not reduce the number of shares it is authorized to issue or change the par value of the common stock. The reverse
stock split affected all shares of the Company's common stock, as well as options and warrants to purchase shares of the Company's common
stock, that were outstanding immediately prior to the effective date of the reverse stock split. Common stock, additional paid-in capital, retained
earnings (accumulated deficit) and share and per share data for prior periods have been retroactively restated to reflect the reverse stock split as
if it had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America ("GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company invests cash in excess of current operating requirements in short term certificates of deposit and money market accounts. The
Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash

The Company had $25,000 in restricted cash as of both December 31, 2010 and 2009. The amount at December 31, 2010 and 2009, related
to a certificate of deposit pledged to the state of Washington for state licensure requirements.
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Bridgepoint Education, Inc.
Notes to Annual Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Marketable Securities

As of December 31, 2010, the Company maintained $110.6 million in marketable securities which consisted of demand and corporate
notes, corporate and municipal bonds, bonds funds and certificates of deposit. These securities are stated at fair market value using recently
quoted market prices. The Company's investments are denominated in U.S. dollars, investment grade and highly liquid. The Company's
investments are comprised of $90.6 million of short-term securities, with maturities of less than one year, and $20.0 million of long-term
securities, with maturities of greater than one year, but less than three years.

The Company has classified its marketable securities as available-for-sale and considers as current assets those investments which will
mature or are likely to be sold in less than one year. At December 31, 2010, the fair value of the investments approximated the amortized cost.

The Company regularly monitors and evaluates the realizable value of its marketable securities. If events and circumstances indicate that a
decline in the value of these assets has occurred and is other-than-temporary, the Company would record a charge to other income (expense),
net, in the consolidated statement of income.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable consists of student accounts receivable, which represent amounts due for tuition, technology fees and other fees from
currently enrolled and former students. Students generally fund their education through grants and/or loans under various Title IV programs,
tuition assistance from military and corporate employers or personal funds. Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to
collect from outstanding balances. An allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated by management based on (i) an assessment of individual
accounts receivable over a specific aging and amount (and all other balances on a pooled basis based on historical collection experience),

(i1) consideration of the nature of the receivable accounts and (iii) potential changes in the economic environment. The provision for bad debts is
recorded within the instructional costs and services line in the consolidated statements of income.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recognized at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
based on estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings 39 years
Furniture, office equipment and software 3 -7 years
Vehicles 5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Upon the retirement or disposition of property and equipment, the related cost and accumulated depreciation is removed and a gain or
loss is recorded in the consolidated statements of income. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the period incurred.
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Leases

Leases are evaluated and classified as operating or capital leases. Leased property and equipment meeting certain criteria are capitalized,
and the present value of the related lease payments is recognized as a liability on the consolidated balance sheets. Amortization of capitalized
leased assets is computed on the straight-line method over the term of the lease or the life of the related asset, whichever is shorter.

If the Company receives tenant allowances from the lessor for certain improvements made to the leased property, these allowances are
capitalized as leasehold improvements and a long-term liability is established. The leasehold improvements and the long-term liability are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the corresponding lease term. The Company records rent expense on a straight-line basis over the initial
term of a lease. The difference between the rent payment and the straight-line rent expense is recorded as a long-term liability.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company tests goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment annually, in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or
more frequently if events and circumstances warrant. The Company's assessment of goodwill during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 indicated
that the fair value of each of the Company's reporting units was substantially in excess of the carrying values and therefore goodwill was not
impaired. There have been no impairment losses recognized by the Company for any periods presented.

In evaluating the impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets, such assets are allocated to the carrying value of each
reporting unit. Determining the fair value of a reporting unit or an indefinite-lived purchased intangible asset is judgmental in nature and
involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions include revenue growth rates and operating margins
used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rates, future economic and market conditions and determination of
appropriate market comparables. We base our fair value estimates on assumptions we believe to be reasonable, but which are unpredictable and
inherently uncertain. Actual future results may differ from those estimates.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company assesses potential impairment to its long-lived assets when there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recorded when the carrying amount of the long-lived asset is
not recoverable and exceeds its fair value. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted
cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. Any required impairment loss is measured as the amount by
which the carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds fair value and is recorded as a reduction in the carrying value of the related asset and an
expense to operating results. There have been no impairment losses recognized by the Company for any periods presented.
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Fair Value Measurements

The carrying value of the Company's financial instruments approximates fair value due to the relative short-term nature of these
instruments. The Company's financial instruments include cash, cash equivalents, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and amounts borrowed
under the Company's revolving credit facility.

The Company uses the three-tier fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers include: Level 1,
defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that
are either observable directly or indirectly through market corroboration, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument; and Level 3,
defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions. The
Company's Level 2 marketable securities are valued using readily available pricing sources which utilize market observable inputs, including the
current interest rate for similar types of instruments. There were no transfers in or out of Level 2 during the year ended December 31, 2010.

The following table summarizes the fair value information of marketable securities at December 31, 2010 (in thousands):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Demand notes $ $ 5,028 $ $ 5,028
Corporate notes 25,328 25,328
Municipal bonds 40,231 40,231
Bond fund 10,000 10,000
Corporate bonds 10,024 10,024
Certificate of deposit 20,000 20,000
Total $ 10,000 $ 100,611 $ $ 110,611

Revenue and Deferred Revenue
The Company's revenue consists of tuition, technology fees and other miscellaneous fees.

Tuition revenue is deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over the applicable period of instruction net of scholarships and expected
refunds. The Company's online students generally enroll in a program that encompasses a series of five- to six-week courses which are taken
consecutively over the length of the program, and the Company's campus-based students enroll in a program that encompasses a series of
nine-week or 16-week courses. Online students are billed on a course-by-course basis when the student first attends a class. Campus-based
students are billed at the beginning of each term.

If a student's attendance in a class precedes the receipt of cash from the student's source of funding, the Company establishes an account
receivable and corresponding deferred revenue in the amount of the tuition due for that class. Cash received either directly from the student or
from the student's source of funding reduces the balance of accounts receivable due from the student. The Company's universities bill enrolled
online students for tuition on a course by course basis as they initiate attendance in each course. Financial aid from sources such as the federal
government's Title IV
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programs pertains to the online student's award year and is generally divided into two disbursement periods. As such, each disbursement period
may contain funding for up to four courses. Financial aid disbursements are typically received during the online student's attendance in the first
or second course. Since the majority of disbursements cover more courses than have been billed, the amount received in excess of billings
effectively represents a prepayment from the online student for up to four courses. Cash received either directly from the student or from the
student's source of funding that is in excess of amounts billed is recorded as a student deposit and applied to future classes and recognized as
revenue when earned. The balance of student deposits as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, was $131.9 million and $96.9 million, respectively.

The Company records a provision for expected refunds and reduces revenue for the amount that is expected to be subsequently refunded.
Provisions for expected refunds have not been material to any period presented. If a student withdraws from a program prior to a specified date,
a portion of such student's tuition is refunded.

Technology fees are one-time start up fees charged to each new online student. Technology fee revenue is recognized ratably over the
average expected term of a student. Other miscellaneous fees include fees for textbooks and other services, such as commencements, and are
recognized upon delivery of the goods or when the related service is performed.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for its income taxes using the liability method whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on
temporary differences between the bases used for financial reporting and income tax reporting purposes. Deferred income taxes are provided
based on the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect at the time such temporary differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is
provided for deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that the Company will not realize those tax assets through future operations.

The Company evaluates and accounts for uncertain tax positions using a two-step approach. Recognition (step one) occurs when the
Company concludes that a tax position, based solely on its technical merits, is more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination.
Measurement (step two) determines the amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing
authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. Derecognition of a tax position that was previously recognized would occur when
the Company subsequently determines that a tax position no longer meets the more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense is measured at the grant date fair value of the award and is expensed over the vesting period. The
Company estimates the fair value of stock options on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Determining the fair value of
stock-based awards at the grant date under this model requires judgment, including estimating volatility, employee stock option exercise
behaviors and forfeiture rates. The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of stock-based awards represent the Company's best estimates,
but these estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment.
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The amount of stock-based compensation expense recognized during a period is based on the portion of the awards that are ultimately
expected to vest. The Company estimates option forfeitures at the time of grant and revises those estimates in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates. The Company's board of directors grants options with an exercise price that equals or exceeds the closing
price of the Company's common stock, as reported by the NYSE, on the date of grant.

Stock-based compensation expense for options is recorded in the consolidated statement of income, net of estimated forfeitures, using the
graded vesting method over the requisite service period. Stock-based compensation expense totaled $7.9 million, $35.9 million and $1.8 million
for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Comprehensive Income

There are no comprehensive income items other than net income. Comprehensive income equals net income for all of the periods presented.
Instructional Costs and Services

Instructional costs and services consist primarily of costs related to the administration and delivery of the Company's educational programs.
This expense category includes compensation for faculty and administrative personnel, costs associated with online faculty, curriculum and new

program development costs, bad debt expense, financial aid processing costs, technology license costs and costs associated with other support
groups that provide services directly to the students. Instructional costs and services also include an allocation of facility and depreciation costs.

Marketing and Promotional Costs

Marketing and promotional costs include compensation of personnel engaged in marketing and recruitment, as well as costs associated with
purchasing leads and producing marketing materials. Such costs are generally affected by the cost of advertising media and leads, the efficiency
of its marketing and recruiting efforts, compensation for its enrollment personnel and expenditures on advertising initiatives for new and existing
academic programs. Marketing and promotional costs also include an allocation of facility and depreciation costs.

Advertising costs, a subset of marketing and promotional costs consisting primarily of marketing leads, are expensed as incurred or the first
time the advertising takes place. Advertising costs were $55.3 million, $39.1 million and $26.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008, respectively.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses include compensation of employees engaged in corporate management, finance, human resources,
information technology, compliance and other corporate functions. General and administrative expenses also include professional services fees,
travel and entertainment expenses and an allocation of facility and depreciation costs.
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Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share is calculated by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per common share is calculated by dividing net income available to common
stockholders by the sum of (i) weighted average number of common and (ii) potentially dilutive securities outstanding during the period, if the
effect is dilutive. The numerator of diluted earnings per share is calculated by starting with income allocated to common shares and adding back
income attributable to shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock to the extent such shares are dilutive. Potential common shares consist of
incremental shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of the stock options and warrants and upon conversion of preferred stock.

Segment Information

The Company operates in one reportable segment as a single educational delivery operation using a core infrastructure that serves the
curriculum and educational delivery needs of both its campus-based and online students regardless of geography. The Company's chief operating
decision maker, its CEO and President, manages the Company's operations as a whole, and no revenue, expense or operating income
information is evaluated by the chief operating decision maker on any component level.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-20, which amends ASC Topic 310, Receivables, by requiring more robust and disaggregated
disclosure about the credit quality of an entity's loans and its allowance for loan losses. These new disclosures will significantly expand the
existing requirements and are focused on providing transparency regarding an entity's exposure to credit losses. This update is effective for
interim and annual reporting periods ending on or after December 15, 2010. The Company adopted ASU 2010-20 for the year ended
December 31, 2010, and the adoption did not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

3. Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable, net, consists of the following (in thousands):

As of December 31,
2010 2009
Accounts receivable $ 86,505 $ 59,403
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (28,090) (16,171)
Accounts receivable, net $ 58415 $ 43,232
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Prepaid expenses and other current assets, consist of the following (in thousands):

As of December 31,

2010 2009
Prepaid expenses $ 4730 $§ 2,723
Prepaid licenses 1,080 3,588

Prepaid Income tax 3,526

Prepaid insurance 999 1,646
Other current assets 2,315 1,624
Total prepaid and other current assets $ 12,650 $ 9,581

5. Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net, consist of the following (in thousands):

As of December 31,

2010 2009
Land $ 7,001 §$ 2,864
Buildings 13,886 8,610
Furniture, office equipment and software 47,600 34,510
Leasehold improvements 16,094 11,615
Vehicles 53 66
Total depreciable property and equipment 84,724 57,665
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (18,182) (10,303)
Property and equipment, net $ 66542 $ 47362

Depreciation and amortization expense associated with property and equipment, including assets under capital lease, totaled $8.3 million,

$5.7 million and $2.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
6. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

As of December 31,

2010 2009
Accrued salaries and wages $ 10457 $ 7,953
Accrued bonus 5,069 4,466
Accrued vacation 4,962 2,549
Accrued expenses 14,407 8,239
Accrued income taxes payable 1,372
Total accrued liabilities $ 34895 $ 24,579
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On January 29, 2010, the Company entered into a $50 million revolving line of credit with Comerica Bank ("Comerica") pursuant to a
Credit Agreement, Revolving Credit Note and Security Agreement (collectively, the "Loan Documents"). Under the Loan Documents, Comerica
has agreed to make loans to the Company and issue letters of credit on the Company's behalf, subject to the terms and conditions of the Loan
Documents. Amounts subject to letters of credit issued under the Loan Documents are treated as limitations on available borrowings under the
line of credit. Interest is paid monthly under the line of credit, and principal is paid on the maturity date of the line of credit. The line of credit
has a two-year term and matures on January 29, 2012. Interest accrues on amounts outstanding under the line of credit, at the Company's option,
at either (1) Comerica's prime reference rate + 0.00% or (2) one month, two month or three month LIBOR + 2.25%. As security for the
performance of the Company's obligations under the Loan Documents, the Company granted Comerica a first priority security interest in
substantially all of the Company's assets, including its real property.

The Loan Documents contain financial covenants requiring the Company's educational institutions to maintain Title I'V eligibility (see
Note 15, "Regulatory") as well as the Company's maintenance of specified adjusted quick ratios, minimum profitability, minimum cash balances
and U.S. Department of Education ("Department") financial responsibility composite scores. The Loan Documents contain other customary
affirmative and negative covenants (including cash controls, financial reporting covenants and prohibitions on acquisitions, dividends, stock
redemptions and other cash expenditures over a specified amount without Comerica's reasonable consent), representations and warranties and
events of default (including the occurrence of a "material adverse effect,” as defined in the Loan Documents). The Company was in compliance
with all financial covenants in the Loan Documents as of December 31, 2010 and 2009.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company used the availability under the line of credit to issue letters of credit aggregating $2.4 million.
Amounts subject to letters of credit issued under the line of credit decreased by $4.8 million from December 31, 2009. In August 2010, the
Department notified the Company that Ashford University was released from the requirement to post a letter of credit in the amount of
$5.0 million. The Company had no borrowings outstanding under the line of credit as of December 31, 2010.

As part of its normal business operations, the Company is required to provide surety bonds in certain states in which the Company does
business. In May 2009, the Company entered into a surety bond facility with an insurance company to provide such bonds when applicable. As
of December 31, 2010, the total available surety bond facility was $5.0 million and the Company had issued surety bonds totaling $1.3 million.
8. Lease Obligations

Operating leases

The Company leases certain office facilities and office equipment under non-cancelable lease arrangements that expire at various dates
through 2020. The office leases contain certain renewal options. Rent expense under non-cancelable operating lease arrangements is accounted
for on a straight-line basis and totaled $27.2 million, $20.6 million and $6.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.
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The following table summarizes the future minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating lease arrangements in effect at
December 31, 2010 (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,

2011 $ 24,989
2012 25,313
2013 33,879
2014 35,243
2015 35,596
Thereafter 174,633
Total minimum payments $ 329,653

Subsequent to year end, in February 2011, we entered into a lease for office space in a building in Denver, Colorado. We intend to use the
new space primarily for administrative offices, meeting rooms and online support services. The initial term of the lease is 10 years and is
estimated to commence in August 2011. The monthly base rent over the initial term of the lease increases from $0.4 million during the first year
to $0.5 million during the tenth year. The total amount of base rent payments over the initial term of the lease is $43.4 million. This additional
lease is not included in the table above.

9. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share is calculated by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding for the period. In certain prior periods, the Company calculated basic earnings per common share using the
two-class method. Under the two-class method, net income is allocated between common shares and other participating securities based on their
participating rights.

Diluted earnings per common share is calculated by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the sum of (i) the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the period and (ii) potentially dilutive securities outstanding during the period, if the effect is
dilutive. Potentially dilutive securities may include options, warrants and shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock. The numerator of
diluted earnings per common share is calculated by starting with income allocated to common shares and adding back income attributable to
shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock to the extent such an adjustment would be dilutive. Potentially dilutive common shares for the
year ended December 31, 2010, consisted of incremental shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options and warrants. Potentially
dilutive common shares for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, consisted of incremental shares of common stock issuable (i) upon the
exercise of options and warrants and (ii) upon the conversion of shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock through the closing of the
Company's initial public offering.

101

118



Edgar Filing: Bridgepoint Education Inc - Form 10-K

Table of Contents

Bridgepoint Education, Inc.
Notes to Annual Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
9. Earnings Per Share (Continued)

The following table sets forth the computation of the basic and diluted earnings per common share for the periods indicated (in thousands,
except per share data):

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008

Numerator:

Net income $ 127,580 $ 47,105 $ 26,431

Effect of accretion of preferred dividends (645) (2,006)

Net income available to common stockholders $ 127,580 $ 46,460 $ 24425
Denominator:

Weighted average common shares outstanding 53,724 39,349 3,335

Effect of dilutive options 5,581 5,119 3,283

Effect of dilutive warrants 326 713 1,139

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 59,631 45,181 7,757
Earnings per common share:

Basic $ 237 $ 085 §$ 0.38

Diluted $ 2,14  $ 074 $ 0.16

The computation of dilutive common shares outstanding excludes the following securities:

(@

Redeemable convertible preferred stock:

For the periods indicated, the computation of dilutive common shares outstanding excludes the common shares that were issuable upon the
optional conversion of the redeemable convertible preferred stock (including any common shares that were issuable, at the election of the holder,
in payment of the accreted value of the redeemable convertible preferred stock) because the effect of applying the if-converted method would be
anti-dilutive.

Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2010 2009 2008
Redeemable convertible preferred stock 15,373 60,446

(b)

Options and warrants:

For the periods indicated, the computation of dilutive common shares outstanding excludes certain stock options and warrants to purchase
shares of common stock for the periods indicated because their effect was anti-dilutive.

Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2010 2009 2008
Options 548 11
Warrants 39
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The Company calculated basic earnings per common share using the two-class method to reflect the participation rights of each class and
series of stock. Basic net income is computed for common stock outstanding during the period by dividing net income allocated to the
participation rights of each class by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.

The following presents the net income allocated to each class of capital stock in the calculation of basic earnings per common share for the
years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 (in thousands):

December 31, 2010
Weighted Avg Income
Shares Allocation
Common stock 53,724 $ 127,580
Redeemable convertible preferred stock
Total $ 127,580

December 31, 2009
Weighted Avg Income

Shares Allocation
Common stock 39,349 $ 33,408
Redeemable convertible preferred stock 15,373 13,052
Total $ 46,460

December 31, 2008
Weighted Avg Income

Shares Allocation
Common stock 3335 $ 1,276
Redeemable convertible preferred stock 60,446 23,149
Total $ 24,425

The numerator of diluted earnings per common share equals the numerator of basic earnings per common share plus an adjustment for
income attributable to the participation rights of redeemable convertible preferred stock, to the extent such an adjustment would be dilutive.

For the periods presented, the numerator for diluted earnings per share was not adjusted from the basic earnings per share calculation for
the impact of redeemable convertible preferred stock because all potential common shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock were

anti-dilutive.

The denominator of diluted earnings per common share includes the incremental potential common shares issuable upon the following
events, to the extent the effect was dilutive:

@
Exercise of stock options and warrants;

(i)
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shares of common stock; and
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(iii)
Through the closing of the Company's initial public offering, the issuance of shares of common stock at fair value in
payment of the accreted value of the redeemable convertible preferred stock to the holders of redeemable convertible
preferred stock.

10. Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

The following discussion reflects the terms of the redeemable convertible preferred stock set forth in the Company's Fourth Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation which was filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on July 29, 2005. All shares of redeemable
convertible preferred stock (Series A Convertible Preferred Stock) were optionally converted into common stock immediately prior to the
closing of the Company's initial public offering on April 20, 2009, on which date the Company filed with the Delaware Secretary of State its
Fifth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation which eliminated the redeemable convertible preferred stock, among other things.

The redeemable convertible preferred stock ranked senior to all common stock. The holders of redeemable convertible preferred stock were
not entitled to any dividends except if the Company declared, set aside or paid any dividend on the common stock (other than dividends payable
solely in additional shares of common stock), in which case holders of the redeemable convertible preferred stock could participate in any such
dividends on a per share as-converted basis. Such dividends were payable when and as declared by the Company's board of directors. No
preferred stock dividends were declared during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008. See "Preferred Dividends" below for
payments upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company and payments upon optional conversion.

Optional Conversion Feature

Each issued and outstanding share of redeemable convertible preferred stock was entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of
shares of common stock into which it convertible with respect to matters presented to the stockholders of the Company for their action or
consideration.

Each share of redeemable convertible preferred stock was convertible, at the option of the holder, at any time, into 2.265380093 shares of
common stock. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were no outstanding shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock.

Upon an optional conversion, the holder was entitled to receive shares of common stock as discussed above and also the payments
discussed below under "Preferred Dividends Payments upon optional conversion." The right of the holders of redeemable convertible preferred
stock to elect to receive both shares of common stock and the accreted value under the optional conversion feature resulted in fair value in
excess of the invested amount, which resulted in a beneficial conversion feature to such holders. This beneficial conversion feature was recorded
as a 'deemed dividend' on the date of the issuance of the redeemable convertible preferred stock because there was no stated redemption date
(maturity date) and the optional conversion feature was immediately exercisable. This beneficial conversion feature was measured as the excess
of the fair value of the common shares into which the shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock were convertible over the accounting
conversion price. The Company has not issued any new shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock since 2005. Prior to 2006, the
Company recorded $14.1 million of deemed dividends related to the beneficial conversion feature associated with redeemable convertible
preferred stock.
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Preferred Dividends

(@

Payments upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company:

Upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the holders of redeemable convertible preferred
stock were entitled to receive an amount equal to the sum of (i) the "accreted value" of the shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock plus
(ii) any dividends declared but unpaid on the shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock. The term "accreted value" was defined as an
amount equal to the sum of (i) the "stated value" for a share of redeemable convertible preferred stock plus (ii) 8% per year of the stated value,
compounding annually and commencing on the date of issuance of such share. The term "stated value" was defined as $1.00 per share, subject to
appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock split, stock distribution or combination with respect to the redeemable
convertible preferred stock. The amount by which the accreted value exceeded the stated value for any share of redeemable convertible preferred
stock was referred to as the "accreted dividend" for such share. At the option of the holder, the accreted value could have been paid in cash or
shares of common stock valued at current fair market value.

With respect to the payment of amounts described in the preceding paragraph, each of the following events was deemed to be a
"liquidation, dissolution or winding up" of the Company: (i) the consolidation with or into another corporation in which the stockholders of
record of the Company owned less than 50% of the voting securities of the surviving corporation; (ii) the sale of substantially all the assets of the
Company; (iii) the sale of securities of the Company representing more than 50% of the voting securities (other than a qualified public offering);
and (iv) a sale to Warburg Pincus or their successors or assigns.

(b)

Payments upon optional conversion:

Upon an optional conversion of shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock, the holder of such shares was entitled to receive (in
addition to the common stock acquirable upon conversion of such shares) an amount equal to (i) the accreted value of such shares plus (ii) any
dividends declared but unpaid on such shares. At the option of the holder, the accreted value could have been paid in cash or shares of common
stock valued at current fair market value.

On April 20, 2009, the Company used the proceeds from its initial public offering to pay the accreted value (carrying value) of the
redeemable convertible preferred stock in connection with the optional conversion of all shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock into
common stock and the election by all holders of redeemable convertible preferred stock to receive the payment of the accreted value of the
redeemable convertible preferred stock in cash, in each case as of the closing of the offering. The accreted value at the time of payment was
$27.7 million, of which $7.9 million was accreted dividends.

11. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company grants stock options from its 2009 Stock Incentive Plan ("2009 Plan"). The compensation committee of the Company's board
of directors determines eligibility, vesting schedules and exercise prices for awards granted under the 2009 Plan. Options granted under the 2009
plan typically have a maximum contractual term of 10 years, subject to continuing service to the Company.
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Options are generally granted with a four year vesting requirement, under which the option holder must remain employed with the Company at
each vesting period. All options granted in 2010 and 2009 were pursuant to the 2009 Plan. Under the 2009 Plan, the number of authorized shares
is subject to automatic increase, without the need for further approval by the Company's board of directors and stockholders each January 1
through and including January 1, 2019.

Before the adoption of the 2009 Plan, the Company awarded options pursuant to the Company's Amended and Restated 2005 Stock
Incentive Plan ("2005 Plan"). Effective upon the closing of the Company's initial public offering, the 2005 Plan was terminated and no further
options may be issued under that plan, provided that all options then outstanding under the 2005 Plan will continue to remain outstanding
pursuant to the terms of the 2005 Plan and applicable award agreements.

The following table presents a summary of the stock option activity in 2009 and 2010 (in thousands, except for exercise prices and
contractual terms):

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Contractual
Options Exercise Term Aggregate
Outstanding Price (in years) Intrinsic Value

Balance at
December 31,
2008 8,828 $ 0.37

Granted 2,814 $ 10.64

Exercised 948) $ 0.36

Forfeitures (121) $ 4.35
Balance at
December 31,
2009 10,573 $ 3.06 6.84 $ 126,590

Granted 1,051 $ 19.25

Exercised (1,181) $ 0.88

Forfeitures 248) $ 12.20
Balance at
December 31,
2010 10,195 $ 4.76 547 $ 147,545
Vested and
expected to vest at
December 31,
2010 10,093 $ 4.66 544  $ 146,961
Exercisable at
December 31,
2010 7,572 $ 1.93 439 §$ 129,274
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The Company recorded $7.9 million, $35.9 million and $1.8 million of compensation expense related to stock options and any

modifications of stock options for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The related income tax benefit was
$3.1 million, $14.2 million and $0.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

As of December 31, 2010, there was $9.6 million of unrecognized compensation costs related to time vested options. As of December 31,
2010, there was $33,000 of unrecognized compensation costs related to performance vested options.

The Company records stock-based compensation expense over the vesting term using the graded-vesting method. At December 31, 2010,
the unrecognized compensation costs of stock-based awards are expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.4 years.
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The Company has reserved 13.8 million shares of common stock for issuance upon the exercise of stock options (including outstanding
stock options) under the Company's equity incentive plans as of December 31, 2010. Shares issued from option exercises are drawn from the
authorized but unissued shares of common stock. During the year ended December 31, 2010, 1.2 million stock options were exercised, with an
intrinsic value of $18.2 million. The actual tax benefit realized from these exercises was $7.1 million. During the year ended December 31,
2009, 0.9 million stock options were exercised, with an intrinsic value of $14.7 million. During the year ended December 31, 2008, no stock
options were exercised. During the year ended December 31, 2010, approximately 4,000 stock options expired.

The fair value of each option award granted during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Company's determination of the fair value of share-based awards is affected by the
Company's common stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of complex and subjective variables. Below is a summary of the
assumptions used for the options granted in the years indicated:

2010 2009 2008
Weighted average exercise price per share $ 1925 $ 1064 $
Risk-free interest rate 2.3% 1.9%
Expected dividend yield
Expected volatility 45.7% 48.0%
Expected life (in years) 6.16 6.25
Forfeiture rate 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
Weighted average grant date fair value per share $ 88 $ 514 $

The risk-free interest rate is based on the currently available rate on a U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issue with a remaining term equal to the
expected term of the option converted into a continuously compounded rate. Based on the lack of sufficient historical data regarding the
volatility of the Company's stock price, expected volatility is based on the volatility of publicly-traded securities of a peer group of comparable
companies in the Company's industry. In evaluating comparability, the Company considered factors such as industry, stage of life cycle and size.
Based on the lack of historical data, the expected life of the Company's options is calculated using the simplified method, which is the mid-point
between the vesting term of the options and the contractual term. The dividend yield reflects the fact that the Company has never declared or
paid any cash dividends on its common stock and does not currently anticipate paying cash dividends in the future.

Acceleration of Exit Options

On March 28, 2009, the Company's board of directors amended the exit vested options ("exit options") for certain members of the
Company's management team (10 individuals) to add an additional vesting condition so that the number of shares underlying the options that
would not have vested upon the closing of the Company's initial public offering, under the original terms of the options, would vest in full upon
the closing of such offering. This additional vesting condition constituted a modification. Accordingly, to the extent the exit option vested under
the original vesting conditions, the original grant date fair value was recorded on the vesting date; and to the extent each exit option vested under
the additional vesting condition, the modification date fair value was recorded on the vesting date.
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The compensation expense that was recorded for the exit options during the second quarter of 2009 was $30.4 million in the aggregate
($0.1 million related to the portion of the exit options vesting under the original vesting conditions and $30.3 million related to the portion of the
exit options vesting under the additional vesting condition), which was based upon the sale by Warburg Pincus of 20.8% of its ownership of the
Company's common stock (as-converted) in the Company's initial public offering. The incremental compensation cost resulting from the
modification was $30.0 million. The compensation expense was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, including a fair value
of common stock of $14.91, an exercise price of either $0.07 or $0.13 based on the respective exit options, an estimated life of three years, a
zero dividend yield, volatility of 65% and a risk free interest rate of 1.28%. This compensation expense was recorded in accordance with where
the related optionee's regular compensation is recorded.

12. Warrants

The Company has issued warrants to purchase common stock to various employees, consultants, licensors and lenders. Each warrant
represents the right to purchase one share of common stock. No warrants were issued during the year ended December 31, 2010 or 2009.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, 0.3 million warrants to purchase shares of common stock were exercised. As of December 31,
2010 and 2009, all outstanding warrants were exercisable. The following table summarizes information with respect to all warrants outstanding
as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands, except exercise prices):

December 31, December 31, Expiration

Exercise Price 2010 2009 Date
$1.125 51 75 2013
$2.250 87 140 2013
$2.835 172 172 2013
$2.925 19 19 2013
$4.500 167 2013
$9.000 6 39 2013
Total 335 612

13. Share Repurchase Program

On July 30, 2010, the Company's board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $60.0 million of the Company's outstanding shares
of common stock over the following 12 months. Under the share repurchase program, which was announced on August 3, 2010, the Company
may purchase shares from time to time in the open market, through block trades or otherwise.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company repurchased 3.0 million shares of common stock at a weighted average purchase
price of $14.05 per share, for a total cost of $42.2 million. Approximately $17.8 million remains authorized and available under the repurchase
program. The Company may suspend the repurchase program at any time.
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The Company uses the asset and liability method to account for taxes. Under this method, deferred income tax assets and liabilities result
from temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements that will result in

tax and deductions in future years.

The components of income tax expense are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Current:
Federal $ 76649 $ 38,771 $ 9,837
State 18,916 8,782 2,892
95,565 47,553 12,729
Deferred:
Federal (5,485) (9,532) (4,292)
State 119 (2,886) (1,366)
(5,366) (12,418) (5,658)
Total $ 90,199 $§ 35135 $ 7,071

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following (in thousands):

As of December 31,
2010 2009
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss $ 788 $ 811
Fixed assets 139 61
Bad debt 889 769
Vacation accrual 1,364 1,019
Stock-based compensation 15,859 14,099
Deferred rent 4,033 2,727
State tax 5,671 2,425
Tax credits 7
Other 964 345
Total deferred tax assets 29,707 22,263
Valuation allowance
Net deferred tax assets 29,707 22,263
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fixed assets and intangibles (6,823) (4,745)
Total net deferred tax assets $ 22,884 $ 17,518
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Deferred taxes are reflected in the balance sheet as follows (in thousands):

As of December 31,
2010 2009
Current deferred tax assets $ 7039 $ 4,027
Current deferred tax liabilities
Noncurrent deferred tax assets 15,845 13,491
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilities
Total $ 22884 $ 17,518

The Company periodically assesses the likelihood that it will be able to recover its deferred tax assets. The Company considers all available
evidence, both positive and negative, including historical levels of income, expectations and risks associated with estimates of future taxable
income and ongoing prudent and feasible profits. Based on our history of earnings, we have concluded that it is more likely than not that we will
fully utilize our deferred tax assets. Accordingly, we have not provided any valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets.

At December 31, 2010, the Company had federal net operating loss carry forwards of $0.9 million and state net operating loss carry
forwards of $8.4 million, which are available to offset future taxable income. The federal net operating loss carry forwards will begin to expire
in 2022. The state net operating loss carry forwards will begin to expire in 2019. Pursuant to Internal Code Section 382, use of the net operating
loss carryforwards may be limited if a cumulative change in ownership of more than 50% occurs within a three-year period. The Company has
performed a Section 382 analysis through December 31, 2010, and has determined that there is no material effect on the net operating loss
carryforwards.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense computed using the U.S. federal statutory tax rate of 35% and the Company's provision for
income taxes follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Computed expected federal tax expense $ 76223 $ 28,784 $ 11,725
State taxes, net of federal benefit 10,238 3,117 1,441
Permanent differences 335 439 121
Uncertain tax positions 3,401 2,660 362
Other 2 135 150
Valuation allowance (6,728)
Income tax expense $ 90,199 §$ 35135 $ 7,071

The Company evaluates and accounts for uncertain tax positions using a two-step approach. Recognition (step one) occurs when the
Company concludes that a tax position, based solely on its technical merits, is more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination.
Measurement (step two) determines the amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with the taxing
authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. Derecognition
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of a tax position that was previously recognized would occur when the Company subsequently determines that a tax position no longer meets the
more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained.

The accrual for uncertain tax positions can result in a difference between the estimated benefit recorded in the Company's financial
statements and the benefit taken or expected to be taken in the Company's income tax returns. This difference is generally referred to as an
"unrecognized tax benefit."

The Company has analyzed filing positions in all of the federal and state jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns, as well
as all open tax years in these jurisdictions.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in thousands):

Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2008 2,743
Gross increases tax positions in prior period
Gross decreases tax positions in prior period (2,212)
Gross increases current period tax positions 3,242
Settlements

Lapse of statute of limitations

Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2009 3,773
Gross increases tax positions in prior period 109
Gross decreases tax positions in prior period
Gross increases current period tax positions 4,175
Settlements

Lapse of statute of limitations
Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2010 $ 8,057

Included in the amount of unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, is $5.8 million, $3.0 million, and $0.3 million,
respectively, of tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the Company's effective tax rate. Also included in the balance of unrecognized tax
benefits at December 31, 2010, is $2.3 million of tax benefits that, if recognized, would result in adjustments to other tax accounts, primarily
deferred tax assets.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. As of December 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008, the Company had approximately $1.5 million, $0.2 million and $0.2 million, respectively, of accrued interest, before any tax benefit,
related to uncertain tax positions.

The tax years 2002-2010 are open to examination by major taxing jurisdictions to which the Company is subject. The Company does not
expect significant increases or decreases in unrecognized tax benefits for uncertain positions taken in previous years within the next twelve
months.

The Company's continuing practice is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.
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The Internal Revenue Service commenced an audit of the Company's 2008 federal income tax return in November 2010. The Company
expects the audit to close during the second quarter of 2011 and does not expect any significant adjustments resulting from the close of the audit.

15. Regulatory

The Company is subject to extensive regulation by federal and state governmental agencies and accrediting bodies. In particular, the Higher
Education Act of 1965 ("Higher Education Act") and the regulations promulgated thereunder by the Department subject the Company to
significant regulatory scrutiny on the basis of numerous standards that schools must satisfy in order to participate in the various federal student
financial assistance programs under Title IV of the Higher Education Act.

To participate in Title IV programs, an institution must be authorized to offer its programs of instruction by the relevant agency of the state
in which it is physically located, accredited by an accrediting agency recognized by the Department and certified as eligible by the Department.
The Department will certify an institution to participate in Title IV programs only after the institution has demonstrated compliance with the
Higher Education Act and the Department's extensive regulations regarding institutional eligibility. An institution must also demonstrate its
compliance to the Department on an ongoing basis. As of December 31, 2010, management believes the Company is in compliance with
applicable Department regulations in all material respects.

The Higher Education Act requires accrediting agencies to review many aspects of an institution's operations in order to ensure that the
education offered is of sufficiently high quality to achieve satisfactory outcomes and that the institution is complying with accrediting standards.
Failure to demonstrate compliance with accrediting standards may result in the imposition of probation, the requirements to provide periodic
reports, the loss of accreditation or other penalties if deficiencies are not remediated.

Because the Company operates in a highly regulated industry, it, like other industry participants, may be subject from time to time to audits,
investigations, claims of noncompliance or lawsuits by governmental agencies or third parties, which allege statutory violations, regulatory
infractions or common law causes of action.

Cohort Default Rate

For each federal fiscal year, the Department calculates a rate of student defaults for each educational institution which is known as a "cohort
default rate." An institution may lose its eligibility to participate in the Direct Loan, FFEL and Pell programs if, for each of the three most recent
federal fiscal years for which information is available, 25% or more of its students who became subject to a repayment obligation in that federal
fiscal year defaulted on such obligation by the end of the following federal fiscal year. In addition, an institution may lose its eligibility to
participate in the Direct Loan and FFEL programs if its cohort default rate exceeds 40% in the most recent federal fiscal year for which default
rates have been calculated by the Department. Ashford University's cohort default rates for the 2008, 2007 and 2006 federal fiscal years, were
13.3%, 13.3% and 4.1%, respectively. The cohort default rates for the University of the Rockies for the 2008, 2007 and 2006 federal fiscal years,
were 2.5%, 0.0% and 0.0%, respectively.
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Financial Responsibility

The Department calculates an institution's composite score for financial responsibility based on its (i) equity ratio, which measures the
institution's capital resources, ability to borrow and financial viability; (ii) primary reserve ratio, which measures the institution's ability to
support current operations from expendable resources; and (iii) net income ratio, which measures the institution's ability to operate at a profit.
An institution that does not meet the Department's minimum composite score may demonstrate its financial responsibility by posting a letter of
credit in favor of the Department and possibly accepting other conditions on its participation in the Title IV programs.

In the third quarter of 2010, consistent with the Company's internal calculations, the Department notified the Company that Ashford
University received a composite score of 2.9 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, and that the University of the Rockies received a
composite score of 1.8 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, in each case satisfying the composite score requirement of the Department's
financial responsibility test, which institutions must satisfy in order to participate in Title IV programs.

The ''90/10'"" Rule

Pursuant to a provision of the Higher Education Act, as reauthorized in August 2008, a for-profit institution loses its eligibility to
participate in Title IV programs if the institution derives more than 90% of its revenue (calculated on a cash basis in accordance with applicable
statutory provisions and Department regulations) from Title IV funds for two consecutive fiscal years, commencing with the institution's first
fiscal year that ends after the new law's effective date of August 14, 2008. This rule is commonly referred to as the "90/10 rule." Any institution
that violates the 90/10 rule becomes ineligible to participate in Title IV programs for at least two fiscal years. In addition, an institution whose
rate exceeds 90% for any single year will be placed on provisional certification and may be subject to other enforcement measures.

In May 2008, the Ensuring Continued Access to Student Loans Act ("ECASLA") increased the annual loan limits on federal unsubsidized
student loans by $2,000 for the majority of the Company's students enrolled in associates and bachelors degree programs, and also increased the
aggregate loan limits (over the course of a student's education) on total federal student loans for certain students. This increase in student loan
limits, together with increases in Pell grants, has increased the amount of Title IV program funds used by students to satisfy tuition, fees and
other costs, which has increased the proportion of the Company's revenue deemed to be from Title IV programs. The Higher Education
Opportunity Act provides temporary relief from the impact of these loan limit increases by allowing any amounts received between July 1, 2008
and July 1, 2011 that are attributable to the increased annual loan limits to be excluded from the 90/10 rule calculation. The implementing
regulations for this temporary relief and other aspects of the 90/10 rule were published in final form on October 29, 2009. The effective date of
the new regulations was July 1, 2010. Ashford University has not elected to exclude amounts attributable to the increased annual loan limits
from its 90/10 calculation.
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For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, Ashford University derived 85.0%, 85.5% and 86.8%, respectively, and the
University of the Rockies derived 85.9%, 84.6% and 80.8%, respectively, of their respective revenue (calculated on a cash basis in accordance
with applicable statutory provisions and Department regulations) from Title IV funds.

Return of Title IV Funds

An institution participating in Title IV programs must correctly calculate the amount of unearned Title IV program funds that have been
disbursed to students who withdraw from their educational programs before completion and must return those unearned funds in a timely
manner, generally within 45 days of the date the school determines that the student has withdrawn. Under Department regulations, failure to
make timely returns of Title IV program funds for 5% or more of students sampled on the institution's annual compliance audit in either of its
two most recently completed fiscal years can result in the institution having to post a letter of credit in an amount equal to 25% of its required
Title IV returns during its most recently completed fiscal year. If unearned funds are not properly calculated and returned in a timely manner, an
institution is also subject to monetary liabilities or an action to impose a fine or to limit, suspend or terminate its participation in Title IV
programs. For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company's institutions did not exceed the 5% threshold for late refunds
sampled.

16. Related Party Transactions
Director Agreement

Ryan Craig, a director of the Company, entered into an agreement with Warburg Pincus in August 2004 to serve on the Company's board of
directors and to serve as a consultant in 2004 to the Company on behalf of Warburg Pincus. Under this agreement, Mr. Craig was to receive a
portion of the proceeds from Warburg Pincus upon a liquidity event in an amount to be determined based on proceeds to Warburg Pincus from
their holdings of the Company's common and preferred stock. This agreement was superseded by a new arrangement in December 2008 under
which Mr. Craig received 112,076 shares of the Company's common stock from Warburg Pincus in January 2009. Under the new arrangement,
Mr. Craig will receive no further cash payment upon a liquidity event. Because the consideration to be received by Mr. Craig is based on the fair
value of the Company's stock and was earned by providing services to the Company, the Company has recognized the transaction as stock-based
compensation expense and a capital contribution from Warburg Pincus. The new arrangement in December 2008 was accounted for as an
improbable-to-probable modification of vesting conditions. The incremental stock-based compensation expense resulting from the modification,
based on the fair value of the Company's common stock at December 31, 2008, was $1.6 million. As the award was for past services, the
stock-based compensation expense was recorded at the time of the modification in December 2008.

November 2003 Loan from Warburg Pincus to the Company's CEO and President

In November 2003, Warburg Pincus loaned $75,000 to Andrew Clark the Company's CEO and President to finance Mr. Clark's purchase of
75,000 shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock from the Company. In connection with such loan, Mr. Clark entered into a Secured
Recourse Promissory Note and Pledge Agreement with Warburg Pincus which provided that the principal amount
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due under the note would accrue simple interest at a rate of 8% per year until November 26, 2005, the maturity date, after which time interest
would accrue at a penalty rate of 16% per year, compounded monthly. The loan was secured by 75,000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock held by Mr. Clark. Mr. Clark repaid the loan in full on March 10, 2009, at which time the amount due under the note was $146,740
(including accrued interest of $71,740).

17. Retirement Plans

The Company maintains an employee savings plan that qualifies as a deferred salary arrangement under Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Under the savings plan, participating employees may contribute a portion of their pre-tax earnings up to the Internal Revenue
Service annual contribution limit. Additionally, the Company may elect to make matching contributions into the savings plan at its sole
discretion. The Company's total expense related to the 401(k) plan was $1.2 million, $0.4 million and $23,000 for the years ended December 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

18. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company is a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of
business. As of December 31, 2010, the Company was not a party, as plaintiff or defendant, to any legal proceedings which, individually or in
the aggregate, would be expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition, results of operations or cash
flows. When the Company becomes aware of a claim or potential claim, it assesses the likelihood of any loss or exposure. If it is probable that a
loss will result and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated, the Company records a liability for the loss. If the loss is not probable or
the amount of the loss cannot be reasonably estimated, the Company discloses the nature of the specific claim if the likelihood of a potential loss
is reasonably possible and the amount involved is material.

Compliance Audit by the Department's Office of the Inspector General ("OIG"')

On January 21, 2011, Ashford University received a final audit report from the OIG regarding the compliance audit commenced in May
2008 and covering the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007. The audit covered Ashford University's administration of Title IV program
funds, including compliance with regulations governing institutional and student eligibility, awards and disbursements of Title IV program
funds, verification of awards and returns of unearned funds during that period, and its compensation of financial aid and recruiting personnel
during the period May 10, 2005 through June 30, 2009. See Note 22, "Subsequent Events Receipt of Final Audit Report from the OIG, " for
additional information.

Rosendahl v. Bridgepoint Education, Inc. et al.

In January 2011, the Company received a copy of a complaint in a purported class action lawsuit naming the Company, Ashford University
and University of the Rockies as defendants. The complaint was filed in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of California on
January 11, 2011, and is captioned, Scott Rosendahl and Veronica Clark v. Bridgepoint Education, Inc., Ashford University and University of
the Rockies. The complaint generally alleges that the Company and the other defendants
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engaged in improper, fraudulent and illegal behavior in their efforts to recruit and retain students. The Company believes the lawsuit is without
merit and intends to vigorously defend against it.

Iowa Attorney General Civil Investigation of Ashford University

In February 2011, Ashford University received from the Attorney General ("Attorney General") of the State of lowa a Civil Investigative
Demand and Notice of Intent to Proceed ("CID") relating to the Attorney General's investigation of whether certain of the university's business
practices comply with Iowa consumer laws. The CID contains no specific allegations of wrongdoing. Pursuant to the CID, the Attorney General
has requested documents and detailed information for the time period January 1, 2008 to present. Ashford University is evaluating the CID and
intends to comply with the Attorney General's request.

Stevens v. Bridgepoint Education, Inc.

In February 2011, the Company received a copy of a complaint in a purported class action lawsuit naming the Company, Ashford
University, LLC, and certain employees as defendants. The complaint was filed in the Superior Court of the State of California in San Diego on
February 17, 2011, and is captioned Stevens v. Bridgepoint Education, Inc. The complaint generally alleges that the plaintiffs and similarly
situated employees were improperly denied certain wage and hour protections under California law. The Company believes the lawsuit is
without merit and intends to vigorously defend against it.

19. Stockholder Dispute

In February 2009, certain holders of common stock and warrants to purchase common stock asserted various claims against the Company,
its directors and officers and Warburg Pincus regarding amendments to the Company's certificate of incorporation made in connection with
financings in 2005 and certain stock options granted by the Company to its employees. The claimants represented 90% of the holders of
common stock and 59% of the shares of common stock subject to warrants outstanding, in each case as of July 27, 2005. In March 2009, the
Company reached a settlement with the claimants regarding these claims and recorded a total expense of $11.1 million related to the settlement
during the three months ended March 31, 2009, of which $10.6 million was a non-cash expense. After settling with the claimants, the Company
notified the other holders of common stock and other holders of warrants to purchase shares of common stock, in each case as of July 27, 2005,
regarding these claims, the settlement terms and their ability to participate in the settlement. In April 2009, the Company reached settlement with
the holders of 100% of the common stock and 100% of the shares subject to warrants outstanding, in each case as of July 27, 2005, at which
time the Company ceased to be a potential obligor related to the claims asserted by these security holders. The settlement resulted in the issuance
of an aggregate of 710,097 shares of common stock, with a total value of $10.6 million, and cash payments totaling $433,000 which were paid in
April 2009.

20. Concentration of Risk
Concentration of Revenue

In 2010, Ashford University derived 85.0% and the University of the Rockies derived 85.9% of their respective revenues (in each case
calculated on a cash basis in accordance with applicable

116

137



Edgar Filing: Bridgepoint Education Inc - Form 10-K

Table of Contents

Bridgepoint Education, Inc.
Notes to Annual Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

20. Concentration of Risk (Continued)

Department regulations) from Title IV programs. See Note 14, "Regulatory The "90/10" Rule." Title IV programs are subject to political and
budgetary considerations and are subject to extensive and complex regulations. The Company's administration of these programs is periodically
reviewed by various regulatory agencies. Any regulatory violation could be the basis for the initiation of potentially adverse actions including a
suspension, limitation, or termination proceeding, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's enrollments, revenues and
results of operations.

Students obtain access to federal student financial aid through a Department prescribed application and eligibility certification process.
Student financial aid funds are generally made available to students at prescribed intervals throughout their predetermined expected length of
study. Students typically apply the funds received from the federal financial aid programs first to pay their tuition and fees. Any remaining funds
are distributed directly to the student.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents accounts in financial institutions. Accounts at these institutions are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. The Company performs ongoing evaluations of these institutions to limit its
concentrations risk exposure.

Concentration of Sources of Supply

The Company is dependent on a third party provider for its online platform, which includes a learning management system, which stores,
manages and delivers course content, enables assignment uploading, provides interactive communication between students and faculty and
supplies online assessment tools. The partial or complete loss of this source may have a material adverse effect on the Company's enrollments,
revenues and results of operations.

21. Initial Public Offering

On April 20, 2009, the Company closed its initial public offering of common stock, in which 15.5 million shares of common stock were
sold to the public at an offering price of $10.50 per share. The offering included 3.5 million shares sold by the Company and 12.0 million shares
sold by selling stockholders. The net proceeds to the Company from the offering were $28.1 million, after deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and offering expenses. The Company used its proceeds from the offering primarily to pay the accreted value of the redeemable
convertible preferred stock ($27.7 million) upon the optional conversion of all outstanding shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock into
44.7 million shares of common stock at the closing of the offering.

22. Subsequent Events
Receipt of Final Audit Report from the OIG

On January 21, 2011, Ashford University received a final audit report from the OIG regarding the compliance audit commenced in May
2008 and covering the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007. The audit covered Ashford University's administration of Title IV program
funds, including compliance with regulations governing institutional and student eligibility, awards and disbursements of Title IV program
funds, verification of awards and returns of unearned funds during that period, and its
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22. Subsequent Events (Continued)

compensation of financial aid and recruiting personnel during the period May 10, 2005 through June 30, 2009.

The final audit report contained audit findings, in each case for the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007 (award year 2006-2007),
which is summarized as follows:

Finding 1 The university designed a compensation plan for enrollment advisors that provided incentive payments based on
success in securing enrollments and did not establish that its plan and practices qualified for the regulatory safe harbors.

Finding 2 The university did not always perform return of Title IV aid calculations properly, resulting in the improper
retention of a total of $29,036 of Title IV program funds for 38 students in the OIG's sample sets of 85 students.

Finding 3 The university did not in all instances return Title IV program funds timely for Title IV students who withdrew or
went on a leave of absence from school.

Finding 4 The form formerly used by the university to obtain authorizations to retain student credit balances did not comply
with applicable regulations.

Finding 5 The university did not in all instances disburse Title IV program funds in accordance with applicable regulations or
university policy because they were made prior to the students being eligible to receive them.

Finding 6 The university did not in all instances maintain documentation to support online students' leaves of absence due to
the lack of support for the start dates for 19 leaves of absence.

Each finding was accompanied by one or more recommendations to the Department's Office of Federal Student Aid, or FSA, as

summarized below:

For Finding 1, the OIG recommended that the FSA require the university to provide records of all salary adjustments made
to enrollment advisors during award year 2006-2007 and any documentation, not disclosed to the OIG, that demonstrates

that any specific adjustments made during that period qualified for the regulatory safe harbors.

For Findings 2 and 5, the OIG recommended that the FSA require the university (i) to remit to the Department and
appropriate lenders certain amounts identified by the OIG ($29,036 for Finding 2) and (ii) undertake a file review for award
year 2006-2007 to identify the amount of Title IV funds that were improperly retained or disbursed and to remit such

amounts to the Department or appropriate lenders.

For Finding 4, the OIG recommended that the FSA require the university to cease drawing, disbursing and holding credit
balances of Title IV program funds for which there are no currently assessed institutional charges.
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For Findings 2, 3, 5 and 6, the OIG recommended that the FSA require the university to develop and implement certain
remedial policies and procedures.

For Findings 2, 3 and 5 generally, and for Finding 1 in the event the university cannot establish that its salary adjustments for
enrollment advisors qualified for the safe harbor, the OIG recommended that the FSA consider whether to take appropriate
action under Subpart G of
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34 C.F.R. Part 668. Under Subpart G, the FSA may seek to impose a fine against the university or to limit, suspend or
terminate the university's participation in Title IV programs.

The findings and recommendations of the final audit report represent the opinions of the OIG, and the issuance of final audit determinations
and corrective action to be taken, if any, will be made by the FSA.

Ashford University expects that the FSA will consider the findings and recommendations in the final audit report and engage in a dialog
with the university prior to determining what if any action to take and issuing a Final Audit Determination Letter concluding the audit. The OIG
has requested that Ashford University provide a response to the FSA regarding the final audit report, if any, within 30 days of the final audit
report's issuance to which we have responded in a timely manner. If the FSA were to determine to assess a monetary liability or commence an
action under Subpart G, Ashford University would have an opportunity to contest the assessment or proposed action through administrative
proceedings, with the right to seek review of any final administrative action in the federal courts. Although the Company believes Ashford
University operates in substantial compliance with Department regulations that are applicable to the areas under review, the Company cannot
predict the ultimate findings, potential liabilities or remedial actions, if any, that the FSA may include in the Final Audit Determination Letter, or
the result of any administrative proceedings, including Subpart G proceedings, that may arise out of the Final Audit Determination Letter.

Litigation and Legal Proceedings

See Note 18, "Commitments and Contingencies," for a discussion of the lawsuits received in early 2011 and the civil investigative demand
from the Attorney General of the State of Iowa received in February 2011.

Denver Lease Facility

In February 2011, the Company entered into a lease for 151,000 rentable square feet of office space in Denver, Colorado. The Company
intends to use the new space primarily for administrative offices, meeting rooms and online support services. The initial term of the lease is
10 years and is estimated to commence in August 2011. The monthly base rent over the initial term of the lease increases from $0.4 million
during the first year to $0.5 million during the tenth year. The total amount of base rent payments over the initial term of the lease is
$43.4 million.

Notice of Hearing from U.S. Senate Committee on Health, Education, Labor and Pensions regarding the Company

On March 1, 2011, the Company received correspondence from the U.S. Senate Committee on Health, Education, Labor and Pensions
inviting the Company's CEO and President to testify at a hearing scheduled for March 10, 2011, regarding Bridgepoint Education, Inc. and
Ashford University.

23. Quarterly Results of Operations and Other Operating Data (Unaudited)

The following tables set forth unaudited results of operations and certain operating data for each quarter during 2010 and 2009. We believe
that the information reflects all adjustments, which include only normal and recurring adjustments, necessary to present fairly the information
below. Basic and

119

141



Edgar Filing: Bridgepoint Education Inc - Form 10-K

Table of Contents

Bridgepoint Education, Inc.
Notes to Annual Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

23. Quarterly Results of Operations and Other Operating Data (Unaudited) (Continued)

diluted earnings per common share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Therefore, the sum of quarterly basic and
diluted per common share information may not equal annual basic and diluted earnings per common share.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In thousands, except enrollment and

per share data)

2010
Revenue $ 156,067 $ 173,840 $ 190,911 $ 192415
Costs and expenses:
Instructional costs and services 39,436 43,257 50,191 54,515
Marketing and promotional 44212 50,096 54,963 62,279
General and administrative 22,331 21,257 23,331 30,944
Total costs and expenses 105,979 114,610 128,485 147,738
Operating income 50,088 59,230 62,426 44,677
Interest income 307) (403) (372) (486)
Interest expense 61 33 37 79
Income before income taxes 50,334 59,600 62,761 45,084
Income tax expense 20,511 24,330 26,623 18,735
Net income $ 29823 $ 35270 $ 36,138 $ 26,349

Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 055 % 0.65 $ 0.68 $ 0.50

Diluted $ 049 % 0.58 $ 061 $ 0.45

Period end enrollment:

Online 65,051 67,206 76,171 77,033

Campus-based 737 538 1,008 859

Total: 65,788 67,744 77,179 77,892
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23. Quarterly Results of Operations and Other Operating Data (Unaudited) (Continued)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In thousands, except enrollment and

per share data)

2009
Revenue $ 84275 $ 110,908 $ 127,382 $ 131,759
Costs and expenses:
Instructional costs and services 22,134 28,357 33,120 36,478
Marketing and promotional 29,106 39,655 36,500 40,460
General and administrative 25,882 41,093 18,915 20,894
Total costs and expenses 77,122 109,105 88,535 97,832
Operating income 7,153 1,803 38,847 33,927
Interest income (130) (140) (211) (308)
Interest expense 58 96 49 76
Income before income taxes 7,225 1,847 39,009 34,159
Income tax expense 3,338 587 16,651 14,559
Net income $ 3887 § 1,260 $ 22358 $ 19,600

Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 007 $ 002 § 042 § 0.36

Diluted $ 0.03 $ 002 § 037 $ 0.33

Period end enrollment:

Online 41,278 45,006 54,107 53,048

Campus-based 747 498 787 640

Total: 42,025 45,504 54,894 53,688
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or
submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, or persons performing similar
functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and
procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit
relationship of possible controls and procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer, we
carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act, as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level as of
December 31, 2010.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our
management and directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements prepared for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control
over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, we

conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal
Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation

under the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2010.
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The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2010, that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.
See Part I, Item 1, "Business Executive Officers of the Registrant," which information is incorporated herein by reference.

The information required by this item regarding our directors and corporate governance matters is included under the captions "Proposal
1 Election of Directors" and "Corporate Governance" in the Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the
SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 (the "2011 Proxy Statement") and is incorporated herein by
reference. The information required by this item regarding delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is included under the
heading "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" in the 2011 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is included under the captions "Corporate Governance Director Compensation" and "Compensation
Discussion and Analysis" in the 2011 Proxy Statement and incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this item is included under the captions "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management"
and "Compensation Discussion and Analysis Equity Compensation Plan Information" in the 2011 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this item is included under the captions "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" and "Corporate
Governance Director Independence” in the 2011 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is included under the caption "Proposal 2 Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm" in the 2011 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
(a)(1) Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following documents are filed in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31. 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Consolidated Statements of Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) for the Years Ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31. 2010, 2009 and 2008

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules.

The following financial statement schedule is filed as a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Beginning Charged to Ending
Balance Expense Deductions(1) Balance

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable:
For the year ended December 31, 2010 $ 16,171 $ 39,631 $ (27,712) '$ 28,090
For the year ended December 31, 2009 18,246 23,205 (25,280) 16,171
For the year ended December 31, 2008 6,016 13,431 (1,201) 18,246
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets:
For the year ended December 31, 2010
For the year ended December 31, 2009
For the year ended December 31, 2008 7,283 (7,283)

©))

Deductions represent accounts written off, net of recoveries or reversals of the allowance for deferred tax assets.
All other schedules have been omitted as they are not required, not applicable, or the required information is otherwise included.
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(2)(3) Exhibits.

Exhibit

Number

2.1

22

3.1

32

4.1
4.2

10.1*

10.2%*

10.3%*

Description of Document
Acquisition Agreements
Purchase and Sale Agreement dated December 3, 2004, as
amended, among The Franciscan University of the Prairies, the
Sisters of St. Francis and the registrant.
Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 12, 2007
between the Colorado School of Professional Psychology and the
registrant.
Charter Documents and Instruments Defining Rights of
Security Holders
Fifth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.
Second Amended and Restated Bylaws.
Specimen of Stock Certificate.
Second Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement
dated August 26, 2009 among the registrant and the other persons
named therein.
Employee Benefit Plans

Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Incentive Plan.

2005 Stock Incentive Plan Form of Stock Option Agreement and
Notice of Option Grant for Founders.

2005 Stock Incentive Plan Form of Stock Option Agreement and
Notice of Option Grant for Charlene Dackerman, Jane
McAuliffe, Ross Woodard and other non-executive employees.
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Filed
Herewith

Incorporated
by Reference

X

XK XX

Form

S-1

S-1

10-Q

S-1

S-1

S-1

S-1

S-1

S-1

Exhibit

No.

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.4

4.1
4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

Date Filed

February 17, 2009

February 17, 2009

May 21, 2009
March 20, 2009
March 30, 2009
September 4, 2009

December 22,
2008

February 17, 2009

February 17, 2009
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Exhibit Filed Incorporated Exhibit
Number Description of Document Herewith by Reference Form No. Date Filed
10.4* 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Form of Stock Option Agreement and X S-1 10.4 February 17, 2009

Notice of Option Grant for Andrew S. Clark, Daniel J. Devine,
Rodney T. Sheng and Christopher L. Spohn.

10.5* 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Form of Stock Option Agreement and X S-1 10.12  February 17, 2009
Notice of Option Grant for Robert Hartman.

10.6* Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Form of Stock X 8-K  10.13  January 12, 2010
Option Agreement and Notice of Option Grant for Charlene
Dackerman, Jane McAuliffe, Ross Woodard and other
non-executive employees.

10.7* Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Form of Stock X 8-K  10.14  January 12, 2010
Option Agreement and Notice of Option Grant for Andrew S. Clark,
Daniel J. Devine, Rodney T. Sheng and Christopher L. Spohn.

10.8* Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Amendment to X S-1 10.33  March 30, 2009
Stock Option Award
10.9* Amended and Restated 2009 Stock Incentive Plan. X S-1 10.5 April 1, 2009
10.10* Amended and Restated 2009 Stock Incentive Plan Form of X S-8 99.4 May 13, 2009
Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement for Executives and Senior
Management.
10.11* Amended and Restated 2009 Stock Incentive Plan Form of Incentive X S-8 99.5 May 13, 2009

Stock Option Agreement for Executives and Senior Management.

10.12* Form of Non-Plan Stock Option Agreement X S-8 99.6 May 13, 2009

10.13* Form of Compensatory Warrant Agreement. X S-1 4.10 March 20, 2009
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Exhibit Filed Incorporated Exhibit
Number Description of Document Herewith by Reference Form No. Date Filed
10.14* Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan. X 8-K  99.1 March 22, 2010
10.15* Bridgepoint Education Nonqualified Deferred Compensation X 10-Q 10.7 May 3, 2010
Plan
Agreements with Executive Officers, Directors and Warburg
Pincus
10.16* Employment Agreement between Andrew S. Clark and the X S-1 10.24  March 20, 2009
registrant.
10.17* Employment Agreement between Daniel J. Devine and the X S-1 10.25  March 20, 2009
registrant.
10.18* Employment Agreement between Rodney T. Sheng and the X S-1 10.27  March 20, 2009
registrant.
10.19* Employment Agreement between Christopher L. Spohn and the X S-1 10.26  March 20, 2009
registrant.

10.20* Amendment to Stock Option Agreement(s) between Christopher X
L. Spohn and the registrant.

10.21* Offer Letter to Diane Thompson. X S-1 10.28  March 20, 2009
10.22* Offer Letter to Thomas Ashbrook. X S-1 10.29  March 20, 2009
10.23* Offer Letter to Douglas C. Abts X
10.24* Executive Severance Plan. X S-1 10.31  March 20, 2009
10.25* Form of Severance Agreement under the Executive Severance X S-1 10.32  March 20, 2009
Plan.
10.26* Offer Letter to Dale Crandall. X S-1 10.30  March 20, 2009
10.27* Form of Indemnification Agreement for Executive Officers and X S-1 10.8 December 22,
Directors. 2008
10.28 Nominating Agreement between Warburg Pincus and the X S-1 10.11  February 17, 2009
registrant.
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Exhibit
Number

10.29
10.30
10.31
10.32
10.33
10.34
10.35
10.36
10.37
10.38

10.39

Description of Document
Bank Documents
Loan and Security Agreement with Comerica Bank dated April 12,
2004, as amended by Amendments 1-8 thereto.
Ninth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement with Comerica
Bank dated May 1, 2009.
Tenth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement with Comerica
Bank dated June 22, 2009.
Letter agreement dated October 30, 2009 with Comerica Bank
Letter agreement dated December 31, 2009 with Comerica Bank
Credit Agreement dated January 29, 2010 with Comerica Bank
Revolving Credit Note dated January 29, 2010 with Comerica Bank
Security Agreement dated January 29, 2010 with Comerica Bank
First Amendment to Loan Documents with Comerica Bank dated
July 30, 2010
Second Amendment to Loan Documents with Comerica Bank dated
August 6, 2010
Third Amendment to Loan Documents with Comerica Bank dated
December 1, 2010
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Filed
Herewith

X

Incorporated
by Reference

X

X

MR XXX X

o

Form

S-1
10-Q
10-Q

10-K
10-K
8-K
8-K
8-K
10-Q

10-Q

Exhibit
No.

10.9
10.3
10.4
10.40
10.41
99.1
99.2
99.3
10.1

10.2

Date Filed
March 20, 2009
August 11, 2009
August 11, 2009
March 2, 2010
March 2, 2010
February 3, 2010
February 3, 2010
February 3, 2010
August 3, 2010

November 2, 2010
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Exhibit
Number

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

Description of Document
Material Real Estate Leases

Office Lease dated January 31, 2008 with Kilroy Realty, L.P., as
amended by the First Amendment thereto dated December 1, 2008,
related to the premises located at 13480 Evening Creek Drive North,
San Diego, California.

Second Amendment to Office Lease dated June 3, 2009 with Kilroy
Realty L.P., related to the premises located at 13480 Evening Creek
Drive North, Sand Diego, California.

Office Lease and Sublease Agreements, related to the premises
located at 13500 Evening Creek Drive North, San Diego, California.
Letter Agreement dated October 1, 2009 with Kilroy Realty, L.P.
and Countrywide Home Loans, Inc., related to the premises located
at 13500 Evening Creek Drive North, San Diego, California

First Amendment to Office Lease dated March 12, 2010 with Kilroy
Realty, L.P., related to the premises located at 13500 Evening Creek
Drive North, San Diego, California.

Office Lease dated June 26, 2009 with Kilroy Realty, L.P., related to
the premises located at 13520 Evening Creek Drive North, San
Diego, California.

Standard Form Modified Gross Office Lease dated October 22, 2008,
and addendum, with Sunroad Centrum Office I, L.P. related to the
premises located at 8620 Spectrum Center Lane, San Diego,
California.
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Filed
Herewith

Incorporated
by Reference

Form

S-1

10-Q

S-1

10-K

10-Q

10-Q

S-1

Exhibit
No.

10.15

10.2

10.16

10.49

10.5

10.1

10.17

Date Filed

April 13,2009

August 11, 2009

April 13,2009

March 2, 2010

May 3, 2010

August 11, 2009

March 2, 2009
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Exhibit Filed Incorporated Exhibit
Number Description of Document Herewith by Reference Form No. Date Filed
10.47 Standard Form Modified Gross Office Lease dated November 10, X 8-K  99.1 December 30,
2010 with Sunroad Centrum Officer I, L.P., related to a building to 2010

be built in the Sunroad Centrum Project in San Diego, California.
Material Strategic Agreements

10.48 Blackboard License and Services Agreement dated December 23, X S-1 10.20  March 30, 2009
2003, as amended, between Blackboard, Inc. and Ashford
University, LLC.

10.49 Amendment to Blackboard License and Services Agreement dated X 10-K 1048  March 2, 2010
December 8, 2009 with Blackboard, Inc.

10.50 Master Services and License Agreement dated September 29, 2009 X 8-K  99.1 October 1, 2009
with eCollege.com

10.51 First Addendum to Master Services and License Agreement dated X 10-K 1045  March 2, 2010
November 9, 2009 with eCollege.com

10.52 Second Addendum to Master Services and License Agreement dated X 10-K 1046  March 2, 2010
December 15, 2009 with eCollege.com

10.53 Third Addendum to Master Services and License Agreement dated X 10-K 1047  March 2, 2010
January 12, 2010 with eCollege.com

10.54 Fourth Addendum to Master Services and License Agreement dated X
October 14, 2010 with eCollege.com

10.55 Software License Agreement and Campuscare Support Agreement X S-1 10.21  March 30, 2009
between Campus Management Corp. and the registrant.

10.56 Addenda to Software License Agreement with Campus X 10-Q 10.5 August 11, 2009
Management Corp. dated June 29, 2009.
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Exhibit Filed Incorporated Exhibit
Number Description of Document Herewith by Reference Form No. Date Filed
10.57 General Services Agreement dated January 1, 2009 between X S-1 10.22  April 13,2009

Affiliated Computer Services, Inc. and Ashford University, LLC.

10.58 General Services Agreement dated January 1, 2009 between X S-1 10.23  April 13,2009

Affiliated Computer Services, Inc. and University of the
Rockies, LLC.
Code of Ethics

14.1 Amended and Restated Code of Ethics X 8-K 14.1 December 1, 2009
Subsidiaries

21.1 List of subsidiaries of the registrant. X S-1 21.1 August 26, 2009
Consent and Power of Attorney

23.1 Consent of independent registered public accounting firm. X

24.1 Power of Attorney (included on signature page). X
Certifications Required by Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.1 Certification of Andrew S. Clark, CEO and President, pursuant to X
Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Daniel J. Devine, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant X
to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act
of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.
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Filed Incorporated Exhibit

Exhibit
No. Date Filed

Number Description of Document Herewith by Reference Form
32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant X
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, executed by
Andrew S. Clark, CEO and President, and Daniel J. Devine, Chief
Financial Officer

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment and the non-public information has been
filed separately with the SEC.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

BRIDGEPOINT EDUCATION, INC.

By: /s ANDREW S. CLARK

Andrew S. Clark

CEO and President
Dated: March 1, 2011

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Andrew S.
Clark and Daniel J. Devine, jointly and severally, as his attorney-in-fact, each with the power of substitution, for him in any and all capacities, to
sign any amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact, or his substitute
or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ ANDREW S. CLARK ) o . i
CEO and President (Principal Executive Officer) and a

Director

March 1, 2011
Andrew S. Clark

/s/ DANIEL J. DEVINE

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) March 1, 2011
Daniel J. Devine

/s BRANDON J. POPE . . . . )
Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer and Corporate

Controller (Principal Accounting Officer) March 1, 2011
Brandon J. Pope
/sl RYAN CRAIG
Director March 1, 2011
Ryan Craig
/sl DALE CRANDALL
Director March 1, 2011
Dale Crandall
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Name

/s/ PATRICK T. HACKETT

Patrick T. Hackett

/sf ROBERT HARTMAN

Robert Hartman

/sl ADARSH SARMA

Adarsh Sarma

Director

Director

Director
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Title

Date

March 1, 2011

March 1, 2011

March 1, 2011
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